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CORPORATE INFORMATION
RAEEH

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Chan, Hoi-wan (Chief Executive Officer)
Chan, Lok-wan

Lam, Kwong-wai

Non-executive Directors:
Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman)

Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Chan, Kwok-wai
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Chan, Hoi-wan (Chairman)
Lam, Kwong-wai (Chief Investment Officer)
Chan, Kwok-wai

Ma, Tsz-chun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping (Chairman)
Chan, Kwok-wai

Ma, Tsz-chun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

COMPANY SECRETARY

Lam, Kwong-wai

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Chan, Hoi-wan

Lam, Kwong-wai
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SOLICITORS

(Listed in alphabetical order)
Reynolds Porter Chamberlain
S.Y. Wong & Co.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

BANKERS

(Listed in alphabetical order)

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Deutsche Bank AG, Singapore Branch

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited, London Branch

PLACE OF INCORPORATION

Bermuda

REGISTERED OFFICE
Victoria Place, 5th Floor

31 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG
21st Floor, Chubb Tower

Windsor House

311 Gloucester Road

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

4th Floor North, Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A RESR

BRANCH REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
IN HONG KONG

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8555

Fax: (852) 2865 0990/(852) 2529 6087

OFFICE IN THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA

Room 1003, 10th Floor, Oriental Place
No. 9 East Dongfang Road

North Dongsanhuan Road

Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

Post Code: 100027

Tel: (8610) 6466 0638

Fax.  (8610) 6466 0238

OFFICE IN UNITED KINGDOM

Front and Rear Suite, Ground Floor
11 and 12 St James's Square
London, United Kingdom

Post Code: SW1Y 4LB

Tel: (4420) 4559 0544

WEBSITE

http://www.chineseestates.com

STOCK CODE

127

BOARD LOT

500 shares

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:
Tel: (852) 2866 6999

Fax.  (852) 2866 2822/(852) 2866 2833

E-mail:  investor.relations@chineseestates.com
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. CHAN, Hoi-wan, aged 42, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since 2017 and acts as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since 17 February 2021. She also acts as a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan is also the chairman
of the investment committee of the Company. She had joined the then
associate of the Group (the Company together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group") from 2002 to 2005 and participated in its cosmetics business,
including Two Girls products. She also possessed of more than 3.5 years'
work experience in media field in Hong Kong and gained experience in
properties and securities investments through her investments. Ms. Chan
is the elder sister of Ms. Chan, Lok-wan, the step-mother of Mr. Lau, Ming-
wai and the sister-in-law of Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai. As at the date of this
annual report, Ms. Chan is a director of certain substantial shareholders of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong).

Ms. CHAN, Lok-wan, aged 37, joined the Group in 2008 and has been
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 2015. She is the
Manager of Sales and Leasing Department and also acts as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science in Business and Management (Marketing) from Brunel University
London and a Master Degree of Science in Communication, Information
and Society from The London School of Economics and Political Science.
She is responsible for the Group’s marketing affairs, overseeing the Group's
cosmetics business, including Two Girls products, and participated in the
Group's properties’ sales and leasing businesses. Ms. Chan has over 13
years of experience in sales and marketing. She is the younger sister of Ms.

Chan, Hoi-wan and the aunt of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai.

Mr. LAM, Kwong-wai, aged 66, joined the Group in 1989 and has been
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 2012. Mr. Lam
is the Group Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Company
and acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is also
a member of the investment committee of the Company and acts as the
chief investment officer. Mr. Lam is an independent non-executive director
of Lifestyle China Group Limited, the shares of this company are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Lam is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and holds
a Master Degree of Business Administration from the University of Warwick,
United Kingdom. He has over 44 years of experience in auditing, finance

and accounting industries.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS EEN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU, Ming-wai, aged 41, has been appointed as a Director of the
Company since 2006 and appointed as the Chairman of the board of
Directors since 2014. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws from
King's College London, a Master Degree of Laws from The London School
of Economics and Political Science, and a Doctor Degree of Philosophy
in Laws from King's College London. He worked at The Goldman Sachs
Group, Inc. and Longview Partners LP, both in London prior to joining the
Group. Mr. Lau is a registered attorney in the State of New York and a CFA
(Chartered Financial Analyst) charterholder. He is the step-son of Ms. Chan,
Hoi-wan, and the nephew of Ms. Chan, Lok-wan and Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai.

Ms. Amy LAU, Yuk-wai, aged 69, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2004. Ms. Lau is also a non-
executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited, the shares of
this company are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. She is a
retired dentist. Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Science and a Doctor
Degree of Dental Surgery from the University of Toronto, Canada. She is

the sister-in-law of Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan and the aunt of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN, Kwok-wai, aged 63, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2004. He is the chairman of
the audit committee and remuneration committee, and a member of the
nomination committee and investment committee of the Company. Mr.
Chan holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from the Monash
University, Australia. He is also a member of CPA Australia and a member
of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. He has over 42 years
of experience in finance and accounting industries. Mr. Chan is currently a
director of High Progress Consultants Limited. He is also an independent
non-executive director of China Investments Holdings Limited, Far East
Consortium International Limited, National Electronics Holdings Limited
and Tern Properties Company Limited respectively, the shares of all these

companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Cont'd)

Ms. Phillis LOH, Lai-ping, aged 57, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 2006. She
is the chairman of the nomination committee, a member of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Ms. Loh is an
independent non-executive director of In Technical Productions Holdings
Limited, the shares of this company are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Loh holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws
and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws, both from The University of Hong
Kong. Ms. Loh was a practising solicitor from 1990 to 1997, and has since
become a practising barrister-at-law after she was called to the Hong Kong
Bar in 1998. She was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong (1990) and
the United Kingdom (1991), and is also a barrister and solicitor in the
Supreme Court of the Australian Capital Territory (since 1991). Ms. Loh
is a CEDR (Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution) Accredited Mediator
(2009). Ms. Loh was an appointed member of the Board of Review (Inland
Revenue Ordinance) from 2018 to 2020 and has been appointed as a
Deputy Chairman of such penal since 2021. She was appointed Deputy
District Judge in 2014 and 2016, and Temporary Deputy Registrar of the
High Court in 2018.

Mr. MA, Tsz-chun, aged 56, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2008. He is a member of
the audit committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee
and investment committee of the Company. Mr. Ma is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) and has over 34 years of experience in auditing,
finance and accounting industries. He is currently a director and the general
manager of Sino-Bridge China Consulting Limited. Mr. Ma is also an
independent non-executive director of Lotus Horizon Holdings Limited and
In Technical Productions Holdings Limited, the shares of these companies
are listed on the Main Board and the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange respectively. Mr. Ma holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration and a Master of Science Degree in E-Commerce (Business
Programme), both from The Chinese University of Hong Kong as well as a
Master of Science Degree in China Business Studies from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Ma is a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and an associate

member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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PROFILES OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES
SRITHAEEN

Mr. Simon CHEUNG, Sung-fung, aged 40, joined the Group (the
Company together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) in 2007 and is the
Head of Leasing Department. Mr. Cheung is a chartered surveyor. He holds
a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration (Honours) in Marketing
from the City University of Hong Kong and a Master Degree of Science
in Real Estate from The University of Hong Kong. He is also a member of
The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Mr. Cheung is responsible
for the real estate asset management. He has over 18 years of relevant
experience. Mr. Cheung also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the

Company.

Mr. Brian CHEUNG, Siu-leung, aged 54, joined the Group in 2021 and
is the Senior Manager — Project Development of Project Development
Department. Mr. Cheung is a registered architect in Hong Kong. He holds
a Bachelor Degree of Architecture from University of Oregon, United States
of America. He is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects.
Mr. Cheung is responsible for the local and overseas property development

affairs. He has over 29 years of relevant experience.

Ms. Hazel LAI, Ming-yan, aged 53, joined the Group in 2000 and is the
Senior Manager — Contracts of Project Development Department. Ms.
Lai is a registered professional surveyor. She holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science in Building from the City University of Hong Kong and a Master
Degree of Science in Construction and Real Estate from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors and The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Ms. Lai is
responsible for the quantity surveying affairs. She has over 31 years of

relevant experience.

Various businesses and functions of the Company are significantly under
the direct responsibilities of the Executive Directors who are also regarded

as senior executives of the Company.
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I would like to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the "Year") to the
shareholders of the Company.

RESULTS

Loss for the Year attributable to owners of the Company was HK$3,515.3
million as compared to profit of HK$622.2 million for last year. The turning
from profit to loss for the Year was mainly due to (a) decrease in net
dividend income from the shares of China Evergrande Group (stock code:
3333); (b) results in the segment of investments and treasury products at
fair value through profit or loss turned from profit to loss; and (c) decrease
in dilapidations settlement received from tenants in respect of investment
properties in the United Kingdom during the Year. Loss per share for the
Year was HK$1.84 (2020: earnings per share of HK$0.33).

If the net loss on the major non-cash items of HK$1,395.9 million (2020:
HK$1,605.1 million) is excluded but the share of accumulated realised fair
value gain recognised in prior years on disposal of an investment property
of an associate of HK$0.8 million (2020: nil) is included, the Group will
have a core loss for the Year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$2,118.6 million (2020: core profit of HK$2,227.3 million) and a core
loss per share of HK$1.11 (2020: core profit per share of HK$1.17).

The major non-cash items represented the attributable net unrealised fair
value loss on investment properties together with their respective deferred
tax (if any) from the Group and its associates of HK$1,395.9 million (2020:

from the Group and its associates and joint venture of HK$1,605.1 million).

DIVIDENDS

The board of directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board") has
not recommended the payment of final dividend for the Year (2020: HK1

cent per share).

Having considered the Company's dividend policy, to preserve more
cash for the Group's future financial, property investment or securities
investment opportunities, the Board has not recommended the payment of
final dividend for the Year (2020: HK1 cent per share).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHREE

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of ascertaining the members' eligibility to attend and vote
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
20 May 2022 (the "2022 ACGM"), the register of members will be closed
from 17 May 2022 to 20 May 2022, both days inclusive. In order to
eligible to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM, all properly completed share
transfers documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company’s Branch Registrar and Transfer
Office in Hong Kong, namely Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712—1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 16 May 2022.

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGIES

The Group's core businesses comprise property investments for rental and

property development as well as securities investments.

The Group aims at enhancing value and recurrent revenue of investment
properties through conceptualising and implementing redevelopment,
renovation works and repackaging programmes for properties as well as
actively managing a balanced tenant mix for retail properties to achieve

long-term sustainable growth.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in developing modern industrial

properties.

The Group invested in office properties and hotel business in Mainland
China and commercial and residential properties in the United Kingdom.
All of them are located in the prestigious areas and generate stable and

recurrent rental income for the Group.

The Group is actively grasping the opportunity for acquiring properties in
Hong Kong and the United Kingdom.

The Group continues its strategy in quality partnerships with property
developers or other parties to the extent commercially feasible and

beneficial to the Group's development.

Apart from the aforesaid, the Group has conducted variety of securities
investment business, such as equity investments, debt investments and
other treasury products, with the aim to yield enhancement for treasury

management.
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGIES (contd)

The Group believes that the stable rental income from its investment
properties, together with the property development and trading as well as
securities investment, forms a diversified cash flow stream which allows the

Group to weather the cyclicality of the real estate business.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Hong Kong Property Investment

Rentals from investment properties continued to be one of the major

sources of our income.

During the Year, the average occupancy rate of the shops of Causeway

Place was approximately 96.97%.

Olympian City 3 (25% interest), the retail mall in The Hermitage residences
in West Kowloon, the average occupancy rate was approximately 94.74%

during the Year.

Coronation Circle (15% interest), the retail mall in The Coronation
residences in West Kowloon, the average occupancy rate was approximately
60.27% during the Year.

During the Year, the average occupancy rate of the Group's office property,

Harcourt House was approximately 74.84%.

Nos. 14—-18 Ma Kok Street is an industrial site in Tsuen Wan. It will be
redeveloped into a 25-storey industrial building (including 2 basement
levels of parking and loading/unloading facilities). Its total gross floor area is
approximately 228,001 square feet. Construction of the new development
is currently underway, with the foundation works commenced in May
2021. The new building is expected to be completed by early 2025,
and presale of the industrial units is expected to be launched in the third
quarter of 2022.

In December 2021, the Group acquired Nos. 86 and 88 Apliu Street in
Sham Shui Po, a 25-storey residential-cum-commercial building with total
gross floor area of approximately 17,714 square feet. As at 31 December
2021,

and refurbishment of the property are in progress and expected to be

it is vacant. Alterations and additions works for reinstatement
completed around the fourth quarter of 2023.
No. 1 Hung To Road (33.33% interest), a 33-storey industrial building in

Kwun Tong, the average occupancy rate was approximately 93.96% during

the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Hong Kong Property Development

The Hermitage (25% interest) is the Group's joint venture development
project in West Kowloon. It comprises 6 residential tower blocks and
provides in aggregate 964 residential units and retail properties with a total
gross floor area of around 1,095,980 square feet. As at 31 December

2021, 99.90% of total residential units were sold.

Grand Central (10% interest) is a joint venture development project of
the Group awarded by the Urban Renewal Authority. Its total site area is
approximately 234,160 square feet, with a total gross floor area of around
1,853,561 square feet. 4 residential tower blocks with 1,999 residential
units in aggregate are built in two phases. Superstructure works of both
phases were completed, occupation permit was issued in November
2020, and certificate of compliance was granted in April 2021. Up to 31
December 2021, 925 units of first phase and 900 units of second phase

were sold.

Mainland China Property Investment

Hilton Beijing (50% interest), a five-star international hotel having 506
rooms. Due to the pandemic, the renovation works of 5th to 14th Floors
of the main tower were temporarily suspended. Its occupancy rate was
approximately 36.53% as at 31 December 2021 due to renovation works
and the outbreak of COVID-19.

Oriental Place (50% interest), a 10-storey office building next to Hilton
Beijing. As at 31 December 2021,
95.95%.

the occupancy rate was approximately

Overseas Property Investment

River Court is a freehold office building situated at 116-129 Fleet
Street, London, United Kingdom. It provides a total net internal area of
approximately 429,980 square feet, together with certain car parking
spaces. During the Year, the retails portion of River Court was fully let while
the office accommodation was vacant as the anchor tenant has moved
out in the first quarter of 2020. City of London’s Resolution to Grant the
redevelopment of the property was secured in October 2021. Demolition
work will commence once the relevant government approvals/agreements

are granted/finalized.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Overseas Property Investment (Cont'd)

“14 St George Street” is a freehold office building located in London,
United Kingdom. The building comprises in aggregate approximately
51,861 square feet of office accommodation arranged over lower ground,
ground and four upper floors, approximately 86.73% had been let out

during the Year on average.

“61-67 Oxford Street and 11-14 Soho Street” is a mixed use freehold
building located in London, United Kingdom, comprising approximately
55,151 square feet in aggregate. The building provides retails, office and
residential accommodation, occupying approximately 33,843 square feet,
13,694 square feet and 7,614 square feet respectively, over lower ground,
ground and six upper floors. As at 31 December 2021, the occupancy rate

was approximately 88.86%.

“11 and 12 St James's Square and 14 to 17 Ormond Yard” is a mixed
use freehold building located in London, United Kingdom. The building
provides around 79,484 square feet office accommodation arranged over
lower ground, ground and six upper floors. As at 31 December 2021, the

occupancy rate was approximately 93.26%.

Securities Investment

Securities investment is one of the principal activities of the Group.

The Group's strategy is to maintain securities investment portfolio for
treasury management. As at 31 December 2021, the Group's securities
investment portfolio comprised of bonds, listed equity investments and
treasury products. The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the abilities of the entities in the Group to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders of
the Company. The Group's strategy for future investments is to invest in a
diversified portfolio to minimise risks with attractive yield, good liquidity and
issuers from reputable entities, so as to maintain a healthy financial status

and grasp every good investment chance.

The net loss recognised from securities investments and treasury
products for the Year was approximately HK$1,995.5 million. Details of
the performance of securities investments are disclosed in the “Financial

Operation Review" of this annual report.

The Group will continue to closely monitor its portfolio of securities

investment to achieve satisfactory returns.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

EEENWRES @

BMDEREE)

[St George Street 145% |/ — 1B AN ERBRFZ KA
ERRTE  ZWEHBEALN51,861FAFR
SHERHTEE - TRELNE 2 STEEEmMA
B o MRS E N ¥ 4986.73%0 8 AM -

[Oxford Street 61-675% & Soho Street 11-145% 15
—EUREERBZKAREEGESRAEET R
HBHAS5151FAR - ZMERETE BFEK
FEEN - BEDHI433,843FFR - 13,694F 7
RE7,614FHFR - A TEE - b TRELXRE
WK - R=—FE-—F+-_A=+—H8 £HEXHBE
88.86% °

[St James's Square 11X 12%% LA & Ormond Yard 142
17 IR — BN BB KA EELGS AgE
F o RYERMKT,484 T F R BFEEEH - 5
MR TEE M TREERE - RZT—F+
ZHA=1t—H  HEEHR3.26% -

BHERE
BHREDNAREED BT BET -

AEENREIAFESFREMANMEEE - 1
—EF+ZA=+—H FEEEFREES
TZEREES  LTRARERMEER - AEE
EREAZIZARRARBAEE 2 ERIBELE
2R MERARBEEARNARRRSAERKD
e AEBZARKRERBIIRER AR K
K -AORPURBEERFZIBETARITZIZT
LR EAANER R G ERE - KMERFRENHYT
Bk MEE—EARINRERS -

AEEEHFRERVEERRRAZEBEEREY
1,995,500,000/8 7T © BHIEE KRR Z FBRARFR
[BAFS AR N EE -

FEBERBEBTIERABSREBS  UIES
AREBHETR o

13



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHREE

OTHER INFORMATION

Subscription of Senior Notes

- Discloseable Transaction

On 28 April 2021, the Group received confirmations that US$500,000,000
11.7% senior notes due 2025 of Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd. (the shares of
which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (stock code: 1638)) (“Kaisa”), an independent third party, in
the principal amount of US$150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,166,355,000) was allocated to the order placed by the Group for
subscription at the issue price of 100% of the principal amount thereof
(the “Subscription”). The Subscription, on a stand-alone basis or when
aggregated with the previous subscription, constituted a discloseable
transaction for the Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as more described in

the Company's announcement dated 28 April 2021.

Forfeiture of Unclaimed Dividends

As announced on 4 August 2021, all dividends declared on or before 15

June 2015 remaining unclaimed on 3 September 2021 be forfeited and

reverted to the Company.

Disposal of Senior Notes

- Discloseable Transaction

On 23 August 2021, the Group disposed of the 8.875% senior notes
due 2021 issued by Zhongliang Holdings Group Company Limited (the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2772))
in the principal amount of US$7,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$54,415,000) through over-the-counter market for a consideration
of US$6,838,196.20 (equivalent to approximately HK$53,157,000)
(exclusive of accrued interest) (the “Notes Disposal”). The Notes Disposal,
when aggregated with the previous disposals, constituted a discloseable

transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules as more described in

the Company's announcement dated 23 August 2021.
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OTHER INFORMATION (contd)

Disposal of Shares in China Evergrande Group
- Discloseable Transaction and
Mandate for Disposal(s) of Shares in China Evergrande Group

- Major Transaction

During the period from 30 August 2021 to 21 September 2021 (both
dates inclusive), the Group disposed of an aggregate of 108,909,000
shares in China Evergrande Group (the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 3333)) (“China Evergrande”) (the "Disposal
Shares”) in the open market of the Stock Exchange for an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$246.5 million (exclusive of transaction
costs). The average selling price per the Disposal Share was approximately
HK$2.26 (exclusive of transaction costs) (the “Disposal”). The Disposal
constituted a discloseable transaction for the Company under the Listing
Rules as more described in the Company's announcement dated 23
September 2021.

On 23 September 2021, the Company had sought and obtained the
written shareholders’ approval in lieu of a general meeting pursuant to
Rule 14.44 of the Listing Rules for the grant of a mandate to the Directors
to dispose of all or part of the Company’s 751,091,000 shares in China
Evergrande (the "Disposal Mandate”) in the open market of the Stock
Exchange or through block trade(s) subject to a minimum selling price
of HK$0.01 per share (excluding transaction cost) in one or series of
transactions during a period of 12 months from 23 September 2021 to
22 September 2022. The possible disposal(s) and the Disposal Mandate,
when aggregated with the Disposal, constituted a major transaction for the
Company under the Listing Rules as more described in the Company's
announcements dated 23 September 2021, 18 October 2021 and 20
October 2021 as well as circular dated 24 November 202 1. After obtaining
the approval of the Disposal Mandate on 23 September 2021 and up
to 31 December 2021, the Group further disposed of an aggregate of
521,794,000 shares of China Evergrande in the open market of the Stock
Exchange. As at 31 December 2021, the Group held 229,297,000 shares
of China Evergrande.

Trading in the shares of China Evergrande on the Stock Exchange has
been halted from 9:00 a.m. on 21 March 2022, trading in the shares of
China Evergrande will remain suspended until further notice from China

Evergrande.
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OTHER INFORMATION (contd)

Proposed Privatisation of the Company by Solar Bright Ltd. by Way
of a Scheme of Arrangement under Section 99 of the Companies

Act and Proposed Withdrawal of Listing of the Company

On 28 September 2021, Solar Bright Ltd. (the "Offeror”) requested
the Board to put forward the proposal to the scheme shareholders for
the privatisation of the Company by the Offeror by way of a scheme of
arrangement under section 99 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(the “Scheme” or the “Proposal”). Under the Scheme, if the Scheme
becomes effective, the scheme shareholders will receive from the Offeror
the cancellation price of HK$4.00 in cash for each scheme share cancelled.
Upon completion of the Proposal, the Offeror, Century Frontier Limited and
Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Ltd. (all being substantial shareholders
of the Company as at the date of the Proposal) will hold the entire
issued share capital of the Company and the listing of the Company’s
shares will be withdrawn from the Stock Exchange. As the Scheme was
disapproved by scheme shareholders at the scheme meeting held on 17
December 2021, the Proposal therefore not proceeded and the listing of
the Company's shares on the Stock Exchange be maintained. Details were
described in the Company’s announcements dated 6 October 2021, 12
October 2021, 27 October 2021, 3 November 2021, 24 November 2021,
6 December 2021 and 17 December 2021 as well as the composite

scheme document dated 24 November 2021.
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OTHER INFORMATION (contd)

Disposals of Senior Notes

- Discloseable Transactions and Major Transaction

During the period from 19 October 2021 to 28 October 2021 (both dates
inclusive), the Group disposed of the following senior notes issued by Kaisa

through a series of transactions in the over-the-counter market, details as
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Dates/periods of disposals and
the principal amount involved Consideration Consideration
HESERS HERRSROESHE (excluding (including
Disposed Senior Notes  Date/period Principal amount accrued interest) accrued interest)
RKE KB
EHEBRARE B, HAR r&HE (FEEETFER) (BIEEFRE)
(US$) (Us$) (Us$)
(Em) (FEm) (Em)
9.375% Senior Notes From 19.10.2021 to 20.10.2021 19,000,000 7,127,500.00 7,681,406.28
due 2024 (both dates inclusive) (“Batch 1")
“ETOFRE Y 719.10.2021%20.10.2021
9375 EEBERRE (BEEREMBA)(E—4#t)
On 21.10.2021 ("Batch 2") 23,000,000 6,871,500.00 7,560,302.08
721.10.2021(58 = #t1)
From 22.10.2021 to 25.10.2021 23,000,000 7,412,500.00 8,112,239.58
(both dates inclusive) (“Batch 3")
722.10.2021£25.10.2021
(BEEEMRA)(E=4#tD)
From 26.10.2021 to 28.10.2021 10,000,000 3,142,000.00 3,449,291.66
(both dates inclusive) (“Batch 4")
7426.10.2021%£28.10.2021
(BEEREMAB)(Emit)
10.875% Senior Perpetual  On 21.10.2021 (“Batch 2") 3,000,000 802,392.00 825,048.25
Capital Securities 721.10.2021(TE=#t1)
10.8752 B 5k & From 22.10.2021 to 25.10.2021 4,000,000 1,015,135.66 1,047,760.66
BRESH (both dates inclusive)(“Batch 3")
22.10.2021%25.10.2021
(BIEERMA)(E=4t)
From 26.10.2021 to 28.10.2021 23,000,000 5,257,464.00 5,463,786.91

(both dates inclusive)(“Batch 4")
#26.10.2021%28.10.2021
(BEEEMA) (Emit])
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHREE

OTHER INFORMATION (contd) HAtn & B
Disposals of Senior Notes HEBERE
- Discloseable Transactions and Major Transaction (Cont'd) - BAFHERZRIERS (B)

Dates/periods of disposals and

the principal amount involved Consideration Consideration
HESEAN HERIRHESE (excluding (including
Disposed Senior Notes  Date/period Principal amount accrued interest) accrued interest)
KE KRE
EHERERE A, HA R TEHE (FEEEFFE) (BFEEFFE)
(US$) (USs$) (US¥)
(Z=7T) (7T (Z=7T)
11.7% Senior Notes From 19.10.2021 to 20.10.2021 29,000,000 11,179,550.10 12,696,000.10
due 2025 (both dates inclusive) (“Batch 1)
—ZERFIEZ 719.10.2021%20.10.2021
N7EBERRE (BREEREMB)(E—4#t)
On 21.10.2021 (“Batch 2") 26,000,000 7,743,590.00 9,129,390.00
$21.102021 (% =8t 1)
From 22.10.2021 to 25.10.2021 28,000,000 8,651,596.00 10,159,921.00

(both dates inclusive) (“Batch 3")
7222.10.2021225.10.2021
(BEEEMA)(E=3#tD)
From 26.10.2021 to 28.10.2021 67,000,000 18,507,000.00 22,195,100.00
(both dates inclusive) (“Batch 4")
7426.10.2021%228.10.2021
(BEERMAB)(Emit)

The disposals under Batch 1, Batch 2 and Batch 3 respectively constituted 1R ET#RAI - E—#t - F-HEFE=HHEH R
a discloseable transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules as more KA 2 TZ/E%ﬁﬁﬁx CHBEIREINRAR
described in the two Company's announcements dated 21 October 2021  RIMEIEHA-T_—F+ A+ —RHZ2AMAK
and another announcement dated 25 October 2021 respectively. The ARAS—RAIBBA_Z-_—F+A=-+HH 2
disposals under Batch 4, when aggregated with the disposals under Batch 1, /A o R4 ETRAI - FPOH#t 2 HE(BHE —H#t
Batch 2 and Batch 3, constituted a major transaction of the Company under ~—#tRE=#t 7 HEES A BR AR TZEEaf 2
the Listing Rules as more described in the Company's announcement % * FBEIN AR BPAT_—F+ A=+
dated 28 October 2021 and circular 18 November 2021. NBZAMEBSA-_Z_—F+—A+N\BZ@

18 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2021



OTHER INFORMATION (contd)
Update on Impact on the Outbreak of COVID-19 to the Group

The outbreak of COVID-19 in Hong Kong and many countries started in
early 2020 and continues up to the date of this annual report, its social-
economic impact is unprecedented. The global pandemic is having a major

impact on the economies and financial markets.

The drop in rental income of the Group during the Year was mainly due
to the surrender of lease by an anchor tenant of one of the Group's
investment properties in the United Kingdom. Meanwhile, in view of
COVID-19 pandemic, rent concession has been given by the Group to

tenant to ease its hardship.

The persistence of COVID-19 pandemic has adversely affected the fair
value of investment properties of the Group. During the Year, the Group
recorded an unrealised loss on fair value changes of investment properties
of HK$1,376.6 million.

The Group's hotel business of Hilton Beijing (50% interest) also adversely
affected by COVID-19 pandemic.

As COVID-19's duration is unpredictable and the extent of its impact is
not easy to determine under this volatile situation of the pandemic, it is
believed that COVID-19 will continue to affect the Group's businesses for a

period of time.
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is continuously committed to maintaining good
communication with shareholders, investors and analysts in order to ensure
their thorough understanding of the Group’s strategies and business

development, thereby enhancing transparency and investor relations.

The Company maintains a Company's website (www.chineseestates.com)
to make the Company's information available on the internet, including the
dissemination of statutory announcements and circulars etc.,, to facilitate
its communication with shareholders and to provide important information
to the investing public on corporate governance structure, policies and
systems, profiles of the Directors and senior executives as well as terms of

reference of Board committees.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE{REE

HiE R @
WIFRFER BB U ALY E TS

2019BRBERE S _SFFIREBRITZH
RERER—HERE BEAFHAMDATE 8
HERBEZHZETIRMAR - 2REBEHEERS
BMTISELEATE -

AEBRAFEZHRSWARL>ETEZEHREBET
HP—BRBAREYENEEHFPRANAE - B
B ER20198 MR ERERE - NEBEHE,RRM
THeBBRUERMMOERER o

2019 EBRFEREBZHECHAEB ZREDE
MAFEEETHFE RAFE  AEBHESE
EMENFEEE 2 RS EIEA1,376,600,00078

JG °©

AEBRIL R BB IE (1550%% 58) 2 B 5 %75
FFE2019BREZMARITHRBEZE °

BN AGE2019BMBER 2 IHERRE - RER
ERZBESENVET  HABTEREIEE A
EAREBEKBEEZ 20198 METRTVE—R
R o

REEBRE

ARB—BEBNEKRR - REERSWERIT R
Bl UWHERREHAEECRELEBEREE
BEIRER - EMIERBERAERINBEREERE -

NN FRR A A A A3 E (www.chineseestates.com) * {#
RRITBBEHBIERRER » BIEFEEAMK
MR B2 BEME - s ERR 2 Em - WiREE
EERTRABKREETHREEEAEE « BE K
B ZBEERERITHRABEN  AREFEETZ
BevBEaE -

CEC-FFHR EABXEE

19



20

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHREE

INVESTOR RELATIONS (contd)

The up-to-date information of the Group is available for public
access on the Company's website. The Company encourages its
shareholders to take advantage of the Company’s website and
welcomes suggestions from investors and shareholders, and invites
them to share their views and suggestions by contacting the Company at

investor.relations@chineseestates.com.

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company in writing by sending such written enquiries
to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at the address
disclosed in “Corporate Information” of this annual report or by email at
investor.relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to

raise questions at general meetings.
PROSPECTS

The lingering COVID-19 pandemic-related disruption over the world in
the past two years still posed concerns. The global economy continues its
uneven recovery and enters 2022 in a weaker position than previously
expected. The economic outlook is clouded with downside risks including
the spread of new Omicron variant, supply-chain challenges and inflationary
pressure. Moreover, developments of China-US relations and the broke out
of Russia-Ukraine War raised global attention and the tension could have

far-reaching global consequences.

Hong Kong's economic recovery became more entrenched in the third
quarter of 2021 alongside the further revival of global economic activity
and stable local epidemic situation, and recovered further in the fourth
quarter of 2021. However, the onslaught of the latest wave of epidemic
and the tightened anti-epidemic measures have posed renewed pressure

on economic activities and weighed on sentiment.

On local front, inbound tourism was virtually at a standstill, constraining the
extent of the economic recovery. In addition, tough social-distancing curbs
and vaccine pass could deal a more severe blow to the retail sector than
the early stages of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020. Accordingly, overall
rental level and occupancy expected to come under strain. It is expected
that the Group's investment properties will continue to face numerous
challenges in the short run. Despite that, the Group will continue to keep
an eye on market dynamics and seize opportunities in this challenging

environment.
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PROSPECTS (contd)

In the United Kingdom economy, pressures from inflation, shortages of
labour and supply chain bottlenecks cloud the outlook for its growth.
Despite the uncertainty, the Group's immediate focus is on asset
enhancement works of our investment properties. We remain to preserve

long-term view for the United Kingdom economy.

For the stock market, it is likely to be volatile in short term, dampened by
uncertainties over the tighten monetary policy in the United States, curb
inflation, recent spike of Omicron infections and geopolitical tensions
between Russia and Ukraine. On the interest rate outlook, we remain alert
of the possible interest rate rises in 2022 in order to manage our risk on

cost of financing.

Looking ahead, the Group will maintain a cautious stance towards risk and
the uncertainties around the globe. We will also continue to manage our

businesses with caution and seek new opportunities in opportune moment.
APPRECIATION

2022 is the Group's 100th Anniversary. | would like to take this opportunity
to express my gratitude to the shareholders for their continuing support
and would also like to express my sincere thanks to my fellow directors
and all staff members for their dedication and hard work for overcoming
the Group's every challenging moments. | believe that through the hand-
in-hand efforts between the management and our staff, together with the
support from our shareholders, the Group will turn into a new brilliant

chapter of our development.

Lau, Ming-wai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2022
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW
UECE S E)]

RESULTS

Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 (“Year") amounted to
HK$1,299.8 million (2020: HK$3,041.5 million), a decrease of 57.3% over
last year and comprised gross rental income of HK$327.3 million (2020:
HK$373.5 million), property sales of HK$235.4 million (2020: nil), gain on
sales of investments held-for-trading on a net basis of HK$183.9 million
(2020: HK$25.3 million), dividend income from listed and unlisted equity
investments of HK$169.5 million (2020: HK$1,973.2 million), interest
income from bonds and structured products of HK$315.5 million (2020:
HK$596.1 million), building and property management services income of
HK$50.1 million (2020: HK$53.2 million) and others of HK$18.1 million
(2020: HK$20.2 million). The decline in revenue was mainly due to the
decrease in dividend income from shares of China Evergrande Group (listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange")) (stock
code: 3333) (“China Evergrande”) (“Evergrande Shares”) for the Year.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$1,017.4 million (2020:
HK$2,961.5 million), a decrease of 65.6% as compared with last year
which was also mainly due to the decrease in dividend income from
the Evergrande Shares despite of the increase in property sales profit of
HK$17.3 million and increase in gain on sales of investments held-for-
trading of HK$158.6 million.

Property Leasing

For property leasing, the rental revenue in non-retail section decreased
by 17.0% to HK$250.8 million and retail section increased by 7.1% to
HK$76.5 million during the Year. The total rental income in revenue for the
Year recorded a decrease of 12.4% to HK$327.3 million as compared with
last year of HK$373.5 million. The decrease in rental income was mainly
due to an anchor tenant of an investment property in the United Kingdom
surrendered the lease in the year of 2020, if rental income from the anchor
tenant is excluded, the total rental revenue would record a decrease of 1.7%

as compared with last year.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

RESULTS (contd)

Property Leasing (Cont'd)

Together with the attributable rental revenue generated from associates
and an investee company of HK$104.0 million (2020: HK$94.3 million),
the total attributable rental revenue to the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the "Group”) amounted to HK$431.3 million (2020:

HK$467.8 million), which represents a decrease of 7.8% over last year.

Attributable net rental income for the Year showed HK$363.6 million, a

decrease of 6.6% over HK$389.5 million in last year.
Property Development and Trading

During the Year, sales of a house and certain parking spaces in Beijing, the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") recorded property sales revenue and
gross profit of HK$235.4 million and HK$17.3 million respectively (2020:

no disposal).

In respect of properties held by associates, sales of one unit of The
Hermitage in West Kowloon (25% interest) and one parking space of
Greenville Residence in Yuen Long (50% interest) generated profit of
HK$4.8 million and HK$0.2 million respectively as reflected in the share of
results of investments accounted for using the equity method. In respect
of properties held by an investee company, sales of 1,825 units and
certain parking spaces of Grand Central in Kwun Tong (10% interest) were
recorded by the investee company during the Year and will contribute profit

to the Group upon recognition of dividend income.

In summary, the Group together with its associates and investee company
recorded an attributable sales of HK$2,607.7 million for the Year.

Securities Investments

The Group has in the ordinary and usual course of business conducted
its securities investment activities, as at 31 December 2021, mainly
comprised bonds, listed equity investments and treasury products. During
the Year, the net loss (excluding gain/loss recognised in financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
reserve) recognised from securities investments and treasury products
was HK$1,995.5 million (2020: gain of HK$2,068.7 million), comprised
gain on listed equity investments at FVTOCI of HK$150.0 million (2020:
HK$1,936.3 million) and loss on investments and treasury products at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") of HK$2,145.5 million (2020: gain of
HK$132.4 million).
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW B # £ % 51 B8

RESULTS (contd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

During the Year, the Group disposed of listed investments held-for-trading
and recognised a realised gain of HK$183.9 million (2020: HK$25.3
million) (the gains/losses of which was included in revenue) with gross
proceeds of HK$3,977.7 million (2020: HK$365.2 million). During the
Year, the Group disposed of/redeemed 26 bonds (2020: 33 bonds)
(including those with partial disposal) with carrying amounts in the sum of
HK$2,165.9 million (2020: HK$7,305.7 million) and recorded a realised
loss of HK$1,668.0 million (2020: HK$436.7 million). During the Year, the
Group had acquired 6 bonds (2020: 22 bonds) in the sum of HK$1,419.4
million (2020: HK$2,039.6 million). In addition, realised loss on the
structured products of HK$13.5 million (2020: a minimal realised gain)

was recorded during the Year.

Furthermore, the Group recorded an unrealised loss of HK$947.7 million
(2020: unrealised gain of HK$0.3 million) mainly representing the changes
in fair value of bonds, listed equity investments and structured products,
which had no effect on the cash flow of the Group. The unrealised loss
of HK$606.9 million (2020: unrealised gain of HK$14.9 million) from
changes in fair value of bonds represented 12 bonds (2020: 27 bonds),
mainly comprising the unrealised loss from the industry of PRC-based real
estate of HK$607.1 million (2020: unrealised gain of HK$3.7 million)
or decrease in fair value of 70.4% (2020: increase of 0.1%) over the
Year. Of which, certain PRC-based real estate issuers had defaulted in
paying interest and/or repayment of principal generally for its offshore
United States dollar ("US$") bonds in 2021 and fair value of these bonds
decreased significantly. Further, allowance for credit losses of bond interest
receivables of HK$11.9 million were also made during the Year. In addition,
the Group believes that the decrease in price of bonds in the industry of
PRC-based real estate in the Year, among others, was owing to concerns
about the liquidity and going concern issues and the tightening gearing
policy over the real estate developers in the PRC. During the Year, the
Group also recorded unrealised loss on listed investments held-for-trading
and structured products of HK$339.6 million (2020: HK$12.7 million) and
HK$1.2 million (2020: HK$1.9 million) respectively.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

RESULTS (contd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

During the Year, interest income from bonds (which was included in
revenue) amounted to HK$305.0 million (2020: HK$585.7 million),
represented 10.9% (2020: 10.3%) (before effect on leverage) return
on average market value of bondholding during the Year. The decrease in
interest income from bonds was mainly due to disposals of debt securities
to Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (an executive director of the Company (“Executive
Director”) and the trustee of substantial shareholders of the Company)
in year 2020, details of the transaction were set out in the Company's
announcement dated 29 January 2020, circular dated 28 February 2020
and announcement dated 18 December 2020. The interest income
from structured products (which was included in revenue) amounted to
HK$10.5 million (2020: HK$10.4 million).

Summing up the realised and unrealised gain/loss and adding the net
income from net dividend income, interest income, other investment
income/expenses and net finance costs of HK$449.8 million (2020:
HK$2,479.8 million), the loss recognised from securities investments and
treasury products was HK$1,995.5 million (2020: gain of HK$2,068.7
million), of which net dividend income from the Evergrande Shares was
HK$156.5 million (2020: HK$1,967.6 million) for the Year.

The dividend income from listed equity investments of HK$168.3 million
(2020: HK$1,969.8 million) and interest income from bonds and
structured products of HK$315.5 million (2020: HK$596.1 million) were

recorded in revenue.

The respective income/expense from securities investments under different

categories are further elaborated below:

Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through Profit or

Loss

The investments and treasury products at FVTPL recorded a loss before
and after net finance costs of HK$2,138.0 million and HK$2,145.5 million
respectively (2020: profit before and after net finance costs of HK$184.9

million and HK$132.4 million respectively) for the Year.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW B # £ % 51 B8

RESULTS (contd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

The respective income/expense from securities investments under different

categories are further elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through Profit or
Loss (Cont'd)

Details of realised and unrealised gain/loss, interest and dividend income
by each type of bonds, listed investments held-for-trading and structured

products during the Year are shown below:
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Realised loss Unrealised (loss) gain Interest/dividend income Total (loss) profit
BEREE RER (BB WE HE/REBWA (B8) a2
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

ZB--f C—Z-%F  ZBC-f
HKS$ million HK$ millon ~ HK$ million
BEBER BEAT BEBR

Bond issuers by industry RESBTAZOE

Z“Z-%F  ZB--F 3R ZEC-f  CZZC-IE
HK$ million ~ HK$ million HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BERR BEET BEERT BEAT

Overseas financial institutions e 9.7 (255.3) 02 112 127 1147 226 (129.4)
PRG-based real estate hEEE (1,671.7) (137.7) (601.1) 37 2923 450 (1,9925) 3310
Others Eth - (43.7) - - - 60 - (377)
(1,668.0) (436.7) (606.9) 149 305.0* 5857 (19699) 1639
Listed investments BIFEEZLTRE
held-for-trading 183.9 253 (339.6) (127) 1.7 2.1 (144.0) 147
Structured products ERMER (13.5) - (12) (19) 105 104 (82) 85
(1,497.6) @14 (947.7) 03 12 5082 (2118.) 187.1
Other net investment expenses ~ EMEEHTFE (19.9)* 22
(Loss) profit before net finance SBERFEAL
costs (B8) a7 (2,138.0) 1849
Net finance costs UHERFE (1.5) (525)
(Loss) profit after net finance costs B EBRFBHGZ
(&) a7 (2,145.5) 1324
* allowance for credit losses recognised in respect of bond interest  * [E iR E X R85 | BB ES 2 BIRH B HER
receivables of HK$11.9 million was included in “other net investment Z 2B EBRE#E A11,900,000% T °

expenses”.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

RESULTS (contd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

The respective income/expense from securities investments under different

categories are further elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other

Comprehensive Income

@

®)

Implication on Profit or Loss for the Year

Dividend income, other investment income and relevant finance
costs of holding listed equity investments at FVTOCI were recognised
in profit or loss for the Year. During the Year, net dividend income
of HK$156.5 million (2020: HK$1,967.6 million) (after transaction
cost) from holding of 860,000,000 Evergrande Shares, net relevant
finance costs of HK$6.8 million (2020: HK$31.3 million) and other
investment income of HK$0.3 million (2020: nil) were recorded,
hence the results from listed equity investments at FVTOCI recorded
a net gain of HK$150.0 million (2020: HK$1,936.3 million).
Dividend income for the Year represented 2020 final dividend
(2020: 2019 and 2018 final dividends) from the Evergrande
Shares, the decrease was mainly due to the decrease in both China
Evergrande's profit attributable to the shareholders and its dividend
payout ratio (year 2020 was less than respective year 2019 and year
2018).

Implication on Other Comprehensive Expenses for the Year

During the Year, the Group through a series of transactions
disposed of certain Evergrande Shares in the open market of
the Stock Exchange and recorded a realised loss of HK$7,869.9
million (inclusive of transaction costs) (2020: another listed equity
investment at FVTOCI was disposed of and recorded a net realised
gain of HK$0.1 million). The unit share price of China Evergrande
had dropped from HK$14.90 as at 31 December 2020 to HK$1.59
as at 31 December 2021, or 89.3% over the Year, hence an
unrealised loss on fair value change of the remaining Evergrande
Shares of HK$3,051.9 million (2020: unrealised loss on fair value
change of 860,000,000 Evergrande Shares of HK$5,762.0 million)
was recognised in other comprehensive expenses. The Group
believes that the decrease in share price of China Evergrande for the
Year, among others, was owing to liquidity and going concern issues,
decline in profitability and reduced dividend payout ratio of China
Evergrande, and the tightening gearing policy over the real estate
developers in the PRC. Realised gain/loss on fair value change is a
cash item while unrealised fair value change is a non-cash item and
will not affect the cash flow of the Group.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

RESULTS (contd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

The respective income/expense from securities investments under different
categories are further elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Bt %5 38 75 [0 R

Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income (Cont'd)

The performance of listed equity investments at FVTOCI — the Evergrande
Shares during the Year are summarised as follows:

At 31 December 2020

Disposal
Realised fair value change
Unrealised fair value change

Transfer to retained profits upon
disposal

Net dividend income

Other investment income

Net finance costs

Profit/other comprehensive
expenses for the Year

At 31 December 2021

Percentage to total assets
At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020
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Recorded in Recorded in
consolidated statement of consolidated statement of
financial position comprehensive income
BFAGEBERRHR BFAGEEANRER
Financial Financial
assets assets
measured measured at
at fair value fair value Other
through other  through other comprehensive
Closing price  comprehensive  comprehensive Profit expenses
(per share) income  income reserve for the Year for the Year
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e T W R
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

RESULTS (contd)

Other Income and Expenses

During the Year, the Group recorded other income of HK$63.2 million
(2020: HK$281.3 million). The decrease was mainly due to the amount
of dilapidations settlement received from tenants in respect of investment
properties in the United Kingdom reduced to HK$0.4 million (2020:
surrender premium and dilapidations settlement in aggregate of HK$249.8
million, mainly represented the amount received in respect of an anchor
tenant of an investment property in the United Kingdom surrendered the

lease which was an one-off item).

During the Year, administrative expenses increased by 7.5% to HK$344.5
million (2020: HK$320.6 million). The increase in administrative expenses
was mainly due to increase in depreciation expenses of HK$36.6 million.
Finance costs decreased by 51.5% to HK$104.5 million (2020: HK$215.6
million) during the Year, including exchange loss of HK$3.8 million (2020:
HK$13.1 million) on translation of foreign currency other borrowings
hedged for foreign currency securities investments and exchange loss of
HK$1.8 million on translation of foreign currency bank borrowing (2020:
HK$7.1 million on translation of foreign currency bank borrowing and loan).
The decrease in finance costs was mainly due to the decrease in average

total borrowings and average interest rates during the Year.

Other gains and losses for the Year recorded a minimal loss (2020: loss of

HK$4.9 million mainly comprised write-down of stock of properties).

Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method

The share of results of investments accounted for using the equity method
for the Year recorded a loss from the share of results of associates of
HK$106.7 million (2020: HK$38.4 million comprised loss from the share
of results of associates of HK$35.6 million and a joint venture of HK$2.8
million). The increase in loss from the share of results of associates was
mainly due to recognition of an impairment loss by an associate despite of
the decrease in loss on fair value change of investment properties held by

associates.
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RESULTS (contd)

Fair Value Changes on Investment Properties

Investment properties of the Group in Hong Kong and Mainland China and
one of the investment properties in the United Kingdom were revalued at
31 December 2021 by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited (“LCH (Asia-
Pacific)”) whereas the remaining investment properties in the United
Kingdom were revalued by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision
Appraisals”). LCH (Asia-Pacific) and Peak Vision Appraisals are independent
property valuers. An unrealised loss on fair value changes of investment
properties of HK$1,376.6 million (2020: HK$1,549.2 million) was
recorded during the Year. The unrealised fair value change is a non-cash

item and will not affect the cash flow of the Group.

LOSS/PROFIT, CORE LOSS/PROFIT,
DIVIDENDS, REPURCHASE, CASH PAYMENT
RATIO AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
EXPENSES

Loss/Profit

Loss for the Year attributable to owners of the Company was HK$3,515.3
million as compared to profit of HK$622.2 million for last year. The turmning
from profit to loss for the Year was mainly due to (a) decrease in net
dividend income from the Evergrande Shares; (b) results in the segment of
investments and treasury products at FVTPL turned from profit to loss; and
(c) decrease in dilapidations settlement received from tenants in respect
of investment properties in the United Kingdom during the Year. Loss per
share for the Year was HK$1.84 (2020: earnings per share of HK$0.33).

Core Loss/Profit

If the net loss on the major non-cash items of HK$1,395.9 million (2020:
HK$1,605.1 million) is excluded but the share of accumulated realised fair
value gain recognised in prior years on disposal of an investment property
of an associate of HK$0.8 million (2020: nil) is included, the Group will
have a core loss for the Year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$2,118.6 million (2020: core profit of HK$2,227.3 million) and a core
loss per share of HK$1.11 (2020: core profit per share of HK$1.17).

The major non-cash items represented the attributable net unrealised fair
value loss on investment properties together with their respective deferred
tax (if any) from the Group and its associates of HK$1,395.9 million (2020:
from the Group and its associates and joint venture of HK$1,605.1 million).
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

LOSS/PROFIT, CORE LOSS/PROFIT,
DIVIDENDS, REPURCHASE, CASH PAYMENT
RATIO AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
EXPENSES (Cont'd)

Dividends

Final dividend of HK1 cent (year ended 31 December 2019: HK1
cent) per share in total amount of HK$19.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was paid in cash on 11 June 2021 and no
interim dividend for 2021 (half year ended 30 June 2020: HK1 cent per
share).

Total dividend of HK$19.1 million was paid in cash during the Year.

Repurchase

During the Year, the Company had not repurchased any of the Company's
share.

Cash Payment Ratio

Based on (a) the core loss for the Year of HK$2,118.6 million or HK$1.11
per share (2020: core profit of HK$2,227.3 million or HK$1.17 per share);
and (b) no final dividend (2020: cash final dividend of HK1 cent per
share) proposed; and (c) no interim dividend (2020: cash interim dividend
of HK1 cent per share) paid, the cash payment ratio is undefined as a
result of core loss for the Year (2020: ratio of cash payment to the core

profit was 1.7%).

Total Comprehensive Expenses

Total comprehensive expenses for the Year attributable to owners of
the Company was HK$14,375.7 million or HK$7.54 per share (2020:
HK$4,978.6 million or HK$2.61 per share), which comprised (a) loss for
the Year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$3,515.3 million
(2020: profit of HK$622.2 million); and (b) other comprehensive expenses
for the Year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$10,860.4
million (2020: HK$5,600.8 million) which mainly included realised loss
of HK$7,869.9 million (2020: nil) and unrealised loss of HK$3,051.9
million (2020: HK$5,762.0 million) on fair value changes of listed equity
investment at FVTOCI, details are disclosed in the sub-paragraph headed
“Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive
Income (b) Implication on Other Comprehensive Expenses for the Year” of

paragraph headed “Securities Investments” above.
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NET ASSET VALUE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's net asset value attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to HK$14,375.6 million (2020:
HK$28,758.8 million), a decrease of HK$14,383.2 million or 50.0% when
compared with 31 December 2020. With the total number of ordinary
shares in issue of 1,907,619,079 as at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the net asset value per share attributable to owners of the Company
was HK$7.54 (2020: HK$15.08). The movement in net asset value was
mainly due to (a) total comprehensive expenses for the Year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$14,375.7 million; (b) final dividend
recognised as distribution during the Year totaling of HK$19.1 million;
and (c) forfeiture of unclaimed dividends recorded in retained profits of
HK$11.6 million.

During the Year, loss on fair value changes of listed equity investment
categorised as financial assets measured at FVTOCI of HK$10,921.8
million (2020: HK$5,761.9 million) was recorded in other comprehensive
expenses, and the Group transferred the negative balance of the financial
assets measured at FVTOCI reserve of the disposed listed equity investment
of HK$9,219.0 million to retained profits. The cumulative amount of loss
on fair value changes of listed equity investment included in financial assets
measured at FVTOCI reserve as at 31 December 2021 was HK$2,484.8
million (2020: HK$782.0 million).

Other than the existing projects and those disclosed in the final results, the
Group did not have material acquisition or disposal of assets and any future
plans for material investment or capital assets.

SECURITIES INVESTMENTS

The Group's strategy is to maintain securities investment portfolio for
treasury management and invest in securities investments and treasury
products with attractive yield and good prospect in order to bring stable
and satisfactory realised return in long run. During the Year, the Group
diversified the bonds portfolio comprised of the bonds issued by overseas
financial institutions and PRC-based real estate companies.

As at 31 December 2021, the portfolio of securities investments and
treasury products of HK$1,066.0 million (2020: HK$16,306.8 million)
comprised (a) bonds, listed investments held-for-trading and structured
products (presented as financial assets measured at FVTPL (non-current
and current assets)) in aggregate of HK$701.4 million (2020: HK$3,492.8
million); and (b) listed equity investment (presented as financial assets
measured at FVTOCI) of HK$364.6 million (2020: HK$12,814.0 million),
representing 4.9% (2020: 43.5%) of total assets.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

The respective securities investments under different categories are

elaborated below:

Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other

Comprehensive Income

In prior years, the Group had acquired 860,000,000 shares of China
Evergrande and recorded as financial assets measured at FVTOCI. During
the Year, the Group disposed of 630,703,000 shares of China Evergrande.
Hence, the Group held 229,297,000 shares of China Evergrande as at
31 December 2021, representing approximately 1.7% of the total issued

share capital of China Evergrande as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, the cumulative unrealised loss on fair value
change of the Evergrande Shares was HK$782.0 million and the carrying
amount of the Evergrande Shares was HK$12,814.0 million. After
deducting the carrying amount of HK$1,530.4 million upon disposal,
together with realised and unrealised fair value losses of HK$10,919.0
million for the Year, the carrying amount of the Evergrande Shares as at
31 December 2021 was HK$364.6 million, representing 1.7% (2020:
34.2%) of total assets. The cumulative unrealised loss on fair value change
of the Evergrande Shares was increased from HK$782.0 million as at
31 December 2020 to HK$2,484.8 million as at 31 December 2021,

which was recorded in the financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve.

China Evergrande group is principally engaged in, among other things,
property development, property investment and property management
in the PRC. According to the audited consolidated financial statements of
China Evergrande for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
revenue and profit attributable to shareholders were Renminbi (“RMB")
507.2 billion (2019: RMB477.6 billion) and RMB8.1 billion (2019:
RMB17.3 billion) respectively; while the total assets and total equity were
RMB2,301.2 billion (2019: RMB2,206.6 billion) and RMB350.4 billion
(2019: RMB358.5 billion) respectively, the net debt was RMB535.8 billion
(2019: RMB571.1 billion). In accordance with the unaudited consolidated
financial statements of China Evergrande for the six months ended 30 June
2021, the revenue and profit attributable to shareholders were RMB222.7
billion and RMB14.4 billion respectively; while the total assets and total
equity were RMB2,377.6 billion and RMB411.0 billion respectively, the net
debt was RMB410.1 billion. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

The respective securities investments under different categories are
elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through Profit or
Loss

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the bonds presented as
financial assets measured at FVTPL was HK$3,287.6 million. During the
Year, the bonds portfolio was decreased by a net disposal of HK$746.5
million. After deducting the fair value loss of HK$2,274.9 million recognised
in profit or loss, the bonds portfolio of the Group became HK$266.2 million
as at 31 December 2021, representing 1.2% (2020: 8.8%) of total assets,
which formed part of the Group’s cash management activities.

As at 31 December 2021, the bonds portfolio comprised of 12 bonds
(2020: 27 bonds). In terms of credit rating, non-investment grade and
unrated were 9 bonds and 3 bonds (2020: 18 bonds and 9 bonds)
respectively. In terms of maturity, 1 bond (2020: 5 bonds) was (were)
contingent convertible bond(s) issued by overseas financial institution(s)
which was (were) perpetual with no fixed tenor, 11 bonds (2020: 22
bonds) issued by issuers in the industry of PRC-based real estate of which
10 bonds will be matured between 2022 to 2024 and 1 bond was
matured (2020: 21 bonds would be matured between 2021 to 2025 and
remaining 1 bond was perpetual bond).

Details and movement of the bonds portfolio at the end of the reporting
period are set out below:

Movement of bonds portfolio BHEEEZEE

Carrying amounts REE

At 31 December 2020 R-F_FF+_H=+—H

Purchases A

Disposals HE

Fair value changes N EEE

(recognised in profit or loss) (REZEANER)

At 31 December 2021 R-ZB-_—-%+-A=+—H

Percentage to total assets HEELEz2ADL

At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+=-HA=+—8H

At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZTF+=-—A=+—H
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Overseas

financial PRC-based

institutions real estate Total

BN AR FEEE #zE

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BEAT BEAT

309.5 2,978.1 3,287.6

= 1,419.4 1,419.4

(308.1) (1,857.8) (2,165.9)

9.9 (2,284.8) (2,274.9)

113 254.9 266.2

0.0% 1.2% 1.2%

0.8% 8.0% 8.8%
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HHEERE @
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

The respective securities investments under different categories are
elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through Profit or BEBSURMATEZRERMEER(E)
Loss (Cont'd)

Details and movement of the bonds portfolio at the end of the reporting ~ R¥REBREHMEE 2B RESEINMT  (B)
period are set out below: (Cont'd)

At 31 December 2020
RZEZEF+ZA=+—H

At 31 December 2021
RZB=Z-%+=ZA=+-H

Percentage Percentage
HK$ million to total HK$ million to total
BEERT {HRBEzZEAN BEAT MEBEZASK
Bond issuers by industry RESFBITAZTE
Carrying amounts FEE
Overseas financial institutions BINE R 254.9 95.8% 309.5 9.49
PRC-based real estate FREEE 1.3 4.2% 2,978.1 90.6%
266.2 100.0% 3,287.6 100.0%
At 31 December 2021 At 31 December 2020
R=B=-$+=A=t-H RZEZZF+-A=+—H
Coupon rate Percentage Coupon rate Percentage
(per annum) HK$ million to total (per annum) HK$ million to total
ZEERE BERRT HAEZESL B BEAT (HREBEZADL
Bonds by currency REF2EY
Carrying amounts REE
Us$ e 8.600% to 254.9 95.8% 7.000% to 3,004.6 91.4%
13.000% 13.000%
8.600E = 7000EZE
13.000E 13.000/2
Pound Sterling ("GBP") ES(ES ) 7.125% 113 4.2% 5.875% to 262.6 8.0%
1.125E 7.250%
5875EE
72502
Euro BT - - 6.125% 204 0.6%
6.125
266.2 100.0% 3,287.6 100.0%

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held investments held-for-trading of
HK$428.4 million (2020: HK$152.7 million), of which HK$194.3 million
(2020: HK$85.3 million) were listed shares in Hong Kong and HK$234.1
million (2020: HK$67.4 million) were listed shares in elsewhere.

RZZE-_—F+-_A=+—8 AEEHEH
EEBE 2% E428,400,000B L (ZE -84 :
152,700,000 7T) + & 194,300,000 T (= F
ZZ4F 185,300,000 L) ZRHREE LT R
234,100,000 7T (ZE =F % : 67,400,000/ 7T) 2
BN E MR L -

CEC-FFHR EABXEE
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

Unlisted Securities Investments

The Group invested in an exempted limited partnership formed under
the Exempted Limited Partnership Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands
(presented as financial assets measured at FVTOCI) and the carrying
amount was HK$488.6 million as at 31 December 2020. During the Year,
the Group has contributed US$1.2 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$9.0 million), after deducting the fair value loss for the Year of HK$71.7
million (which was recognised in financial assets measured at FVTOCI
reserve), the carrying amount was HK$425.9 million as at 31 December
2021, representing 2.0% (2020: 1.3%) of total assets.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate risk management procedures that
enable it to identify, measure, monitor and control various types of risk it
faces. This is supplemented by active management involvement, effective
internal controls and adequate internal audit in the best interests of the

Group.
EQUITY

The number of issued ordinary shares as at 31 December 2021 and 2020
were 1,907,619,079.

DEBT AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's total debt amounted to HK$5,515.2
million (2020: HK$7,389.0 million), comprised bank borrowings of
HK$5,455.5 million (2020: bank and other borrowings of HK$7,263.8
million) and lease liabilities amounted to HK$59.7 million (2020:
HK$125.2 million). Cash and deposits at banks amounted to HK$2,479.9
million (2020: HK$1,654.5 million), pledged deposits amounted to
HK$277.5 million (2020: HK$260.5 million) and net debt (including lease
liabilities) amounted to HK$2,757.8 million (2020: HK$5,474.0 million).

Total debt to equity ratio (including lease liabilities) was 38.3% (2020:
25.7%) and net debt to equity ratio (including lease liabilities) was 19.2%
(2020: 19.0%), which are expressed as a percentage of total debt, and
net debt, respectively, over the total equity of HK$14,398.8 million (2020:
HK$28,780.3 million). The increase in total debt to equity ratio was mainly

due to decrease in total equity.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW

DEBT AND GEARING (contd)

If the securities investments and treasury products of HK$1,066.0 million
(2020: HK$16,306.8 million) are included, the net debt to equity ratio

would be 11.8% (2020: net cash position of HK$10,832.8 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank borrowings of HK$5,455.5
million, 66.8%, 5.8% and 27.4% were repayable within 1 year, 1 to 2
years and 2 to 5 years respectively. Of which the Group’s bank borrowings
were denominated in HK$ (27.0%), GBP (50.3%) and US$ (22.7%)
before entering the cross currency swap. During the Year, the Group has
entered into short term US$/HK$ cross currency swap to enhance interest
payable on borrowing, and as at 31 December 2021, notional amount
of approximately US$159.0 million was outstanding. As at 31 December
2021, the Group's bank borrowings were carried at interest rates calculated
with reference to cost of funds, Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate, London
Interbank Offered Rate or compounded reference rate and all the Group's
bank borrowings were on floating rate basis. Except as disclosed, no

hedging for interest rate is subsisted at the end of the reporting period.
PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had pledged the following assets with

their respective carrying amounts:

(@) The Group's investment properties of HK$11,334.9 million (2020:
HK$12,387.0 million), properties of HK$42.9 million (2020: nil) and
bank deposits of HK$277.5 million (2020: HK$233.2 million) were
pledged to the banks to secure general banking facilities granted to

the Group.

(b) As at 31 December 2021, none of securities investment were
pledged (2020: the Group's bonds, listed equity investments and
structured product with carrying amounts of HK$12,877.3 million
and cash deposits of HK$27.3 million were pledged to the financial
institutions to secure margin and securities facilities granted to the
Group in respect of securities transactions, of which HK$1,074.1
million was utilised as at 31 December 2020 as borrowings due

within one year).

(¢) Interests in certain subsidiaries of the Company have been pledged
as part of the security to secure certain bank borrowings granted to

the Group.

$t %5 38 75 [0 R
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FINANCIAL AND INTEREST INCOME/EXPENSES

Interest income was included in revenue and investment expenses, net.
Interest income for the Year decreased to HK$320.4 million (2020:
HK$603.4 million), representing a decrease of 46.9% as compared with
last year which was mainly due to the decrease in bonds portfolio and

hence its relevant interest income during the Year.

Finance costs included interest expenses on bank and other borrowings
and lease liabilities; exchange difference on translation of foreign
currency borrowings; and arrangement fee and facility and commitment
fee expenses. Interest expenses (excluding interest expenses on lease
liabilities) for the Year amounted to HK$89.0 million, representing a
decrease of 52.0% over last year of HK$185.4 million. Interest capitalised
for the Year was HK$2.3 million (2020: HK$2.8 million). The decrease
in interest expenses was mainly due to the decrease in average total
borrowings and interest rates during the Year. The average interest rate over
the year under review was 1.29% (2020: 1.99%), which was expressed
as a percentage of total interest paid (excluding interest on lease liabilities)

over the average total interest-bearing borrowings.
REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of 474 staff (2020:
475 staff) including about 236 staff (2020: 236 staff) employed under the
estate management company in Hong Kong and 5 staff (2020: 1 staff) in
the United Kingdom.

Employees were remunerated on the basis of their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. Remuneration packages
comprised salary and year-end discretionary bonus based on market
conditions and individual performance. The Executive Directors continued
to review employees’ contributions and to provide them with necessary

incentives and flexibility for their better commitment and performance.
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UNITED KINGDOM AND MAINLAND CHINA

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's investment properties (excluding
properties occupied for own use) in the United Kingdom with carrying
amount of GBP645.8 million (equivalent to approximately HK$6,799.6
million) (2020: GBP719.7 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$7,614.2 million)) incurred a net loss of HK$843.8 million (2020:
HK$396.7 million) to the Group for the Year, the loss mainly included in
gross profit, other income, fair value changes on investment properties,
administrative expenses, finance costs and taxation. GBP exchange loss of
foreign operations included in other comprehensive expenses for the Year
amounted to HK$30.0 million (2020: exchange gain of HK$132.5 million).
As at 31 December 2021, the Group's net investment in the United
Kingdom amounted to HK$4,226.4 million (2020: HK$4,025.4 million)
representing 29.4% (2020: 14.0%) of the Group's total equity.

Loss incurred by the Group's investment in Mainland China (mainly
included in gross profit, fair value changes on investment properties, share
of results of investments accounted for using the equity method and
taxation) for the Year amounted to HK$135.7 million (2020: HK$44.3
million). RMB exchange gain of foreign operations included in other
comprehensive expenses (including share of investments accounted for
using the equity method) for the Year amounted to HK$11.9 million (2020:
HK$30.0 million). The Group's net investment in Mainland China as at
31 December 2021 amounted to HK$392.5 million (2020: HK$518.1
million) representing 2.7% (2020: 1.8%) of the Group's total equity.
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PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuations in respect of the Group's investment properties in Hong
Kong, Mainland China and one of investment properties in the United
Kingdom as at 31 December 2021 were carried out by LCH (Asia-Pacific),
an independent qualified professional property valuer. For the remaining
investment properties in the United Kingdom, the property valuations as
at 31 December 2021 were carried out by Peak Vision Appraisals, another
independent qualified professional property valuer (2020: investment
properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China were carried out by B.I.
Appraisals Limited and investment properties in the United Kingdom
were carried by Peak Vision Appraisals, both are independent qualified
professional property valuers). Their valuations were based on investment
method and/or direct comparison method and/or residual method as the

valuation methodologies and were used in preparing 2021 final results.

The Group's investment properties were valued at HK$13,292.2 million
(2020: HK$14,373.3 million), a decrease of 9.5% over 2020 after
adjusted for the additions, acquisition, transfer and exchange adjustments
of investment properties during the Year. The decrease in fair value of
HK$1,376.6 million was recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the Year. The Group also shared a decrease in
fair value of investment properties of associates of HK$19.3 million for the

Year.

The decrease in fair value of HK$1,376.6 million was mainly derived from
the decrease in fair value of River Court in the United Kingdom. The global
outbreak and persistence of COVID-19 pandemic has adversely affected
the fair value of investment properties of the Group. The fair value change

is a non-cash item and will not affect the cash flow of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) and management of
the Company (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) are committed to
principles of good corporate governance so as to safeguard the interests of

shareholders and enhance value to the shareholders.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021 (the "Year"), the Company
had applied the principles and complied with substantial code provisions
(the “Code Provisions”") and certain recommended best practices set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Board currently comprised three Executive Directors (“ED(s)"), two
Non-executive Directors (“NED(s)") and three Independent Non-executive
Directors ("INED(s)"), with INEDs representing more than one-third of the
Board. Names of each member of the Board are set out in this Corporate
Governance Report. Changes of the composition of the Board during the

Year are set out in the Directors’ Report of this annual report.

During the Year, Mr. Lau, Ming-wai acted as the Chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) and Ms. Chan, Sze-wan acted as the Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ") until 16 February 2021. Following the resignation of Ms. Chan,
Sze-wan as CEO on 17 February 2021, Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan was appointed
as the CEO. The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separated and

their respective roles and responsibilities were set out in writing.

“List of Directors and their Role and Function” has been maintained at
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Directors’
biographies and the relationship among the Board members, if any, are
set out in the Profiles of Directors of this annual report and available on
the Company's website. Save as disclosed in such profiles, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship among the

Directors.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Responsibilities of Directors

The NEDs and INEDs with diversified expertise, skills and experience play
an important role on formulating strategy and ensuring that the Board
maintains high standards of corporate governance as well as taking
the lead where potential conflict of interests arises. INEDs bring strong
independent judgement, knowledge and experience to the Board. The
Board has received from each INED a written annual confirmation of his/
her independence and satisfied that the independence of INEDs up to the

date of this annual report is in accordance with the Listing Rules.

On monthly basis, senior management provides the Directors with
operational and financial reports of the Group's performance, position and
prospects. All Directors are kept informed of and duly briefed of major
changes and information that may affect the Group’s businesses in a timely

manner.

Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional advice
in performing their duties at the Company's expense and are encouraged
to access and consult with the Company's senior management or the

company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) independently.
Retirement by Rotation and Specific Term of Office

The Company's Bye-laws provides that no Director (save for the executive
chairman and any managing director) shall hold office for a continuous
period in excess of three years, or past the third annual general meeting,
following the Directors’ appointment or re-election, whichever is longer,
without submitting himself/herself for re-election by the shareholders at
the annual general meetings. Accordingly, Directors shall retire by rotation
at least once every three years and a specific term of office has been fixed
for appointment of Directors. During the Year, there was no executive

chairman or managing director in the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD (contd)

Board Meetings

The Board met regularly throughout the Year to discuss the overall strategy,
the operational and financial performance of the Group. Four regular
Board meetings were held during the Year. Advance notices of not less
than fourteen days were served upon each Director for regular Board
meetings. All accompanying Board papers were sent to the Directors in a
timely manner and at least three days before the meetings (or such other
period as agreed). Adequate explanation and information were given to the
Directors by the management to facilitate the Directors in decision-making.
Each Director has to declare his/her interest and abstain from voting on
any resolution in which he/she or any of his/her associate has a material
interest in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company and the Listing

Rules.

The agenda of each Board meeting is set by the Chairman in consultation
with members of the Board such that they are given an opportunity to
include agenda items. Draft and executed Board minutes were sent in
good time to all Directors for their comments and records. Minutes of the
Board meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company

Secretary.
Board and Management Functions

The functions reserved to the Board are basically provided in the Bye-
laws of the Company and the Board from time to time delegates certain
functions to senior management whenever required. In short, the Board
has reserved for its decision on matters relating to the Group's strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, major capital expenditure, annual and
interim results, Directors’ appointment and other significant financial and

operational issues.

On top of daily business operation, senior management is responsible for
the preparation of annual and interim consolidated financial statements
for the Board's approval, execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate system of internal
control and sound risk management practices and is required to report to
the Board and obtain its prior approval on important matters at all times.
Notwithstanding the delegation, the Directors acknowledge that it is the
responsibility of the Board for preparing the financial statements, which give

a true and fair view of the financial results of the Group.

TEERBESE

\

il

EEgRNAFEAEHRERNI A EEEERE -
BERMBRE - ARARAFERTORERE
2283  BIEHEZSSINCRSERHL
TORTOBZAE - IARBEEXHFHERE
ABIARI=ZA(HEMBEZ R REFEX2%
EX -PHEREFRIXATHEERER  UEE
EEHARR - REFARBARFT ZARMAA R L

RBR - RREFBURERER -

RETEFEKEBHRTIEFCERRMIFTHIH
T EEEQRCHERERIREAETENER
RE EFRERNBZIRAERCEREZES
B UHREEHERLFRE - ARWEAAR
FHEAEANCEFTE ORI -

ARBZRBAMBAERLEIREEGZREE - M
EXEERFETHBETREZUSREERSE -
BMEz EFTSCEEWAKRERRE T2UER
HE BEAEAHY  FERTHES EF2Z
EREMBEAMBREEEE LRERKE -

BRAFEBLEIN  SREEETARREFER
THEAMBERERRESSIE  RITEFTSRM
ZEBRBE LB  BTZEZABEERERGRIE
RzRREREF  WEEABERLTAREKRER
MEESEFMBMEEELLLE - BEFELHER
EEHRAREEEANTFHRBMAEEGHEEZ
BBBRDEEGZHE -

m

SE N

43



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ ERHES

THE BOARD (contd) EEgw
Directors’ Training and Support EERIIREE

The Company encourages its Directors to possess up-to-date knowledge AR A HE S EEH I ZE ST N UET LB
in order to discharge their duties. Information regarding major changes in & > BRAE SIS R E XD & L8 BIA R H Ab 3k
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Listing Rules as well as other & /{&fl,JRAIEAZ B 2 EHCRETEES -
laws/rules/regulations had been provided to the Directors.

During the Year, the Company has arranged a webinar training session ~RAEE - AARABESLH T — /B LT S5
for the Directors namely “Ethics Legacy — Ethical and Governance Roles  #l » BAIE#SE - LT ARZEERSHEEAEN
of Directors and Senior Management of Publicly Listed Companies”. #{EEaAE] - HILFRF  EECRAAQREHE
Meanwhile, Directors had provided their record of trainings to the 12358k - EFERAEFMB A HFII R IAER
Company. The Board considered the trainings attended by the Directors are  SETHBE - ESNATERNMS B2 FIIRE
sufficient to discharge their duties. A summary of the trainings attended by~ #AF -

the Directors during the Year is as follows:

Training Matters 3Z 5| =18

Business/

Regulatory/ Accounting/ Economic/

Corporate Legal Tax/Finance Management
Governance EEEHRE &/ [SE
Name of Directors EEHS TEER EE BB KEEE
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan* FREFREZZ L* = = = €
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan FRYLERZ T a a = €
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan [t o a a = €
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai A4 a&ec a&ec a&c c
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai By et a a = c
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai A EEL+ a a - C
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai PR BU (& Sc £ a,bs&c a,b&c c c
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping BENYZL a,b&c a&ec b&c b&c
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun BRELE a&ec a&c c ab&c
Notes: B3
Training Method 1= =
a:  attending seminar/webinar/workshop/work meeting a: 2HEMFe @LWse ITES/ TR
b:  E-Training/training b: #LEEILE
¢ self-reading ¢ BiTHE
* Resigned on 17 February 2021 e R-ZEZ—F-RA++HEME
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BOARD COMMITTEES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT {#¥ERBEE
EEESEZEY
BEEgNL TERELZEY - REEE

The Board has established Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”) with
clear written terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms than
those set out in the CG Code. Details of the respective committee’s terms
of reference are available at the Company's and the Stock Exchange's
websites. All the INEDs, i.e. Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-
ping and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun are members of the Board Committees with
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai acts as chairman of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee while Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping acts as chairman
of the Nomination Committee. The members of Audit Committee possess
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or related financial

management expertise, which is higher than the Listing Rules’ requirement.

All accompanying meeting papers were sent to the members in a timely
manner and at least three days before the meetings (or such other period
as agreed). Draft and executed minutes of the meetings were sent in
good time to all members for their comments and records. Minutes of
the meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company
Secretary. Professional advice and sufficient resources would be given
whenever necessary to allow the Board Committees to discharge their

duties.

Audit Committee

Role and Function

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Group's corporate
governance, financial reporting, risk management and internal control. It

plays an advisory role and makes relevant recommendations to the Board.

Meetings

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year, with the
presence of the representative(s) of the Group's internal audit department
(the “Internal Audit Department”) in those meetings involving discussion
on internal audit reports prepared by Internal Audit Department. Senior
management was co-opted to join the meetings of the Audit Committee
to explain the financial and business conditions of the Group to the

committee members from time to time.

FMEZBEE X
eHEEFERTRES)) B
REEZ GFRTER TR TRIFME - é@%@ZH&
HEEFBAINRARRRNERZAEGHE - A0
ZERBUIENTES  ARBEESLSE - ﬁﬁ%@iﬁﬁ
TRERELE  AREFERTLZBENE &
qﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ%imf{%ﬁéﬁmﬁ%’r%\éﬁMEW:

MEBFXTHERBZESIR - ERZEEK
BARBEENEXER S ERMBEREE
HF o WEMRAUZERES -

_u_E

FIEMEBERXMHERERRTARI =B EH
RELHE)REEXZZKE - BELHE TR
RERTERFASERBEUHRBEFRHER LT
1B RRWERRRTHAMRMASH 2 HLHE -
EXERTZRENFERERHEXEALTR
BIR - LGEHE Hﬁki

BEREES

9

A N e

BRZEGRAEN RIFEEZLEEL ¥
HER RREERAMEE BRREQETE
At THEESRMARES -

%
e

ERZEENAFERTOREH  AREANLE
ZER (AR =R )) < KR INE /7 6 B = R i &P
BN ERZABEZRE 2GR - SRERET
THERHFEEZZREEEE  MZBEKERE
REEE 2 A7 R RGO o

—-EEH A

Exsm 45



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT H¥ERBEE

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)
Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Works Performed

The works performed by the Audit Committee in the Year are summarised

below:

(1)  reviewed the Group's final and interim results and draft consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
and for the six months ended 30 June 2021 respectively before
recommending them to the Board for approval, with the presence of
the Company's external auditors (the “Independent Auditors”) in the

meeting reviewing final results;

(2) reviewed the overall performance including the performance of

investment properties and development properties of the Group;

(3) reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and the requirements of the Listing Rules and statutory

compliance;

(4) recommended to the Board the re-appointment of the Independent

Auditors for shareholders" approval;

(5) reviewed the Group's internal control, risk management, financial

reporting and auditing matters;

(6) reviewed and discussed significant audit findings in a meeting with

the presence of Independent Auditors;

(7) prepared and submitted to the Board an audit committee report
detailing the works performed by the Audit Committee during 2020,
presented its findings and made recommendations to the Board for

consideration;

(8) carried out annual review on the continuing connected transactions

of the Group;
(9) reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of

staff of the Group's accounting, financial reporting and internal audit

functions, and their training programmes and budget;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)

Works Performed (Cont'd)

(10)

an

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

a7

(18)

(19)

(20)

@n

(22)

(23)

discussed with Independent Auditors the nature and scope of the
annual audit and reporting obligations of the Independent Auditors
for the Year; reviewed and approved the terms of engagement

letters, and fees for audit and non-audit services for the Year;
reviewed the arrangement for employees to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other

related matters;

reviewed and discussed internal audit reports prepared by Internal

Audit Department;

considered and approved the internal audit plan for the year 2022;
reviewed the effectiveness of internal audit function;

reviewed the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance, compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report;

reviewed the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and the compliance of such

policies and practices;

reviewed the code of conduct for the Directors and the compliance

of such code;

reviewed the code of practice for employees;

reviewed the sufficiency of training and continuous professional

development for the Directors and senior executives;

reviewed the progress of risk management;

reviewed the effectiveness and adequacy of risk management and

internal control systems;

reviewed the impact of adoption of new Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards; and

established the Company's whistleblowing policy.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT #¥EA

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)
Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Works Performed (Cont'd)

In March 2022, the Audit Committee reviewed (i) the Group's final results
and draft audited consolidated financial statements for the Year; (i) the
Company's compliance with the CG Code during the Year and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report; (iii) the sufficiency of training and
continuous professional development for Directors and senior executives
for the Year; (iv) the effectiveness and adequacy of risk management
and internal control systems for the Year; and (v) the effectiveness of
internal audit function of the Group for the Year. The Audit Committee also
made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring
Independent Auditors for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “2022 AGM").

Independent Auditors

In order to enhance independent reporting by Independent Auditors, the
engagement director of the Independent Auditors is subject to periodical
rotation, and the nature and ratio of annual fees payable to Independent
Auditors for non-audit services and for audit services are subject to scrutiny
by the Audit Committee. A policy of non-audit services from Independent
Auditors was established. The Audit Committee considers whether there
is clear efficiency and value-added benefit to the Company from that
work being undertaken by the Independent Auditors; whether there is
adverse effect on the independence of their audit work or the perception
of such independence; the nature of the non-audit services envisaged
to be provided by the Independent Auditors; and the related fee levels
individually and in aggregate relative to the audit fees. In addition, a
policy restricting the employment of employees or former employees of
Independent Auditors as senior executives or financial positions with the

Group has also been in place.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)
Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Independent Auditors (Cont'd)

During the Year, the Independent Auditors had been engaged in providing
non-audit services in relation to (i) annual review of continuing connected
transactions at a fee of HK$100,000; (i) a project in relation to disposal of
notes at a fee of HK$400,000; (iii) a project in relation to disposal of listed
securities at a fee of HK$300,000; and (iv) a project in relation to proposed
privatisation at a fee of HK$2,300,000. The audit fees of the Independent
Auditors for auditing the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Year was HK$2,100,500. The relevant engagement letters had been

reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

Prior to the commencement of the audit of accounts of the Group, the
Audit Committee had reviewed the Independent Auditors’ independence
and objectivity as required under the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, reviewed the terms of their engagement as well as the nature

and scope of the audit and reporting obligations.

The Audit Committee was satisfied with the findings of their review of the
engagement process, effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the

Independent Auditors.
Remuneration Committee
Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing the
remuneration policies for all Directors and senior executives. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible to review regularly and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of individual
EDs and senior executives as well as the remuneration of NEDs. It would
consult the Chairman or the CEO on the remuneration proposals whenever
it thinks fit.

The objective of remunerating the Directors and senior executives of the
Company is to ensure that there is an appropriate level of remuneration to
attract and retain experienced businessmen or professionals of high calibre
to act as the Directors and senior executives to oversee the Company's

businesses and development.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee (Cont'd)

Meetings

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the Year.
Works Performed

The works performed by the Remuneration Committee in the Year are

summarised below:

(1) assessed the performance of EDs, reviewed and recommended to
the Board the EDs' and senior executives’ remuneration packages for

the Year;

(2) recommended to the Board the renewal of service agreement with a

director of a subsidiary of the Company;
(3) noted the annual discretionary bonus to employees;

(4) recommended to the Board the remuneration package of and the
service agreement with a director of a subsidiary of the Company;

and

(5) recommended to the Board to fix the Directors’ fee of NEDs for the

Year.

In January 2022, the Remuneration Committee made recommendations to
the Board and the Board has approved the fix of ED’s monthly salary of (i)
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan of HK$8,333.33; (ii) Ms. Chan, Lok-wan of HK$63,000;
and (iii) Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai of HK$180,000 for the year ending 31
December 2022 with reference to their duties and responsibilities in the

Group as well as the prevailing market conditions.
Remuneration Policy for EDs

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on EDs' remuneration package
is to enable the Company to retain and motivate EDs by linking their reward
with performance as measured against corporate objectives. In determining
guidelines for each reward element, the Company refers to remuneration

surveys on companies operating in similar businesses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ &4

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee (Cont'd)

Remuneration Policy for NEDs and INEDs

The Directors' fees of NEDs and INEDs are subject to annual assessment
with reference to their duties and responsibilities and the prevailing market
conditions as appropriate. Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-pocket
expenses incurred in connection with performance of their duties.
Nomination Committee

Role and Function

The role of the Nomination Committee is to lead the process and make
recommendations for appointments to the Board, whether as additional
appointment or to fill up the casual vacancy of directorship as and when
they arise, in the light of challenges and opportunities facing the Company,
as well as business development and requirements of the Company.
Meetings

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the Year.

Works Performed

The works performed by the Nomination Committee in the Year are

summarised below:

(1) recommend to the Board the appointment of the new CEO

subsequent to the resignation of an ED who was also the CEO;
(2) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;

(3) recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors for

shareholders’ approval; and

(4) assessed the independence of INEDs, all served more than 9 years
and were subject to re-election at the relevant annual general

meeting.

After the Year end, the Nomination Committee made recommendation
to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring Directors for shareholders’
approval at the 2022 AGM.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Nomination Committee (Cont'd)
Nomination Policy, Procedures, Process and Criteria

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size, composition
and diversity (including the evaluation of skills, knowledge, professional
experience, cultural and educational background, gender and age of the
Board members and assessment on the independence of the INEDs) of
the Board at least annually. It is responsible for making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company's
corporate strategy and succession planning for the Directors from time
to time and selecting suitable and qualified individuals to become Board
members. In evaluating and selecting candidate(s) for directorship,
the Nomination Committee considers the character and integrity; skills
and expertise; professional and educational background; potential time
commitment for the board and/or committee responsibilities; and the
elements of the Board Diversity Policy as stated below etc. The Nomination
Committee makes recommendation to the Board to appoint the
appropriate person among the candidates nominated for directorship. The
Board appoints suitable candidate(s) in accordance with the Bye-laws of

the Company and the Listing Rules.
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefit of having a diverse
board, and sees increasing diversity at board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage and achieving long-term
sustainable growth for the Group. A board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) has been adopted since September 2013. Elements of
the Board Diversity Policy include gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge of Directors.
The said elements have substantially been included in the current Board

composition.
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INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT #¥EA

Investment Committee had been established since 2014, comprising Ms.
Chan, Sze-wan (before 17 February 2021) and Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (on

or after 17 February 2021) as chairman, Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai as chief

investment officer, Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun as members

with written terms of reference in place. It is empowered to manage the

investment business of the Group (other than real estate investment) and

to make recommendations and provide advice to the Board in relation to

investment or potential investment.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS

Attendance record of each of the Board members is as follows:—

B

REZESE

REZEGE T MFERY ARFEL TR
F_—F-_At+tAERIBRET(R=_F=—
FZATERFABBEERE R EELER
B MEEEERERELEAREMHENK - H
EEREBETCHE REZEGEREEREAR
SEEREXB(BHERERIN  UERREHER
EREAEREBANESTSREEZENRER -

ESHFERE

BEFERBZHFEREHIIMT : -

Attendance Record of Directors &% H &30

Regular Ad hoc Audit ~ Remuneration ~Nomination  Investment Annual Special
Board Board Committee ~ Committee  Committee  Committee General Scheme General
Meeting Meeting' Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting® Meeting* Meeting*
EHEZE KREZE EhZEE  HMZBE RE%ZEE  REZEE RREF BEEE N RE%&5
Name of Directors f 3.2 EE i | | L] | K¢ Kg
Executive Directors HTES
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan* Raagd*  NATER 0100w  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATMER  NATER
Ms. Chan, Hoi-an Rel@at 4/4(1000%)  2/2(100%) NATEER  NATER O NARER  4/4(00%)  AbsentBE  Absent®E  Absent B
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan FET e 4/4(100%)  1/2(50%)  NATER  NATER O NATNER O NATER  AbsentHE  AbsentfE  Absent B
M. Lam, Konganei WAERE  44000%) 22(00%) NATER  NATER  NATER  44(i00%)  1/1(100%)  1/1(100%)  1/1(100%)
Non-executive Directors FHTES
M Lau, Ming-wai YRty I4(75%)  12(50%)  NAREER O NATEE O NATER  NATER  AbsentHE  AbsentfE  Absent
M. Amy Lau, Yukowai YEZRt  44(00%) 22(100%) NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER  110100%)  1/1000%) 171 (100%)
Independent Non-executive B3
Directors gz
M. Chan, Kokl REEEE  44(100%) 22(100%)  4/4(100%)  33(100%) 22(100%)  4/4(100%) 1/1(100%) 1/1(100%) 171 (100%)
M. Phills Lof Laiping BESLL  4/4(100%)  22(100%)  4/4(100%)  3/3(100%) 22(100%) NATEE  1/1(100%) 1/1(100%) 1/1(100%)
M Mg, Tsz-chun EBfEE  44(100%)  22(100%)  4/4(100%)  3/3(100%)  2/2(100%)  4/4(100%)  1/1(100%) 1/1(100%) 1/1(100%)
Notes: BaE -
* Resigned on 17 February 2021. e RZEZ—F-A++HEE-

2 To avoid conflict of interest, Director(s) was/were absent at ad hoc Board

meeting(s) that he/she was required to abstain from voting.
Held on 26 May 2021.

Held on 17 December 2021.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms without deviation from the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code"). All Directors, after specific enquiries by the Company, confirmed
that they had complied with the required standard set out in the Model

Code and the said code of conduct during the Year.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by relevant employees on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code. All the relevant employees
(the "Relevant Employees”) who, because of office or employment, are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information in relation
to the Group's securities had been requested to follow such code when
dealing in the securities of the Company. After specific enquiries by the
Company, the Relevant Employees confirmed that they had complied with

the required standard set out in the said code during the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that the Group
maintains an effective risk management and internal control systems
and review of their effectiveness through the Audit Committee at least
annually. The Board oversees the Company's senior management in
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems and acknowledges that such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. Internal Audit Department
is responsible for reviewing relevant financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions, and reporting their findings and

advice to the Audit Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Cont'd)

Internal Audit

Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee and is

independent of the Company’s management, with key tasks to:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT T¥ERWHEE
2 B B AP EE )
R B
NBBEZINDBURARARZERE  WEHEME
“EEgESR EXETEA:
m EREETER  LNERHEHNEEEZBT

(1) assess and monitor internal controls of the Group with unrestricted
direct access right to any levels of management whenever it

considered necessary;

(2) conduct comprehensive internal audits of the practices and
procedures, income and expenditures, and internal control of all

business units of the Group on a regular basis; and

(3) carry out special reviews and investigations on areas of concern

identified by the management for corrective actions.

Internal Audit Department produces an annual internal audit plan
based on a risk assessment methodology for the Audit Committee's
approval. Internal audits are carried out on a regular basis according to
the approved plan. Internal audit reports summarising audit findings
and recommendations are prepared from time to time for the Audit
Committee’s review and discussion. Management is responsible for
ensuring that control weaknesses highlighted in internal audits are rectified
within a reasonable period. Internal Audit Department would monitor the

proper implementation of corrective measures.

During the Year, Internal Audit Department had conducted five internal
audits, relevant reports had been submitted to the Audit Committee for
consideration. The Audit Committee was satisfied with the scope and
quality of works done, and the extent and frequency of communication
of internal audit reports by the Internal Audit Department. The Audit
Committee was also satisfied with the effectiveness of the internal audit

function of the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Cont'd)

Risk Management

Risk Management Framework

The Company established an Enterprise Risk Management Framework that
includes a risk management policy and procedures, as well as a designated
risk management officer who helps to deploy the risk management process

across the business.

Risk Management Process

Our risk management process includes risk identification, risk assessment
and prioritisation, risk owner appointment, risk treatment and upward
reporting and monitoring of identified risks to the Audit Committee. A
corporate risk register has been established to track and document the
identified risks, risk owners, mitigating actions and control measures, and

facilitates continuous update of risk treatments.

Half-yearly reviews were conducted to follow up on the significant risks
and related actions as documented in the corporate risk register, and the
results reported to the Audit Committee. The year end risk management
assessment result was reported to the Board through the Audit Committee.
The Company will continue to enhance and standardize our approach to

manage risks.

Subsequent to the Year, the Audit Committee had reviewed the
effectiveness and adequacy of risk management system for the Year and
the Board was satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk
management system of the Group and considered that the Company had
complied with the Code Provisions in respect of risk management during

the Year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Cont'd)

Internal Control

Annual Review

Based on the annual assessment made by the Independent Auditors and
the works done by Internal Audit Department, the Audit Committee and
the Board were satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of the system

of internal control of the Group and concluded that:

(1) the Company had complied with the Code Provisions in respect of

internal control during the Year;

(2) a framework of prudent and effective controls had been established

to identify, evaluate and manage the risks;

(3) internal control and accounting systems of the Group were effective

and adequate;

(4) significant risks and control failings or weaknesses (if any) that
may influence the Group and the changes since last annual review
had been identified, evaluated and managed through the ongoing

monitoring process;

(5) material transactions were executed with the management’s

authorisation;

(6) the Company's processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules

compliance were effective; and

(7) the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's
accounting, financial reporting and internal audit functions, and their

training programmes and budget were adequate.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with shareholders that the Directors and the
chairmen of the Board Committees are encouraged to attend and answer
questions from shareholders at general meetings. The chairmen of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee as well as the Independent Auditors had attended the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 26 May 2021 ("2021 AGM")
to answer questions from shareholders. All members of the independent
board committee were available at the special general meeting held on 17
December 2021 (2021 SGM") approving special resolution in connection
with the proposed privatisation of the Company to address shareholders’

queries.

At the commencement of each general meeting, the chairman of the
meeting had explained the procedures for conducting a poll to the
shareholders and the shareholders were allowed to raise any question
concerning the poll procedures. At each of the meetings, separate
resolutions were proposed by the chairman of the meeting and put forward
to the shareholders for poll voting. Details of poll results are available at the

Company's website (www.chineseestates.com).

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a corporate website (www.chineseestates.com) to disseminate the Group's

information.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the corporate communications manual to
ensure inside information remains confidential until the disclosure of such
information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of such
information is efficiently and consistently made. Such manual also provides
guidance for coordinating the disclosure of material information to investors,
analysts and media, identifies who could speak on the Company’s behalf,
and outlines the responsibility for communication with various stakeholder

groups.

A shareholders’ communication policy for enhancement of the corporate
governance had been established and the Board had reviewed the

shareholders’ communication policy during the Year.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy for the Company that aims to
set out the principles and guidelines of the Company in relation to the
declaration, recommendation and payment of dividends to its shareholders
(the "Dividend Policy").

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company does not have any pre-
determined dividend payout ratio. Distribution of dividends should be
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. When
considering dividend declaration or recommendation, the Board shall take

into account the following factors:

(1) business condition and strategy of the Group;

(2) capital requirement for the Group’s existing/potential project or

investment;

(3) earnings, financial and cash flow position and distributable reserves

of the Company and the Group; and

(4) other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends is subject to the provisions of
the Bye-laws of the Company, the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended from time to time) and any other applicable laws, rules and

regulations.

The Company's dividend distribution record in the past may not be used
as a reference or basis to determine the level of dividends that may be

declared or paid by the Company in future.

The Board has the sole discretion to recommend or not to recommend
final dividends to the shareholders for approval; and to declare or not to
declare any other dividends, including but not limited to interim and/or
special dividends, after taking into consideration the factors as stated in (1)
to (4) above.

The Dividend Policy may be updated, amended, modified and/or cancelled
from time to time as the Board may think fit and necessary.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convene a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company can at all times submit a signed
written requisition, specifying the purpose, to the Board or the Company
Secretary to request the convening of a special general meeting (“SGM")
and deposit the requisition at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda, the addresses

are disclosed in “Corporate Information” of this annual report.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene the SGM, the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene a SGM,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from twenty-one days of the deposit.
Put Forward the Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having a right to vote at the general meeting at
the date of the requisition or shareholders not less than 100 in total can
submit a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary to

propose a resolution at the general meeting (the “Written Requisition”).

The Written Requisition must be accompanied by (i) the proposed
resolution; and (ii) a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at the general meeting. The Written Requisition must contain
the signatures of all the requisitionist(s). The Written Requisition must
be deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or the
registered office of the Company in Bermuda, the addresses are disclosed
in “Corporate Information” of this annual report, not less than six weeks
before the general meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution and not less than one week before the general meeting in the

case of any other requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (contd)

Put Forward the Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting (Cont'd)

Provided that if, after a copy of the Written Requisition requiring notice of
a resolution has been deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda, an
annual general meeting is called for a date which is six weeks or less after
the copy has been deposited, the copy though not deposited within the
time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the

purposes thereof.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement given by the requisitionists to all
shareholders in accordance with the requirements under the applicable

laws and rules.

Propose a Candidate for Election as a Director at an Annual

General Meeting

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director had been established and published at the Company's website

(www.chineseestates.com).
Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the Company
Secretary in writing by sending such written enquiries to the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong at the address disclosed
in “Corporate Information” of this annual report or by email at
investor.relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to

raise questions at general meetings.
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the Company's constitutional

documents.
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DEVIATIONS FROM CODE PROVISIONS

Non-executive Directors Attending General Meetings

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai, a NED, was unable to attend the 2021 AGM and the
2021 SGM as he had business engagement.

Chairman Attending Annual General Meeting

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai, the Chairman, was unable to attend the 2021 AGM
as he had business engagement. Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai, the chairman of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, was elected as
the chairman of the 2021 AGM to ensure effective communication with
shareholders of the Company at the 2021 AGM. The chairman of the
Nomination Committee, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping had also attended the
2021 AGM.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that corporate governance principles and practices
are essential to the business communities. Ongoing effort will be put
to review its corporate governance practices from time to time so as
to accommodate the changing circumstances. The Company will strive
to maintain and strengthen the standard and quality of its corporate

governance.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”) are pleased
to present to the shareholders their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the Company acted as an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries were principally engaged in property investment and
development, building and property management, brokerage, securities

investment, money lending and cosmetics distribution and trading.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year, discussion on
the Group's future business development and description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing can be found in the
Chairman’s Statement of this annual report. Furthermore, the financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group can be found in Note 5
to the consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important event(s)
affecting the Group that has/have occurred since the end of the Year are
contained in the Chairman’s Statement of this annual report. An analysis of
the Group's performance during the Year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the Financial Operation Review of this annual
report. Discussions on the Group's environmental policies and performance,
relationships with its key stakeholders, and compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group are
provided in the Chairman's Statement, the Corporate Governance Report,
the Directors’ Report and the Environmental, Social and Governance Report

of this annual report.

OPERATING SEGMENTS INFORMATION

The Group's revenue and contribution to profit for the Year from operations
analysed by principal activities are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries and associates as at
31 December 2021 are set out in Notes 47 and 48 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on pages 119 to 120.

During the Year, the Board did not declare any interim dividend (2020:
HK1 cent per share).

The Board resolved not to recommend the payment of final dividend for
the Year (2020: HK1 cent per share).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

years is set out on pages 282 to 283.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS

Details of the principal properties and property development rights of the
Group as at 31 December 2021 are set out on pages 284 to 288.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the Year are set out in

Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the Year, the Group acquired an investment property (through
acquisition of a subsidiary) of approximately HK$160,959,000 (2020:
HK$900,562,000) and did not dispose of any investment properties (2020:
nil).

Other movements in investment properties during the Year are set out in

Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$1,761,000 (2020: HK$58,000).
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GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Details of secured bank borrowings and other borrowings repayable within
one year or on demand and long-term secured bank borrowings are shown

in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the Year, interest capitalised amounted to approximately
HK$2,349,000 (2020: HK$2,838,000) by the Group.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out on
pages 124 to 128.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company's reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted of approximately HK$14,046,782,000 (2020:
HK$16,382,789,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Movement in the share capital of the Company during the Year is set out in

Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the laws of Bermuda, being the

jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.
EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the Year, the Company did not enter into any equity-linked

agreement.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the

Company's businesses were entered into or existed during the Year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The revenue and aggregate revenue attributable to the Group's largest
customer and five largest customers accounted for approximately 38%
and 53% of the Group's total revenue (excluding the Group's interest
income from bonds and structured products, dividend income from listed
and unlisted equity investments and gain on sales of investments held-for-

trading) for the Year respectively.

At no time during the Year did a Director, a close associate of a Director or
a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have an interest in any

of the Group's five largest customers.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers

amounted to less than 30% of the Group's total purchases for the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year or up to the date of this Directors’ Report are:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan
(resigned as Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer on
17 February 2021)
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 17 February 2021)
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan

Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman)
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai

Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun

Ms. Chan, Lok-wan, Mr. Lau, Ming-wai and Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai will retire
from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to Bye-
law 111 of the Bye-laws of the Company and all being eligible will offer

themselves for re-election.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employer within one year

without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Appendix 10 of Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as

follows:
1 The Company
Number of

Shares Held
FrsRAE B

Name of Director

EEnsg

Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (“Ms. HW Chan")
FRelE Rt (Rl L)

1,430,700,768
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Percentage of

Issued Share

Capital
ERITREBSL

Capacity
=271}

Interest in controlled 74.99%
corporation and interest of
children under 18
NS | VN o - 958
ARm 185K F X 2

Note:

e These shares of the Company were indirectly owned by Sino
Omen Holdings Limited (as disclosed under “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests in the Securities of the Company”), the
entire issued share capital of which was held by Ms. HW Chan as
the trustee of her minor children Lau, Chung-hok, Lau, Sau-wah
and Lau, Sau-yee.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(Cont'd)

| Associated corporations of the Company

BEERBSTHAERAEQATR
BB ZE2E S ER®

N RAFZEEEE

Percentage of

Name of Associated Number of Issued Share
Name of Director Corporations Share(s) Held Capacity Capital
EEps HEEB AR FERO#E 4 | ERTRABELI L
Ms. HW Chan Sino Omen Holdings Limited 50,000 * Interest of children under 18 100%
RelBat R85 F R s
Ms. HW Chan Solar Bright Ltd. 1 & Interest in controlled 100%
BelEL L corporation and interest of
children under 18
REEH AR ZERR
R85 TR 2k
Note: PiEE

b Ms. HW Chan (as the trustee for her minor children Lau, Chung-
hok, Lau, Sau-wah and Lau, Sau-yee) directly held the entire
issued share capital of Sino Omen Holdings Limited. Sino Omen
Holdings Limited directly held the entire issued share capital of
Solar Bright Ltd.. Therefore, Ms. HW Chan as the trustee for her
said minor children was also regarded as interested in the entire
issued share capital of Solar Bright Ltd..

The interests stated above represent long position. The percentage shown
was the number of shares the relevant Director was interested in expressed

as a percentage of the number of issued shares as at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, none of the other Directors and chief executives
of the Company had or were deemed under the SFO to have any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as at 31 December 2021.

During the Year, none of the Directors and chief executives of the Company
nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age were granted or had
exercised any right to subscribe for any securities of the Company or any of

its associated corporations.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN FERFRRAQAFZEZER
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, so far as are known to any Directors or chief EHEEEBX AR B HZERITRABMAE  RZT=_—
executives of the Company, the following parties (other than Directors or  F+Z=A=+—H KA RIRIEFEHRBEEHE
chief executives of the Company) were recorded in the register kept by — 336/5&7B{EF 2 B MAE sk STMEARRF » HiE
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to (A SR A A AR BB 1T A 5% A
the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be ~ t##H 2 AL (BEER AR A ZSTHRABRIN 10

interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company: ™

Percentage of

Number of Issued Share

Name of Substantial Shareholders Shares Held Capacity Capital

FERRER FiRRHEE } 54 ERTREBDL

Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung ("Mr. Joseph Lau”) 1,430,700,768 A Interest of spouse and 74.99%
Bl S A ([RIBER A& D) interest of children under 18
BB 2 #Eam M
R 18BRF R Heam

Sino Omen Holdings Limited 1,430,700,768 kS Interest in 74.99%
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) controlled corporation
(7 52 /88 4 B A S ST AR SZ) N NI £

Solar Bright Ltd. 1,430,700,768 & Beneficial owner and interest 74.99%
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) in controlled corporation
(P 3L /88 4 R R A S e AR S2) BEREAAR
N i NI £

Century Frontier Limited 476,425,000 e Beneficial owner 24.97%
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) EafEa A

(PS8 4 A R BY B R A ST)

Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited 230,984,820 * Beneficial owner 12.10%
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) EnBEAA

(REBER RS M)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (contd)

Notes:

= Mr. Joseph Lau was deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
shares that his spouse, Ms. HW Chan, and his minor children, Lau,
Chung-hok, Lau, Sau-wah and Lau, Sau-yee, deemed to have interests.

* Solar Bright Ltd. held the entire issued share capital of Century
Frontier Limited and Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited and
therefore was deemed to be interested in 476,425,000 shares of the
Company held by Century Frontier Limited and 230,984,820 shares
of the Company held by Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited
respectively. In addition, Solar Bright Ltd. directly held 723,290,948
shares of the Company. As such, Solar Bright Ltd. was interested or
deemed to have interested in a total of 1,430,700,768 shares of the
Company. Sino Omen Holdings Limited held the entire issued share
capital of Solar Bright Ltd. and therefore was deemed to be interested
in 1,430,700,768 shares of the Company, which were referred to in
the interests of Ms. HW Chan as disclosed under "Directors’ and Chief
Executives' Interests in the Securities of the Company and Associated
Corporations”.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31 December
2021, no short positions were recorded in the register kept by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the Year, Ms. HW Chan, Mr. Lau, Ming-wai and Ms. Chan, Sze-
wan (resigned as Director of the Company on 17 February 2021) had
personal and/or directorship interests in private companies engaged in
property investment business and securities investment business; Ms. HW
Chan and Ms. Chan, Sze-wan had personal interest in a private company
engaged in money lending business; and Ms. HW Chan had personal
and/or directorship interests in a private company engaged in property
development business. As such, he/she was regarded as being interested

in such businesses, which competed or might compete with the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES (Cont'd)

In addition, Mr. Joseph Lau, a former executive Director, Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, had through certain
private companies wholly-owned by him acquired the retail shops of York
Place, Excelsior Plaza (include Laforet) and Southorn Centre (also known
as Wanchai Computer Centre) from the Group in 2010, certain floors and
car parking spaces constituted part of the properties known as Silvercord
and the properties known as The ONE from the Group in 2015 as well
as the properties known as Windsor House from the Group in 2016
(collectively the “Private Properties”). Each of Ms. HW Chan and Ms. Chan,
Sze-wan (resigned as Director of the Company on 17 February 2021) was
a director of or deemed to have certain interests in one or more of the said
companies during the Year. There might be potential leasing competition
for existing and prospective tenancies between the Private Properties and
investment properties held by the Group. In order to manage such potential
leasing competition, Mr. Joseph Lau had provided certain undertakings and
the Company had agreed with the Stock Exchange to implement certain
measures for monitoring the compliance of such undertakings. Details of
such undertakings and monitoring measures were set out in the circulars of
the Company dated 18 June 2010, 23 September 2014, 7 January 2015
and 15 January 2016. The independent non-executive directors of the
Company (“INEDs") had carried out an annual review on the compliance
of the said undertakings and monitoring measures and confirmed that
such undertakings and monitoring measures were duly complied with
and considered adequate monitoring measures were in place to avoid the

potential leasing competition during the Year.

The Directors are aware of their fiduciary duties and will act honestly and
in good faith in the interests of the Company and will avoid any potential
conflict of interests and duties. The Company comprises three INEDs and
all of them are members of the audit committee of the Company, so that

the interests of its shareholders can be adequately represented.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors were interested in
any businesses apart from the Group’s businesses, which competed or was

likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's businesses.
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DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

According to the Company's Bye-laws, each Director shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities (to the extent allowed by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended)) which such Director may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of the Director's office or otherwise in relation
thereto. The Company has provided indemnity to INEDs since July 2014
by issuing a letter to each of the INEDs. The Company has also arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Directors and officers of the Group which was in force during the Year and

up to the date of this Directors’ Report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

There were no arrangements to which the Company or any of the
Company's subsidiaries was a party to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate during the Year.

DIRECTORS" AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as the agreement(s) disclosed under the heading “Connected
Transactions” below and the facility agreement(s) entered into between
the Group and Ms. HW Chan as disclosed under “Material Related Party
Transactions” in Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements, there
were no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s businesses, to which the Company or any of the
Company's subsidiaries was a party, subsisting at the end of the Year or at
any time during the Year, and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had, whether directly or indirectly, a material interest, nor
there were any other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Company's businesses between the Company or any
of the Company's subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its

subsidiaries.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions

Q)

On 28 February 2019, Chinese Estates, Limited (being a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (“CEL") (as tenant)
entered into (a) a tenancy agreement in relation to the leasing
of the whole of 17th floor of Chubb Tower, Windsor House
(the "First Tenancy Agreement”) at a rent of HK$1,025,000 per
month (excluding service charges and rates) for a term of 3 years
commencing from 1 March 2019 to 28 February 2022 (the “First
Tenancy”); and (b) an agreement for lease in relation to the leasing
of the whole of 19th floor, the whole of 20th floor and the whole
of 21st floor of Chubb Tower, Windsor House (the “Framework
Agreement”) at a rent of HK$1,084,000, HK$1,044,000 and
HK$1,056,000 per month (excluding service charges and rates)
respectively for a term of 3 years commencing from a date or dates
to be agreed between the parties provided that the commencement
date(s) shall not be earlier than 1 November 2019 or later than 29
February 2020 (the “Subsequent Tenancies”), with Windsor House
Limited ("WHL") (as landlord) for the purpose of new headquarter
of the Group. On 18 October 2019, a tenancy agreement for the
Subsequent Tenancies was entered into for a term of 3 years
commencing from 1 November 2019 to 31 October 2022 (the
“Subsequent Tenancy Agreement” together with the First Tenancy

Agreement, the "Tenancy Agreements”).

As disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 28 February
2019, the caps of the service charges and rates payment as well as
the fit-out administration fee payment payable by CEL to WHL under
the First Tenancy and the Subsequent Tenancies for the Year were
set at HK$10,000,000 and HK$700,000 respectively (the “Charges
Caps").
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions
(Cont'd)

M

(Cont'd)

As at the date of the relevant announcement, WHL was indirectly
owned by (i) Ms. HW Chan (an executive Director and a trustee
of the substantial shareholders of the Company (who are two of
her minor children)), both in her capacity as a trustee of her minor
children and in her own capacity; (i) Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (a non-
executive Director, the Chairman of the Board and a substantial
shareholder of the Company); and (iii) a family trust of Mr. Joseph
Lau (the spouse of Ms. HW Chan), hence WHL was a connected
person of the Company. Therefore, under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, (a) in respect of the First Tenancy, the entering into
of the First Tenancy Agreement and the rental payment thereof
constituted a connected transaction for the Company and the fit-
out administration fee payment as well as the service charges and
rates payment thereof constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company; and (b) in respect of the Subsequent Tenancies,
the entering into of the Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder (including the entering into of the
Subsequent Tenancy Agreement, the rental payment, the fit-out
administration fee payment as well as the service charges and rates
payment thereof) constituted continuing connected transactions for

the Company.

Given that (i) one or more of the applicable percentage ratios in
respect of the value of the right-of-use asset under the First Tenancy
and the maximum amount of the total value of the right-of-use asset
under the Subsequent Tenancies, on an aggregated basis, exceeded
0.1% but less than 5%; and (i) one of the applicable percentage
ratios of the Charges Caps exceeded 0.1% but less than 5% at the
date of entering into the First Tenancy Agreement and the Framework
Agreement, therefore the First Tenancy and the Subsequent
Tenancies (and the transactions contemplated thereunder) were
exempt from the independent shareholders' approval requirement,
but were subject to the reporting, announcement and (to the extent
constituting continuing connected transactions for the Company)

annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd) BER S @)

Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions BERSRBERERS (E)

(Cont'd)

(1)  (Contd) n &
Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transactions, B IEMITEERIE T EBIE 14A5518 258
the INEDs, pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules on the EMFERERFIETFESRZ - EHR £t
requirement to carry out an annual review on the continuing FEMER S WRRERHBARGEZH
connected transactions, confirmed that the transactions were made BRMRER KR REEEKRABERAE
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company, on WEGETETT  ZEGRFEATAE  AFa
normal commercial terms and in accordance with the Tenancy RAEIRRER 2 BB Fz -

Agreements governing them on terms that were fair and reasonable

and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing RARZZEBMBRBESGHMAGMEM
Rules, confirmed in their letter made in accordance with Hong Kong 2 EBZEIEERIZ000 (SIS R]) [ E £ 01 15
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance EEBENNEHUIMNEZTER] - UREBR
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial (EBBHP) F7405 (BT BN EECET
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) #5810 BT i 5 48 B 1 XX 5 MO A BRI £ 1 ] (2 78
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the [FEGHMAGEN D  RERE TR
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of F14AL6GB L 20T - BR LA BER
Certified Public Accountants (collectively the “HKICPA Guidelines") BRSGEEBEZSHAE - WRBHEEHEE
that the subject continuing connected transactions had received the 7 BEBER_ZT-hF_A=-T+NHZAR
approval of the Board, had been entered into in accordance with MAHE L FR - RARIEHZEHNEIERZ
the Tenancy Agreements and had not exceeded the caps disclosed RHERZ T

in the announcement of the Company made on 28 February 2019.

The Company provided a copy of such letter to the Stock Exchange.

(2) On 12 June 2020, CEL (as tenant) entered into a tenancy () R-ZT_ZTF A+-H EFE(EAHEP)HE

agreement with WHL (as landlord) in relation to the leasing of the WHLUERE DRI~ -_ZT -_TF A+
whole of 39th floor of Chubb Tower, Windsor House at a rent of —HEZZE-_=FA+-HULAH=F"F
HK$1,409,500 per month (excluding service charges and rates) HHEEEREREASKIEIEZENE
for a term of 3 years commencing from 13 June 2020 to 12 June EtE - B AEEAR1,409,5008 T (B IEMR
2023 (the “39F Tenancy") for the purpose of other part of the new BEREM) ([30BHE]) - UERKEE
headquarter of the Group (the “39F Tenancy Agreement”). BB —Ho(392BEWED -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions
(Cont'd)

@

(Cont'd)

As disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 12 June
2020, the caps of the service charges and rates payment as well
as the fit-out administration fee payment payable by CEL to WHL
under the 39F Tenancy for the Year were set at HK$3,600,000 and
HK$500,000 respectively (the “39F Charges Caps”).

As at the date of the relevant announcement, WHL was indirectly
owned by (i) Ms. HW Chan (an executive Director and a trustee of
the substantial shareholders of the Company (who are her minor
children)), both in her capacity as a trustee of her minor children and
in her own capacity; and (i) a family trust of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (a
non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Board), hence WHL
was a connected person of the Company. Therefore, under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, the entering into of the 39F Tenancy
Agreement and the rental payment thereof constituted a connected
transaction for the Company, and the service charges and rates
payment as well as the fit-out administration fee payment thereof

constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company.

Given that (i) certain applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
value of the right-of-use asset under the 39F Tenancy Agreement,
when aggregated with the right-of-use asset value under the Tenancy
Agreements (as mentioned in paragraph (1) above), exceeded
0.1% but less than 5%; and (i) certain applicable percentage ratios
in respect of the largest aggregated amount of the 39F Charges
Caps and the Charges Caps (as mentioned in paragraph (1) above)
exceeded 0.1% but less than 5%, the 39F Tenancy Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder were exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement, but were subject
to the reporting, announcement and (to the extent constituting
continuing connected transactions for the Company) annual review

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions
(Cont'd)

(2) (Contd)

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transactions,
the INEDs, pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules on the
requirement to carry out an annual review on the continuing
connected transactions, confirmed that the transactions were made
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company, on
normal commercial terms and in accordance with the 39F Tenancy
Agreement governing them on terms that were fair and reasonable

and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules, confirmed in their letter made in accordance with the HKICPA
Guidelines that the subject continuing connected transactions
had received the approval of the Board, had been entered into in
accordance with the 39F Tenancy Agreement and had not exceeded
the caps disclosed in the announcement of the Company made on
12 June 2020. The Company provided a copy of such letter to the
Stock Exchange.

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 14 August 2020, CEL entered into a contract for services with Ms. HW
Chan regarding the provision of (i) leasing administration services (including
without limitation matters relating to dealing with tenants, rent collection
and taking legal actions, but excluding services in relation to the referral of
potential tenants and the negotiation with existing and/or potential tenants
regarding terms of lease of properties), (ii) sale administration services
(including without limitation the appointment of and coordination with
estate agents for such sale but excluding any sale agency service), (iii)
property management services (including matters relating to management,
maintenance, operation, servicing and repairs of properties), (iv) property
administration services (including without limitation accounting, recruitment,
human resources administration works, taxation, marketing and information
technology services) (the “Property Administration Services"), (v) asset

management and maintenance services (including property, household and
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

other management and maintenance services in relation to properties and
assets) (the "Asset Management and Maintenance Services”), (vi) rental
services (including rental of motor vehicles, car plates, vessels, car parking
spaces, premises and such other rental services) (the “Rental Services”),
(vii) advisory and consultancy services (including general advisory,
consultancy, administration, liaison, personnel support services and
such other services (including without limitation accounting and taxation
services) ancillary and/or incidental thereto) (the “Advisory and Consultancy
Services"), and (viii) other ordinary services (including without limitation
securities and other financial services) to Ms. HW Chan, her associates
and/or relatives for a term of 3 years commencing from 1 November
2020 to 31 October 2023 (the “Contract”). The cap of the service charges
payable by Ms. HW Chan to CEL for the Year under the Contract was set at
HK$59,400,000 (the “Cap”) as disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 14 August 2020 and circular dated 7 October 2020. The Contract
and the transactions contemplated thereunder were approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 28 October 2020.

As at the date of the relevant announcement, Ms. HW Chan was an
executive Director and a trustee of the substantial shareholders of the
Company (who are her minor children), Ms. HW Chan was a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the Contract and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules. As one or more of the applicable
percentage ratios for the expected annual caps for the Contract were more
than 5%, the Contract and the transactions contemplated thereunder were
subject to reporting, announcement, circular, independent shareholders'
approval and annual review requirements pursuant to Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transactions, the
INEDs, pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules on the requirement
to carry out an annual review on the continuing connected transactions,
confirmed that the transactions were made in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Company (other than household management
and maintenance services under the Asset Management and Maintenance
Services, the Property Administration Services, the Rental Services and the
Advisory and Consultancy Services), on normal commercial terms and
in accordance with the Contract governing them on terms that were fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole. Having considered the reasons and benefits in respect of the
provision of household management and maintenance services under the
Asset Management and Maintenance Services, the Property Administration
Services, the Rental Services and the Advisory and Consultancy Services as
mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 14 August 2020 and
circular dated 7 October 2020, the INEDs were of the view that, although
the provision of such services contemplated under the Contract were not in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, the terms of such
services were fair and reasonable so far as the Group were concerned and
on normal commercial terms, and were in the interests of the Company

and its shareholders as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules,
confirmed in their letter made in accordance with the HKICPA Guidelines
that the subject continuing connected transactions had received the
approval of the Board, were in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company, had been entered into in accordance with the Contract and had
not exceeded the Cap disclosed in the announcement of the Company
made on 14 August 2020 and circular dated 7 October 2020. The
Company provided a copy of such letter to the Stock Exchange.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Save as aforesaid, there were no other discloseable non-exempted
connected transaction or non-exempted continuing connected transaction
under the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of this Directors’
Report.

Save as aforesaid, none of the “Material Related Party Transactions” for
the Year as disclosed in Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements
constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-

exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

To the extent of the above “Material Related Party Transactions” constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined
in the Listing Rules, the Company had complied with the relevant

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES

As disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 25 November 2021,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Borrower”) as
borrower has on 25 November 2021 entered into a facility agreement
(the “Facility Agreement”) with a bank (the "Bank”) as lender in respect
of a term loan facility (the “"Facility”) in the principal sum of up to
HK$610,000,000 and it is a term of the Facility Agreement that the
Company entered into a guarantee (the “Guarantee”). The Facility will be
repayable in 12 successive quarterly instalments with the final repayment
date falling 36 months after the date on which the advance under the

Facility is made.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES (contd)

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement and the Guarantee, the Borrower
and the Company shall procure that the substantial shareholders of the
Company (as disclosed at pages 74 to 75 of the 2020 annual report of
the Company) and/or their ultimate beneficial owners together with their
respective associates and connected persons in aggregate shall maintain
not less than 30% shareholding in and remain a single largest shareholder

of the Company.

A breach of the abovementioned undertaking may constitute an event
of default under the Facility Agreement, whereby the Bank may, among
others, cancel the Facility and declare that all sums accrued or outstanding
(including accrued interest) under the Facility Agreement be immediately
due and payable. The occurrence of such event may trigger the cross
default provisions of other banking or credit facilities available to the Group
and, as a possible consequence, these other facilities may also be declared

by the relevant lenders to be immediately due and payable.
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates two retirement benefit schemes:

(1) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the laws of Hong
Kong (the "ORSO Scheme”); and

(2) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong
(the “MPF Scheme").

Both the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme are defined contribution
schemes and the assets of both schemes are managing by their respective

trustees accordingly.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (contd)

The ORSO Scheme is available to the Group's full-time permanent staff
employed in Hong Kong before 1 December 2000. Contributions to the
ORSO Scheme are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5% or 10% based on
the staff's basic salary depending on the length of service. Staff members
are entitled to 100% of the Group's contributions together with accrued
returns after completing 10 years of service or more, or attaining the
retirement age, or are entitled at a reduced scale between 30% to 90%
of the Group's contributions after completing a period of service of at least
3 years but less than 10 years. The ORSO Scheme allowed any forfeited
contributions (made by the Group for any staff member who subsequently
left the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions) to be

used by the Group to offset the current level of contributions of the Group.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 64 and with
at least 60 days of service under the employment of the Group in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made by the Group at 5% based on the staff's
relevant income. The maximum relevant income for contribution purpose
is HK$30,000 per month. Staff members are entitled to 100% of the
Group's contributions together with accrued returns irrespective of their

length of service with the Group, but the benefits are required by law to be

preserved until the retirement age of 65.

In order to provide similar benefits to those who joined the MPF Scheme
and the ORSO Scheme, the Group provided an additional portion (the
“Top-up Portion”) for those who joined the MPF Scheme. The purpose
of the Top-up Portion is to match up the benefits of the MPF Scheme
with that of the ORSO Scheme by providing those staff under the MPF
Scheme with basic salary over HK$30,000 and/or years of service over 5.
Contributions to the Top-up Portion are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5%

or 10% of the staff's basic salary less the Group’s mandatory contribution

under the MPF Scheme as mentioned above.

The Group's total cost for the schemes charged to consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to approximately HK$8,507,000 (2020: HK$8,744,000). In
addition, an amount of forfeited employer’s contributions for the schemes
amounted to approximately HK$188,000 (2020: HK$28,000) was
utilised towards reducing the Group's contributions during the Year. As at

31 December 2021, no (2020: nil) available balance to reduce future

contributions.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT EESHEE

PUBLIC FLOAT PNRERE

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and RIEAQRABSENAMENRESHMNE A2 A
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained the RAFEAREBEARFRABILEZE ETHRAET
prescribed amount of public float during the Year and up to the date of this ~ ##FETHE I ARERE -

annual report as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS B Em

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by ANEEZEAPHRERBEFESTMEHSMERA
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB") who would retire at the — &1 ([E#]) #ix - ZEHAI/T R BN G 21T 2 AR
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligble, AT AEERIBFTMEER  HAERTES ERE
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed to the  f - RENERITZ REBEF A L BREERE
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint HLB AR R X EEIMRERE —HRER -

as the auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board REESFE

Lam, Kwong-wai BF

Director MHEE

Hong Kong, 21 March 2022 B —E__#=H_+—H

—E-—FFR  EABx£m 83



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

CHEREARESE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

7B 15

This environmental, social and governance (“ESG") report (“this Report”)
captures the ESG performance of the Company (“Chinese Estates”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) during the reporting period. The
information collected during report preparation process and disclosed in
this Report will serve as the basis of the Group's ESG strategy, management

and future improvement.
Reporting Standard

This Report was prepared in accordance with the requirements as set out
in Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”),
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Reporting Period

Unless otherwise specified, this Report covers the Group's progress and

performance on ESG issues from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

Reporting Scope and Boundary

Unless otherwise specified, the reporting scope of this Report only

covers the Group's operations in Hong Kong. The reporting principles of

nou "ou

“Materiality”, "Quantitative”, “Balance” and “Consistency” as set out in the
Guide underpin the preparation of this Report, the contents of this Report

and the presentation of information.
Board Approval

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has approved this
Report on 21 March 2022.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IR3E - #HERERHRES

ABOUT THIS REPORT (contd)

Board Statement

The Group considers sustainability as a strategic approach to create long-
term business value. To achieve sustainable development, we strive to
address ESG concerns by integrating ESG principles into our operation
and management process. A well-structured ESG management approach
helps us to identify the ESG related risks and ensure daily operations are
aligned with the Group's ESG practices. Chinese Estates has a solid ESG
governance structure which comprises of the Board and the Sustainability
Working Group (the “Working Group”). As the highest governing authority
in the Group, the Board has ultimate responsibility for all sustainability
related matters, focusing on providing vision and strategic direction for our
sustainability activities, formulating corresponding business strategies and
policies, and overseeing overall ESG management and reporting. The Board
also regularly reviews the Group's sustainability risks and opportunities,

performance, and progress.

Under the Board, the Working Group plays a vital role in overseeing the
Group's sustainability strategies, daily operations, and risk management.
The Working Group comprises of managers from key divisions, including
Administration, Building Management, Company Secretarial, Human
Resources, Marketing, Project Development and Internal Audit. The
Working Group has the strategic and operational responsibility to manage
sustainability issues, monitor the progress of our sustainability activities and
ensure the Group stays on track and in balance with the three sustainability
dimensions of economic, environmental and social impacts at all times.
Delegated with the authorisation from the Board, the Working Group is
responsible for monitoring sustainability matters in operations, reviewing
stakeholder feedback and updating respective policies. We listen to our
stakeholders and consider their views, comments, and recommendations
on ESG management. Our efforts in understanding and managing the ESG
related risks enable us to achieve our objectives of creating greater values
for all stakeholders. All ESG related matters are reported to the Board every

year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 3% - HERERHKES

ABOUT THIS REPORT (contd)
Board Statement (Cont'd)

This reporting year, the Group has strengthened the disclosure of social-
related key performance indicators (KPIs) as required by the Listing Rules.
We have started to set out environmental targets to ensure that our
approach to environmental management and initiatives to enhance our
environmental performance can be carried out effectively and consistently
throughout the Group. In addition, we have also initiated a climate risk
assessment to identify physical and transition risks associated with the
Group in order to understand the potential climate change effect to our

business in this reporting period.
Approach to Sustainability
A. Stakeholder Engagement

To understand stakeholders’ expectations and ESG related issues
that are relevant and important to the Group, we are committed to
maintaining constant communication with our stakeholders. This
Report captures the highlights of our sustainability performance and

achievements in 2021.

Chinese Estates engages with stakeholders to understand their
expectations and addresses their concerns regarding the ESG
related issues of the Group. We constantly engaged with our key
stakeholders through diverse communication channels to collect their
opinions. The table below shows various communication channels

with our key stakeholders:
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IR3E - #HERERHRES

ABOUT THIS REPORT (contd)

Approach to Sustainability (Cont'd)

A. Stakeholder Engagement (Cont'd)

Key Stakeholder Group
TEFDERR

ERARE @
BETRERRNS (S

A RFHESHEE)

Communication Channel

Customers/Tenants

®F/MP

Tenant satisfaction surveys

HEREEAE

Management service surveys

BEERBHAE

Day-to-day communication through frontline employees
MARGFEIMNBEERR

Customer hotline

B RISER

Employees

(=31

Intranet

A B 4

Annual appraisal
FRAZ

Team building activities

EERA A

Industry Associations

EF R

Annual and regular meetings
FRELEHEE
Events

)

Media
iHEe

Media enquiry
HEEH
Corporate website
NIRRT

Non-Governmental Organisation (NGO) Partners

FEBUR AR (PEBTAR A 1ERH

Volunteer activities and charitable activities
ELEHREZEH

Sponsorships and donations

= EUNSEEE

Meetings

&2
=

Shareholders/Investors

R/ REE

General meetings

BRERE

Annual and interim reports

FERDHERE
Circulars/announcements/notices/publications
/N i)y )

Investor relations enquiry

REEBEREN

Corporate website

NI b

Suppliers/Contractors/Service Providers/
Professional Advisors

HrER, A RS e, X B

Ongoing direct engagements
SEHEE2 R

—E--5EH  EAEXEE
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (contd)

Approach to Sustainability (Cont'd)
B. Materiality Assessment

To identify the ESG related issues that are significant to the Group,
Chinese Estates engaged with stakeholders in 2019 to understand
their expectations and to address their concerns. Due to the outbreak
of COVID-19 pandemic, we sent out questionnaires to some of our
managed properties tenants and collected their feedback which
helped us to re-evaluate the focuses of the Group's ESG strategies in
2021. The results were discussed in the Working Group meeting and

were endorsed by the Board.
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In 2021, we have identified a total of 10 material sustainability

management and disclosure of this Report.

Aspect
Ei

27
iR o

Material sustainability issues
EETRHARESRE

Environmental

IRIE

Greenhouse gas emission and energy conservation
= R U B

Waste management
BEEYER

Employment and Labour Practices

BENRSTIER

Employment

&=

Occupational health and safety

Career and personal development

BENEARR

Tenant communication and satisfaction

HPEBLmEE

Tenant/Visitor safety

Operating Practices BE/ERE

SERH Tenant/Visitor privacy and data protection
P/ BT R ERHMRE
Anti-corruption
k&5

Community Community investment

Zad HRigE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We are committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of our investors and other
stakeholders. Our corporate governance practices are in strict compliance
with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the laws of Hong
Kong) and relevant anti-corruption laws. To uphold the highest standard
of corporate governance, the Board and management are dedicated to
ensuring corporate integrity and business ethics in all our business activities.
All management and staff must abide by the standards of operating ethics
and employee conduct set forth in the Group’s Code of Practice (“Code of
Practice”). Our employees should avoid any conflict of interest and ensure
all business decisions are made objectively and in the interests of the
Group. No employee should accept advantages, gifts or entertainment from
our current and future business partners in contravention of the Code of
Practice. Any acts of non-compliance may lead to strict disciplinary or legal

action.

To ensure the accountability and openness of our management, our
employees are encouraged to report any misconduct and malpractices
concerning financial reporting, internal control or other related matters. A
whistle-blowing policy is brought into place to provide reporting channels
and guidance for our employees to report any suspected cases, and to
provide reassurance to whistle-blowers of the protection that the Group
will extend to them against unfair dismissal or victimisation for any genuine
reports made under this policy. During the reporting year, no reported case

was received by the Audit Committee.

To raise internal awareness on anti-corruption, we organised anti-
corruption training to our directors and staff. In 2021, we have invited the
Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) to conduct a seminar
on employee integrity with our staff and a webinar on ethical governance
with our directors. We provide case studies and practical tips to ensure our

employees can uphold ethical standard under real-life situations.

In 2021, no concluded legal cases relating to corruption were brought
against the Group. For more information about our corporate governance
policies and practices, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report of

this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IR3E - #HERERHKES

OPERATIONS

To achieve higher operational efficiency, Chinese Estates actively engages
with employees, tenants, visitors and suppliers to understand their needs
and expectations. The Group makes every effort to provide quality products
and services to our tenants and visitors while ensuring a healthy and safe

working environment for our employees and visitors.

A. Commitment to Product and Service Quality

Chinese Estates strives to offer high quality products and services
with excellence and creativity. We strictly abide by all relevant laws
and regulations regarding product safety, anti-competition behaviour,
advertising and labelling. We have formulated the Product and
Services Responsibility Policy to communicate our expectations and
requirements on delivering high-quality products and services in our
project development as well as building management businesses.
The policy also demonstrates our commitment on safeguarding the
environment, as well as the safety and health of our tenants and

visitors.

A holistic quality control system and assurance procedures are
in place to manage the quality of products and services. When it
comes to property planning, design and development, where we
control the quality through careful selection and close monitoring our
contractors and suppliers, we also communicate our commitment to
the environment and such that environmental impact is considered

throughout the properties’ life cycles.

We are ambitious in safeguarding the health of our tenants and
visitors. In 2021, Windsor House (Public Area of Office Building)
and The ONE (Common Area of Shopping Mall) were awarded the
Indoor Air Quality Certificate (Excellent Class) by the Environmental
Protection Department, while Windsor House (Public Area of
Shopping Mall) and Harcourt House (Public Area on G/F, 3/F to 6/F,
10/F to 21/F and 24/F) obtained the Indoor Air Quality Certificate
(Good Class). In addition, Windsor House was certified with the
standards of the Quality Water Supply Scheme for Buildings —
Fresh Water (Management System) (Blue) by the Water Supplies
Department in 2021. These achievements recognise our efforts in

providing quality products and services.
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OPERATIONS (contd)

B.

Tenant Communication and Satisfaction

It is essential to improve our customer satisfaction. While we are
building trust with our tenants and visitors, we do not compromise

our professionalisms and business ethics.

Collecting feedback is vital to the enhancement of customer
experience and our business growth. To improve our products and
services, we listen to our tenants and visitors and take every opinion
seriously. We have established multiple communication channels for
our tenants and visitors to provide valuable feedback. In 2021, we
have conducted tenant satisfaction surveys in eight of our managed
properties and achieved an average mark of 76.25/100 in the

overall performance of management service.

In addition, our frontline employees are equipped with adequate
knowledge and skills in handling complaint from tenants and visitors.
We strive to respond to their inquiries and complaints promptly with
follow-up actions to ensure that tenants and visitors are satisfied with
the solutions. In 2021, we received 251 service-related complaints
(2020: 386).

Tenant and Visitor Safety

The safety of tenant and visitor is our top priority. We put ample
resources in emergency response training for our frontline
employees. In 2021, we have organised 5 training programs topics
to our staff on various aspects, including property management
case study sharing, privacy ordinance knowledge sharing, potential
insurance claims cases handling, fire evacuation procedures, and

water seepage handling procedures.

During the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has adopted various
preventive measures in its properties to safeguard the health of
owners and users. For instance, we intensify disinfection in common
areas, provide hand sanitizers and disinfectants as well as checking
body temperature in most of the entrances of our managed

properties.
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AY

OPERATIONS (contd) EE )

D.

Supply Chain Management

To support our diversified operational activities, we engage a diverse
range of contractors and suppliers. We have high expectation
on our suppliers and we require them to have the same level of
business ethics and conduct as we do. Among all contractors and
suppliers, we consider those who support our building and property
management as well as property development to be of higher
environmental and social risks. We have rolled out our Supplier Code
of Conduct and are requiring the aforementioned contractors and
suppliers to acknowledge it as part of the contract agreement. The
Supplier Code of Conduct outlines our minimum requirements for
supplier behaviour, covering legal compliance, health and safety,
non-discrimination, labour practices, anti-corruption, employee. We
have a standard tendering process to manage contracts, consultants
and to source building materials for our development projects. We
concern environmental and safety risks throughout the whole value
chain. As such, we have clearly stated our requirements on the
environmental and occupation safety and health compliance on the

tender contract.

The Group adopts a fair and transparent approach to select, monitor
and evaluate our contractors. A contractor assessment tool is in place
to regularly assess the performance of contractors for our building
and property management business. Besides, property managers and
estate officers conduct surprise inspections and regular inspections.
Clarification and explanation are required in case our requirements
are not met by any contractor. Depending on the severity of the
issue, contractor who failed to take corrective actions may result in
termination of the contract. During the reporting period, there were

294 active local contractors.
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OPERATIONS (contd)

E. Tenant/Visitor Privacy and Data Protection

Chinese Estates is aware of the emerging concern of data privacy
from our tenants and visitors. We will inform our tenants and visitors
the purposes for which their personal data are collected and ensure
that the data collected are not excessive. The Group has established
internal work instruction on personal data privacy to provide clear
instructions and guidelines to our employees on handling sensitive
data. We also offer data protection training to all employees in
orientation and refresher programmes to make sure that our policies
are effectively communicated to employees in different positions.
The Group strictly complies with all relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Chapter 486 of the laws of Hong Kong). During the reporting year,
there was no complaint or accusation regarding leakage of tenant
and visitor data.

F. Intellectual Property Rights

Chinese Estates respects the intellectual property rights and upholds
all applicable law and regulations. These include but are not limited
to Trade Marks Ordinance (Chapter 559 of the laws of Hong Kong),
Registered Designs Ordinance (Chapter 522 of the laws of Hong
Kong), Patents Ordinance (Chapter 514 of the laws of Hong Kong)
and Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the laws of Hong
Kong). Our Information Technology Department verifies and confirms
all hardware and software purchased or installed are licensed to
ensure our daily operation does not violate any intellectual property
provisions.

ENVIRONMENT

Recognising the environmental impacts arising from our day-to-day
business operations, Chinese Estates makes every effort to mitigate those
impacts so as to minimise the harm to our environment. We have been
taking various measures to reduce the adverse impacts of air emissions,
wastewater discharge, waste generation and natural resource consumption.
Furthermore, we promote the efficient use of resources, such as energy,
water and other raw materials in our daily operations to fulfil our

commitment to the environment.

Chinese Estates strictly complies with all the relevant provisions of
environmental laws and regulations. These include but are not limited to
the Buildings Energy Efficiency Ordinance (Chapter 610 of the laws of
Hong Kong), Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the laws of Hong
Kong) and Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the laws of
Hong Kong). During the reporting year, there were no cases of breach of
related laws and regulations.
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ENVIRONMENT (contd)

To reaffirm our commitment to environmental protection, we are actively
working on environmental target setting through a progressive process
involving desktop research, historical data review and peer benchmarking.
This reporting year we have formulated qualitative targets on various
environmental aspects, including greenhouse gas (GHG) emission,
energy, water and waste. The Working Group monitors the environmental
performance and reviews the progress of the targets. The details of our

targets are as follows:

RFE @

RERRMAYRBERENAGE  LALDBESRE
HME  BELBBRESHRTEENEERF &
BHERREERELE RAREFE - HME
KEETARRIENECER  BREEEREH
W BER - KERRERY - TENEERERRR
RIWRHMBROER - LPWBRFBOT

GHG Emission
BERIEBER

Reduce carbon emissions by 1.2—1.8% annual linear reduction
to align with Hong Kong's Climate Action Plan 2030+/Upgrade
the lighting and heating, ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC)
systems/appliances of all operating sites to energy-saving modes by
phase

MM BERMERD1.2-1.8% UK (EERETHEER
2030+>Eﬁ§2?/ﬂ1ﬁﬁﬁ LIS IRIAMER BT R4, R E

DB R THR R ERRE R

Energy
E

Reduce the electricity consumption of commercial buildings by 0.8—
1.1% annual linear reduction to align with the 2035 target in Hong
Kong's Climate Action Plan 2050/Increase the number of properties
with green building certificates
EEEFREBEETFHEFNL0.8-1.1% ' UFE(EBRAIRITH
E[E2050) 1020358 1% E IER R RERENNEHE

Establish a water management policy/Complete a water audit in

Water

2022
KER

HIEKERERBRR, N _E- —FafKERER

Waste Improve the current recycling rate of paper consumed in the office

2337 BReTTE B A = A A AR OR A [ Wi K

We take environmental impacts into account in the entire lifecycle of our
business projects, including planning, design, development and operation.
We have formulated the Environmental Policy to guide our employees to
act in an environmentally responsible manner during business operation.
The policy has demonstrated our commitment to assessing and monitoring
the environmental implications of our operations and to integrate
environmental consideration in our property investment, development
projects as well as building and property management businesses. We
also communicate with our consultants, contractors and other stakeholders
about our Environmental Policy to promote sustainability throughout the
value chain. Meanwhile, various measures are in place in different business
units to manage our environmental impacts. At self-owned or managed
sites, we adopt green initiatives and promote environmental awareness. In

our offices, we strive to create a green workplace for our employees.
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ENVIRONMENT (contd)

A.

Energy and Carbon Management

Buildings contribute to 90% of the city's electricity consumption
and 60% of the city's carbon footprint'. As a property developer
and manager, Chinese Estates is obliged to play our part to reduce
electricity and energy consumption across our portfolio. In this
regard, we implement energy-saving initiatives to better manage
our use of energy. For instance, we conduct regular energy audit at
the properties that we manage, including Windsor House, Harcourt
House and Wanchai Computer Centre, to analyse their energy
consumption, and identify opportunities to reduce energy usage and

carbon footprint.

To demonstrate our commitment to reducing energy usage,
we support the Charter on External Lightings launched by the
Environment Bureau. We are committed to minimising the light
nuisance and energy wastage by switching off unnecessary outdoor
lighting at night. In 2021, The ONE, Windsor House and Wanchai
Computer Centre were honoured with the Platinum Award, while
Excelsior Plaza and Causeway Place were honoured with the Gold
Award. Besides, we actively engaged in green events organised by
NGOs, such as the Earth Hour by World Wide Fund (WWF) in March
2021 and the No Air Con Night by Green Sense in October 2021, to

reduce energy consumption.

To create an environmentally friendly atmosphere and encourage
green behaviour at our workplace, the Group appoints the Green
Office Team to formulate and implement energy conservation
strategies at offices. The Green Office Team adopts various measures
to enhance the employees’ awareness of energy-saving. For example,
stickers are posted next to light switches and electronic appliances
to remind employees to turn off idle electronic appliances and lights.
Reminder emails are also sent out to communicate these initiatives
to our employees. To ensure the green office initiatives are carried
out effectively, the Green Office Team will review all initiatives twice

a year.

Carbon Neutral@HK, Hong Kong's Climate Action Plan 2050, “Chapter 4 :
Decarbonisation Strategies « Targets « Actions”, http://www.climateready.
gov.hk/files/pdf/CAP2050_booklet_en.pdf (2021)
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ENVIRONMENT (contd)

B.

Climate Change

Climate change has been posing greater challenges among all
industries and our business operations is no exception. As an
environmentally conscious and sustainable company, we are
committed to contributing to greenhouse gas reduction and aligning
our sustainable growth with the national and international climate
change agenda. Therefore, we engaged a third party consultant to
conduct a climate risk identification exercise in 2021 to identify,
analyse and evaluate the potential risks related to climate change.
We first reviewed our business model and conducted desktop
research on the current government policy and latest market trends

to identify relevant climate-related risks.

The assessment was conducted for our business operational
locations in Hong Kong. For physical risks, we acknowledge that the
extreme weather caused by climate change could affect our business
in various ways. Extreme wind/typhoons and flooding are identified
as the highest prioritised physical risks. We are conducting a further
assessment and the detailed risk level of these physical risks will be

disclosed in the next report.

For transition risks, to meet the Hong Kong's Climate Action Plan
2030+, it is expected Hong Kong will implement stricter policies
and regulations to control GHG emissions even under a “business-
as-usual” scenario. These tightening regulations will impact our
business operation and bring uncertainty in terms of allowable GHG

emissions.

In order to enhance our resilience in response to the associated risks,
we will continuously review the climate-related risks in our operations
to enhance our understanding of their impacts. We will also integrate
climate-related considerations into our risk management and
decision-making processes. Furthermore, we will monitor the market

and regulatory changes to respond to the transition risks.
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ENVIRONMENT (contd)

C.

Waste Management

The Group is committed to divert waste from landfill sites. As
such, we implement different waste management initiatives in
the properties and offices we own or manage to minimise waste
generation. We actively promote reusing and recycling to maximise
the lifetime of useful materials. The Group also engage conscientious
recycling contractors to collect and process the recyclables

responsibly.

At our managed properties, we encourage our tenants and residents
to practise waste separation at source. We have placed multiple
recycling bins in the properties under our management, such as The
ONE, Windsor House and Harcourt House. In 2021, The ONE and
Windsor participated in Greeners Action’s “Beverage Cartons Clean
Recycling Scheme”, aiming at raising public awareness on Tetrapak
recycling, promoting clean recycling method of Tetrapak, and
enhancing the public on Tetrapak recycling habit. Besides, we worked
closely with environmental organisations to carry out recycling
programmes to facilitate the recycling of festive consumables, such

as red packets, Christmas trees and cherry blossom trees.

To reduce food waste, the Group has been collaborating with our
business partners and suppliers to initiate a food waste reduction
programme. Our composter at The ONE composts coffee grounds
and used tea leaves collected from catering tenants of The ONE
and Windsor. The compost is used in the gardens of our managed

properties and our organic farm in Fanling.

At our offices, waste reduction initiatives are also in place to create
an environmentally friendly working environment and cultivate green
minds. We establish e-communication channels to substitute the
use of paper to promote a paperless working environment. Not only
can we minimise paper wastage at the source, but also increase
the efficiency in our daily communication within and outside the

organisation.

To encourage recycling at our offices, not only do we set up
collection points for paper recycling, but we also place boxes around
the offices to collect reusable stationaries, such as file folders, single-
side-used paper and pens. Used printer cartridges are returned
to suppliers. Retired but functional electronic appliances, such as
computers, printers and fax machines, are donated to NGOs to

support those in need.
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ENVIRONMENT (contd)

D. Use of Resources

Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed to
using resources efficiently and promoting recycling in our community.
We adopt different measures to promote the efficient use of energy,
water, and other raw materials. For examples, we use carpets that
are produced from recycled materials in a number of our commercial
properties and conserve the use of water by installing dual flush

toilets in some of the properties we own or manage.

The environmental metrics for 2020 and 2021 is tabulated below:

Unit

BfI

Energy consumption

RERUHRE
Electricity Kilowatt Hour (kWh)
CWi TELE
Gigajoule (GJ)
THREE
Towngas Gl
BR THREE
Energy consumption Intensity GJ/HK$ million revenue
ERERTE TREE /BEETKA

Greenhouse gas emissions
BRERBHER
Scope 1 — Direct emission

HE - BEHR

Tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent (tCO_e)

W_StREE

tCO,e

W_StiRER

Scope 2 — Indirect emission
HE2 - FEHR
Greenhouse gas emissions intensity

BERBHREE

tCO,e/HK$ million revenue
WSS/ FEBITRA
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D. EBRER

ERBEENEERR  AEERNEMEA
BIRRAREM B - R PIRECT R A A (2
HERER  KERREMERMBHBERER - 82
pImsE  BRAEBOERYERBABRBE
YRR EE - M AREAIRK - AP
BREENIO YRR EER RIS o

ZERTFER-FC

2021
Group 1 Group 2
portfolio* portfolio*
£—8 £
L/ES MELE*
32,060,131 5,568,953
115,416 20,048
0.00 4.42
104.22
0.00 0.23
18,894.69 2,554.68
16.50

—FEWREEZET
2020
Group 1 Group 2
portfolio* portfolio*
£ F8
ES ES
31,579,705 5,530,047
113,687 19,908
0.00 14.59
4393
0.00 1.00
22,148.29 3,194.12
8.33
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ENVIRONMENT (contd)

D.

Use of Resources (Cont'd)

Unit
v}
Non-hazardous waste
BEBREY
General waste collected Litres (L)
PR —MRREZEY) 7
Paper consumption Kilogramme (kg)
RoRIERE NIy
Paper recycled kg
(o] e 48 5 NIy
Metal/Aluminium recycled kg
B/ REl NI
Plastic recycled kg
BRE NI
Food waste recycled L
FFEAEK 7

Water consumption

FkE

Water Cubic metre (m?)

7K 7K

Water consumption intensity m?/HK$ million revenue
FREEE MFKBEBTRA

*

Notes to reporting boundary for environmental metrics

Group 1 portfolio refers to properties that are owned by Chinese
Estates, and properties owned by Chinese Estates’ substantial
shareholder which Chinese Estates is managing as an agent. We
consider Group 1 to be remained in our portfolio for a long period
of time. Group 1 portfolio includes: Chinese Estates’ headquarters,
The ONE, Silvercord, Windsor House, Causeway Place, Excelsior
Plaza (include Laforet), Wanchai Computer Centre and Harcourt
House.

Group 2 portfolio refers to properties that are currently not
owned by Chinese Estates, but the owners have appointed a
subsidiary of Chinese Estates to be the property manager (other
than those covered in Group 1 portfolio). For electricity and water
consumption, we only cover areas that we have control. General
waste collected refer to those collected from the entire property.
Group 2 portfolio includes: Chic Castle, Evergreen Garden, i-home,
Indihome, Manhattan Avenue, Miami Crescent, MOD 595, One
South Lane, One WanChai, Sunrise Villa, The Bellevue Place and
York Place.

BRiEw

BiR  HERERBEE

D. HERERE

2021 2020
Group 1 Group 2 Group 1 Group 2
portfolio* portfolio* portfolio* portfolio*
F-8 et £ F_H
MEAE ES ES ES
19,991,958 8,233,800 12,232,284 6,073,680
118,968.76 3,155.74 116,140.18 3,089.68
7,918.00 204.00 40,087.00 164.00
603.00 0.00 372.40 0.00
727.80 0.00 455.40 26.00
2,084.00 N/A FEH 258800  N/A A
145,932.00 47,217.00 144,480.00 50,250.00
148.60 64.03

RIEEENRERE 2 FHHA

E-BMEASEREABEERANY
¥ UNAEABETIERREABEE
RREANER)BERODE - RARBRFE—
BEeRPERMNREAGS - F—
BYEEABRTE  EABXRE - The
ONE - #Bh L - EEXRE - HEEM
- TR RES (BIER ALaforet) - EF B
S EREINE I

FREMEASIERNUIEREABER
BHME  BEFEEZAEABE MK
BRAREAMEEBRAGE—EWEBEH
SREMBRIN - MAERAKME @ HFE
HERPIFTIEG AR - TS —REEE
PN B EMERENEREY - E25EY
¥HEEBE Chicz®  REEE -
i-home ~ £44&/E + Manhattan Avenue - &

=& - MOD 595 HEE - TR - BH
FE - fM S E K York Place °
—E--FFRH EABEEE
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EMPLOYMENT

Employees play a critical role in the success of the Group. Chinese Estates
endeavours to create an equal, healthy and inclusive workplace for our
employees to grow together with the Group. Our Workplace Employment
Policy outlines the guidance to prohibit any discrimination and harassment,
offering healthy and safe workplaces, as well as provide comprehensive
trainings and professional development to employees. The Policy will be
reviewed regularly by the management to ensure the rights of employees
within the company are protected. With dignity and respect, we recognise
employees from diverse backgrounds, and we comply with the applicable
laws and regulations including the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of

the laws of Hong Kong).

A. People

Equal Opportunities

The Group adheres to providing employees with a pleasant and
harmonious working environment that can improve productivity
and staff morale. Our employees are required to comply with the
guideline of equal opportunities specified in the Code of Conduct
and to treat everyone with respect and dignity. We adhere to the
non-discrimination policy during the recruitment process. Applicants
are assessed based on their skill, ability and working experience
regardless of gender, age, ethnicity, religion, race, disability, marital or
family status, or any other characteristics protected by law. We assure
that our recruitment process remains fair and competitive and we
provide equal opportunities to employees in making all employment

decisions by us.

Remuneration

To attract and retain talent, we provide employees with a fair
and competitive remuneration package. Appraisal is conducted
annually by department heads. Salaries are reviewed based on the
performance and experience of the employees. Our promotion
policies are performance-based. Employees are rewarded with a
year-end discretionary bonus based on market conditions where
certain individual performance levels are met. Our remuneration
packages and policies are reviewed regularly to assure that
employees are assessed and rewarded based on their capabilities,

responsibilities and performance.
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EMPLOYMENT (contd)

A. People (Cont'd) A.

Workforce Composition

’( Total Number of Workforce
EESHE

m‘ﬁ

x Total Number of Workforce by Employment Category

2021

51 2 NAo%(of people

RERERZ S NESHH
Senior Management or Above Manager or Assistant Manager
SREEERUL IR B IR AR IR

2021 2021
24 No of people 43 No of people

2020 2020
No. of I No. of I
‘\ 27 )\o%(o people 3 8 )\O%ZO people

=< Total Number of Workforce by Gender

RMERESNESEE
Male
B
2021
p“‘ 2 9 1 T\og(of people
2020

No. of people (restated)
AB(EF)

289

’( Total Number of Workforce by Age Group
RERARS D NEEEE

63

209 s

2021

No. of people
N ¢

2020

ABU(ES))

No. of people (restated)

EEw

BE -

BB (&)
1ES 4 A
2020
5 ’I 5 No. of people (restated)
ABU(E7)
Senior Supervisor or Below
SREEIUT
A ) 2021
t { 445 No of people
K 2020
No. of people (restated)
450 AB(EF))
Female
-8
2021
No. of people
‘ 221
2020
No. of people (restated)
226 s
99

<30 years old
30BRA T

30-50 years old
308 E505%

>50 years old
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EMPLOYMENT (contd) & & @
A.  People (Cont'd) A. EE®HE)
Workforce Composition (Cont'd) 1ESHARK ()
== Total Number of Workforce by Employment Type
EEFEERESNESLY
Full-time Part-time
2 E 3
2021 S 2021 S
4 69 )\ogyo people 43 )\O§5(O people
2020 2020
4 7 4 l)l\ogyof people 4 ’I l)l\og(of people

’( Total Employee Turnover Rate
BEEMALE

7
LA

== Employee Turnover Rate by Gender
RERB D HEERKE

Male
B
2021
I A 28.97%
2020 (restated E71))
PO B

== Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group
RERERNEDWEERKE

2021
2020

(restated &%)

2021
2020

(restated &%)

2021
2020

[restated &3)

12.80%

32.70%
12.60%

. <30 years old

30FA T 305%-505%
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. 30-50 years old

2021

29.41%

2020 (restated &%)

11.64%

Female
Lt
2021
7 29.98%
2020 (restated &%)
¥ 10.55%

47.54%

. >50 years old
5057 A £
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EMPLOYMENT (contd)

A. People (Cont'd) A. EEHE)
Workforce Composition (Cont'd) ESHH (&)
‘\ Employee Turnover Rate by Geographical Region
BB B S DNEERAR
Hong Kong

> | &
,_ﬁ-\ ‘h 2021 2020

“\ 29.41% 11.64%

Occupational Health and Safety

Chinese Estates strives to provide a safe and health workplace
by managing the inherent risks in our operations. We comply
with all applicable laws and regulations including the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the laws of Hong Kong),
the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of
the laws of Hong Kong) and relevant safety practices stipulated in
Construction Sites (Safety) Regulations (Chapter 591 of the laws of
Hong Kong).

To ensure the health and safety of our building management
front-line employees, regular and surprise safety inspections are
conducted. Property managers and estate officers are required to
report any injuries at work, including our employees and contractors
and to submit an incident report to the Human Resources for record.
We also provide annual occupational health and safety training on
personal protective equipment, fire control, loading and unloading,
manual handling operations and confined space management.
Besides, we changed some of our training workshops into online
self-paced learning to safeguard our employees under the COVID-19
outbreak. Employees are required to review occupational health and

safety-related video clips on a regular basis.

Under the pandemic situation in 2021, government-required
preventive measures are adopted. Apart from introducing Employee
Guidelines on prevention of COVID-19, we also distributed surgical

masks and hand sanitizers to our employees to protect them.

In 2021, there were 10 confirmed injury incidents. 323 lost days due
to work injury or occupational diseases was recorded. No workplace

fatalities for our employees was recorded in the past three years.
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EMPLOYMENT (contd)

C.

Career and Personal Development

To improve service quality and maintain the competitiveness of
our employees, we provide trainings to employees in delivering
exceptional services to tenants and visitors and to cope with business
needs. In addition, we encourage employees to pursue further

education for self-enhancement or career development.

New hires are required to attend a compulsory New Hire Orientation
so as to get familiar with our corporate culture and to understand
their duties and skills required for their roles. On-the-job training
is provided to enhance employees’ job-related techniques and

consolidate industry knowledge.

Our Educational and Training Sponsorship Scheme supports
employees’ continuing education and skills training. Employees
enrolled in qualified courses with satisfactory performance are eligible
to apply for the sponsorship with reimbursement up to 100% of
the tuition fee. These include higher education courses relevant to
employees’ job duties organised by local educational institutions. The
external training programmes enable employees to enhance their
professionalism and maximise their potential, as well as become

well-rounded in their careers within the Group.

In alignment between our business needs and interest of our
employees, we regularly offer training that is tailored to individuals
and industry-specific. Training topics consists of the integral of various
business segments to equip employees with the necessary skills and
knowledge to manage the complex business scenario. In 2021, we
organised trainings and seminars on property management and data

privacy.

Building and property management is one of the key business
segments which highly depends on specialised knowledge and
practical skills that goes beyond the professional qualification.
Therefore, we regularly offer specialised trainings under various
circumstances, including topics ranging from occupational health and
safety to customer service. Apart from receiving specific professional
training, office employees should abide by the annual training plan
while front-line employees would attend regular on-site trainings with

tracked records of attendance.
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EMPLOYMENT (Contd) 316

C. Career and Personal Development (Cont'd) C BEEBAZE®E
Development and training data of Building Management Department NTAREEMEEELRN _T_—FHNER
of the Group in 2021 are as follows: RIBFNEUE

Percentage of Employees Received Training by Gender

BRURBINZINEET DL

Male B1& 2.75%
Female %1% 4.07%

Percentage of Employees Received Training by Employment Category

RERENBINZIEET DL

Senior Management or Above =R B B LA L 0.00%
Manager or Assistant Manager 4X32 5§ B 2 45 32 2.33%
Senior Supervisor or Below mAREFHIAT 3.60%

Average Training Hours Per Trained Employee by Gender

BURBINEERIES FHZIER

Male 14 2.00 Hours /]NE
Female Z 1% 1.88 Hours 7]\

Average Training Hours Per Trained Employee by Employment Category

RERENBINEEZIEETIZIRY

Senior Management or Above = #R B B LA L 0.00 Hour /)\E
Manager or Assistant Manager #4532 s 3 3 45 38 2.00 Hours /N
Senior Supervisor or Below = A& EFSIA T 1.88 Hours /) \E

CEC-FFHR EABXEE
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COMMUNITY

Chinese Estates is dedicated to creating values for society while striving for
company growth. We are keen to engage in various charitable activities,
donation and sponsorship events to show our love and care to the
society. Our Community Investment Policy demonstrates our commitment
to making a positive social impact through integrating the community
development plan with business operations. Besides, the Policy summaries
the focus areas for our community programmes, namely environmental
protection and conservation and youth and children development. We strive
to nurture a culture of social responsibility through partnership with NGOs
in organizing community activities to promote a caring culture in the society.
Our employees are welcomed to join the Chinese Estates Volunteer Team
to interact with people from different sectors of the community and help
the people in need. We believe that the business — community partnership
will provide long-term benefits to the society and foster a friendly and

caring culture in the company.

We also encourage our employees to give back to the society by joining
different volunteer and charitable activities. During the reporting year,
we participated in 6 charitable activities, contributing to a total of 201
volunteering hours. For instance, we have been participating in the “Life
Buddies” Mentoring Scheme for the fifth consecutive year to provide
mentorship support to the youth. This year, 17 staff joined to be the
mentors and accompanied the youth to gain different life exposures and
to explore potential career paths by participating in academic and career

development workshops.

List of charitable activities we have participated as follows:

Organisation

HE

Ocean Park Conservation Foundation, Hong Kong
BEEEXLBEREES

World Vision

tHREHE

Commission On Poverty

KEZE®

Heep Hong Society

EE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Charitable Activities
BETEE

Run for Survival 2021
[ RE{RETE2021]

Skip-A-Meal 2021

#2021

“Life Buddies" Mentoring Scheme 2020/21
[-Z1A) )R A& 5T 812020/21
Heep Hong Society Flag Day 2021
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COMMUNITY (contd)

With the consideration beyond financial return, Chinese Estates integrates

community investment into business operation. We leverage our resources

to support the local community by offering shopping mall spaces that are

under our management to different organizations for hosting exhibitions,

charity sales and publicity events.

REASONS FOR NOT REPORTING CERTAIN
“COMPLY OR EXPLAIN" PROVISIONS OF THE

GUIDE

“Comply or explain” Provisions

[ 8 <F 5 AR R X

HE®

FEAEBETREEFBEEE  THEHLEREBAZE
&M - BPMAEREA LR  ETEEMN

SR TRAREREEMERRE
FGE -

ARIESIPE T N ETRERE]
R AFEH 2 R E

Reasons
R&A

A. Environmental
A RiE

Aspect Al: Emissions

BHEAT : BB

Key Performance
Indicator (“KPI")
A1.1

AREIER
(TEARERIERD
Al

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

B iE AR R BE M BUE -

During the reporting period, there was no significant
emission of NOx, SOx and other pollutants in our
operations.

RREA - BMEEERTERNEHERAA
W A Y R E MR

KPI A1.3
RASEMIEIRALS

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity.
FESEEREEDAE CATE) k(ER) =
B o

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBHEA2 : EREA

During the reporting period, there was no significant
production of hazardous waste in our operations.
RBEHRR - BAELER Y BELNERZE
L7/

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing During the reporting period, there was no issue in
BASRIEIEIZA2.4 | water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) sourcing water for our operations.
set and steps taken to achieve them. REREBRA - BAPIEEER I & SKEUKR T E &)
FASKEGEROR E R B ER R - ARPRETSZ. | AR o
BRKE B R R AER S L B R ERER A
KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in | The issue of packaging materials is considered not

BASE B IEIRA2.5

tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

B TR e MR E S (AR E) & (0@
R)EBEESBMGE -

significant in our operations.

R RMNBET S L TEA -

—E--EEH

EABEEE
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REASONS FOR NOT REPORTING CERTAIN
“COMPLY OR EXPLAIN" PROVISIONS OF THE

GUIDE (Cont'd)

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BHEA3 : RERRXAER

KPI A3.1
BB A MR IRAS]

B. Social
B. #&

Description of the significant impacts of activities on
the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.
HIREBEHHREIRABERNEAZERE
REEREHT BT -

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[ETEBA4 : T %A

BiR  HERERHEE

AERIESIFEFI A ETHAERE]
R XAEE R 2 R E @)

During the reporting period, there was no significant
impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources.

RBmESHAN > UEREREBDERERRAERERK
BEARE -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment The issue of child and forced labour is considered not
BSRAEIEIEB4.1 | practices to avoid child and forced labour. significant in our operations.
Ho i E R HE 1B (] 60 1R bt DA SR B T R SR | 55 BEIRBHSIHEHBMNEENSLAERK -
T o
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices During the reporting period, there was no
BSEAEIEIRB4.2 | when discovered. non-compliance case regarding child and forced labour.

R IRERITNE B B RIS TR &

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EHEB6 : EmEE

KPI B6.1
RABR AR AIEIRB6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.
EENEEXERAHT A2 BERIEAMEA
B GRS A
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RBEPR - WEBMEET REHS TN TEST
(EESC

During the reporting year, no products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
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HE st E BT A R
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chinese Estates
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 119 to 281, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BYZBERES
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key

audit matter

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group recorded net loss  Our procedures in relation to the
attributable to owners of the  adoption of the going concern basis
Company of approximately

HK$3,515,305,000 and other

in the preparation of the consolidated

financial statements included, but were

comprehensive expenses  not limited to:
attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately = — assessing the reasonableness of

HK$10,860,401,000 for the

year ended 31 December

the key assumptions adopted by
the management in the preparation
2021. of the cash flow projections,
including revenue growth, gross
profit margin and planned capital
expenditures, by reference to
actual historical performance of
the Group and making reference
to the Group's future development
plans, including assessing whether
there is adequate support for
these assumptions; and testing
the mathematical accuracy of the

projections;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key

audit matter

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements on a going

concern basis (Cont'd)

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements (Cont'd)

In the preparation of the
consolidated financial
statements, the directors of
the Company have made the
assessment that the Group is
able to continue as a going
concern. To support the going
concern assessment, the
management of the Group has
prepared a cash flow projections
of the Group covering a period
of not less than twelve months
from 31 December 2021 and
concluded that there would
be sufficient funds from the
Group's existing cash resources,
financial support from a director
and cash flows to be generated
from its operations to finance its
future operations and enable it
to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due in
the next twelve months from
31 December 2021.

The preparation of the cash
flow projections involved the
management making key
assumptions about inherently
uncertain future outcomes
of events or conditions such
as revenue growth, gross
profit margin, planned capital
expenditures and availability
of credit and other financing

facilities to the Group.

Our procedures in relation to the
adoption of the going concern basis
in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements included, but were
not limited to: (Cont'd)

— confirming the cash resources and
available facility from the director
as at year end by circularisation
of confirmations and assessing
the probability of banking facilities
renewal during the projection
period by examining historical
records of renewal pattern, and
reviewing the management
assessment on the present and
forecast status of compliance with
restrictive loan covenants, where

relevant; and

— evaluating the sensitivity of the
projected available cash by
considering downside scenarios
through applying reasonably
plausible changes to the key
assumptions, including revenue
growth and gross profit margin.
We have also considered the
appropriateness of the relevant

disclosures.

We found the use of going concern
basis of accounting to be supportable

by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to Notes 19 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements

The management has
estimated the fair value
of the Group's investment
properties to be approximately
HK$13,292,161,000 as
at 31 December 2021
with a net loss on fair
value changes for the year
ended 31 December 2021
recorded in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income of approximately
HK$1,376,616,000.
Independent external
valuations were obtained in
respect of all of the portfolio
of the Group, and also of
the investment properties
held by the associates of the
Group, in order to support the

management’s estimates.

The valuations are dependent
on certain key assumptions that
require significant management
judgment including, but not
limited to, reversionary yield
and rental income from future
reversion leases in light of

current market conditions.

Our procedures in relation to
management's valuation of investment
properties included, but were not

limited to:

— evaluating the independent external
valuers' competence, capabilities
and objectivity;

— assessing the valuation
methodologies used and the
reasonableness of the key
assumptions and parameters based
on our knowledge of the property
industry and using our auditors’

valuation experts; and

— checking, on sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the input

data used.

We found the key assumptions were

supported by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Fair value measurement on financial assets

Refer to Notes 5(c), 25 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2021,
the Group held unlisted bond,
unlisted equity securities
(including limited partnership)
and structured product
with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$28,037,000,
HK$1,527,466,000 and
HK$6,840,000 respectively.
These financial instruments
do not have a quoted market
price in an active market (the
“Unquoted Investments”). They
were classified as financial
assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive
income or financial assets
measured at fair value through
profit or loss and measured at

fair value.

Our procedures in relation to the fair
value measurement of the Group's
portfolio of the Unquoted Investments

included, but were not limited to:

— enquiring the management and
assessing the methodologies
used in fair value measurement
and the appropriateness of the
key assumptions and parameters
based on our knowledge of the
investment and using our auditors’

valuation experts;

— enquiring the management about
the assumptions around the
sustainability of earnings based
on the plans of the investee
companies and whether those

were achievable;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key

audit matter

Fair value measurement on financial assets (Cont'd)

Refer to Notes 5(c), 25 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements

(Cont'd)

The valuation of the Unquoted
Investments is complex and
requires the application of
significant judgment by the

management.

The Unqguoted Investments are
valued on a basis considered
the most appropriate by the
management and independent
external valuers, depending on
the nature of the underlying
business which has been

invested in.

Our procedures in relation to the fair

value measurement of the Group's

portfolio of the Unquoted Investments

included, but were not limited to:
(Cont'd)

obtaining management information
including budgets and forecasts
from the portfolio companies
being valued and using these to
corroborate the key inputs in the

valuation model;

checking, on sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the input
data used such as comparing key
underlying financial data inputs
to external sources and investee
companies’ audited financial
statements and management

information as applicable;

obtaining market second hand
prices independently and
comparing them to the valuation

model;

evaluating the independent external
valuers’ competence, capabilities
and objectivity; and

checking the arithmetical accuracy

on the valuation model.

We considered the management's

fair value measurement on financial

assets were supported by the available

evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT BV B EE

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the Group's 2021
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements

and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT BV B EE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, as amended, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT BV B EE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (contd)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also: (Cont'd)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

BB E RS M RRARE
ZEE®

ERBEEEAEAETEA ZBED  EFER
THEXRHE RETERERIEER - BF ¢

(%)

HEFRARECESHER 2 REMERS
oo IRIBFTER 2 BiRE  MERLFAH
RIENER A EATHEEN - Al aeE
BY BEEIHERKERNEESARE-
HEERAFEEATHEEN  NAXNEERZ
BABREFRBEABIELRAVBRETZ
HEARE  WEHACHKETRE  AESEEH
RIEBRBER - TEZEREENZEEIR
ERIEFTES 2 BEHRE o A - RAKFEK
BERATREEY BEEETHEERBELE -

. TEGAUBRRZEERZY AR - HBEAR
é’a%ﬁﬁ'u&ﬁawﬁﬁﬁizﬂim
IR 5 KRBT -

0 B ERBEAERIEKLD UK EERS
RARRIGE 2BEE - WEHGEEUBHRE
BRER - BFRAKEEFMZIR  EER
T - BEEREFABRAELHEE -

BREMERN BFEBZZBEBB T E L
BRELBHLZHEARBEAENBARE  BEES
FERET PR A ARER IR 2 (A B ARERE -

BELENAEZZERRERRY  FABFENEE
MBIt HEERER  YRMLMBEBETRES
BERARTETEBIEZMERENEMSE
B UREERZBERAT AR BIMESL
BB M TTEN SRRV BRHE 1 ©

—FER EABEEE

117



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT BV B EE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (contd)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent

auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practising Certificate Number: PO6417

Hong Kong, 21 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Revenue
Cost of goods and services provided

Gross profit

Other income

Investment expenses, net

Administrative expenses

Gain on disposals of equipment, net

Fair value changes on investment properties

Finance costs

Other gains and losses

Share of results of investments accounted for
using the equity method

(Loss) profit before tax
Income tax expense

(Loss) profit for the year

Other comprehensive expenses
Items that will not be reclassified to

profit or loss

Gains and losses on investments in equity
instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Share of other comprehensive expenses
of investments accounted for using
the equity method

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Share of other comprehensive income
of investments accounted for using
the equity method

Other comprehensive expenses for the year
(net of tax)

mEEZERFERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZE = =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

WA
RHEmERSE 2 KA

EH

HA A

REFAXFR

TTHRAX
HERE 2 WaFER
BREMEZ A HEE
s E M

Hiplas ME1E
BEARREARKEZ
E S

B0 AT (B 1R) i A
PSR

AFE (BR)EN

Ht 2%

TEENTHEREZ

EH

3B B ELAD B T W R DA SR R
NP EFEZRATAKE
Z Moz K 5 1R
BEARREARKEZ
Hitb 2 E

BEIEEN T BEEREZ

EHE

BINEBFELZ
[ E
BEAEREARKEZ
Hith 2w e

AEEHMEE
(BRBi1R)

Total comprehensive expenses for the year NEEZHE X HELE

Notes

B eE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
1,299,826 3,041,464
(282,458) (79,938)
1,017,368 2,961,526
63,211 281,268
(2,628,876) (427,829)
(344,495) (320,600)
256 6,299
(1,376,616) (1,549,240)
(104,476) (215,559)
(50) (4,860)
(106,682) (38,459)
(3,480,360) 692,546
(33,188) (70,282)
(3,513,548) 622,264
(10,842,215) (5,763,244)
(60) (93)
(10,842,275) (5,763,337)
(20,454) 152,262
2,328 10,225
(18,126) 162,487
(10,860,401) (5,600,850)
(14,373,949) (4,978,586)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #H&Z2HEW =X
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FET FHT
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to:  FE{L 2 & (5518) %A
Owners of the Company PA/NIE 2N (3,515,305) 622,233
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 1,757 31
(3,513,548) 622,264
Total comprehensive expenses EhHEAFEER2ER HAE !
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZA/NIE 2SN (14,375,706) (4,978,617)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R R 1,757 31
(14,373,949) (4,978,586)
(Loss) earnings per share (HK$) BR(EER) BT (BT 18
Basic and diluted AERRES (1.843) 0.326

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — #R& M BHREAM R A M BEHREN—BH -

financial statements.
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Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Investments accounted for
using the equity method

Advances to associates

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Advance to an investee company

Deferred tax assets

Pledged deposits

Prepayments

Current assets

Stock of properties

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Inventories

Debtors, deposits, other receivables and

prepayments

Securities trading receivables and deposits

Tax recoverable
Pledged deposits

Time deposits, bank balances and cash

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR OR |k

At 31 December 2021 A-Z-—F+_-_HA=+—H

FRBEE

KREME
WE -~ BB k&
EREEE
BEE
AEREANRZIEE

g NI O
BRBEENARBRATE
AEZEREE

38 3 L At 2 T W DA S Bk
ATEFEZSHEE
BN —EEXIRE R RRA
BELERIAEE

EREFR

AN RIA

RBEE

MEFE
il AR A E
AEZEREE

3B E At 2 T R DA SR AR
ANHEHEZEREE
&

FEWARIA ~ S - HEW

fRIB R FEN FROR

FEW B2 5 IRIB R A7
QEAEEE
EREFR

EMER - RITEBRAS

Notes

B eE

25

26
27
28
29(a)
30

31

25

26
32

30
29(b)

29(a)
29(0)

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FHET
13,292,161 14,373,283
184,996 169,262
59,742 126,215
2,095,096 2,199,510
50,060 48,463
156,633 1,629,070
1,527,466 14,407,220
100,737 100,737
3,920 11,272
4,308 81,974
34,762 50,380
17,509,881 33,197,386
23,316 232,938
600,084 1,921,466
364,582 -
3,514 4,964
260,738 250,152
69,422 27,055
12,457 2,344
273,202 178,532
2,479,874 1,654,542
4,087,189 4,271,993
2 -FFR EANBELEH



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %4 B ik niR %
At 31 December 2021 R=—ZE=-—F+=-_HA=+—H

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P & FExT FAT
Current liabilities i =R
Creditors and accruals JE < BR T8 K FE T 3R0R 33 201,896 158,469
Securities trading and margin payable ENBELFRZRERRES 12,163 38,883
Deposits and receipts in advance Ze RIBIGRIE 172,660 167,623
Lease liabilities HEAE 21(b) 50,673 67,300
Tax liabilities HEBE 3,590 36,110
Borrowings BE 34 3,642,977 5,312,436
Derivative financial instrument TEeRT A 35 - 111
4,083,959 5,780,932
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEEBREFE 3,230 (1,508,939)
Total assets less current liabilities BEABRABAE 17,513,111 31,688,447
Equity attributable to owners of AABEEARGRAER
the Company
Share capital [N 36 190,762 190,762
Financial assets measured at fair value 3 38 LAt 2 TH b s DA S A
through other comprehensive income NP EFEZERMEEL
reserve B (1,582,049) 65,461
Contribution reserve A 206,627 206,627
Statutory reserve EEEE 668 668
Special reserve R 2,499,685 2,499,685
Capital redemption reserve N EHEE 138,062 138,062
Translation reserve b 5 (4 (335,536) (317,410)
Retained profits RE RN
— proposed final dividend — BRRHAR B - 19,076
— others - Hf 13,257,387 25,955,852
14,375,606 28,758,783
Non-controlling interests FEIERE S 23,224 21,467
Total equity BAERERE 14,398,830 28,780,250
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 4R& Bk iR«
At 31 December 2021 R=ZZE=-—F+_-A=+—H

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Amounts due to associates
Amounts due to investee companies
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 21 March

2022 and signed on its behalf by:

BRELEE
EF

Chan, Hoi-wan

Director

¥FRBEE
e
KE-\HHF =
raE%

¢ N AIFOR

ﬁé&ﬂﬁ’&lﬁ

RE FRE AR

HEAE

EEHBARE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M FH&xT FHET
34 1,812,537 1,951,396
37 302,344 260,344
37 931,848 581,898
37 275 275
21(b) 9,037 57,890
28 58,240 56,394
3,114,281 2,908,197
17,513,111 31,688,447
BEEEEN ST __F=-A-+—HBH#LERERE
BT WA NINEBSRRESSRSE
Lam, Kwong-wai MHEF
Director EE2
REMERRNENGAE M IERERA—ZD -
——FFER EABEEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GERETEZEFHR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BIZE=E-—F+-_A=+—BILFE

At 1 January 2020

Profit for the year
Cains and losses on investments in
equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income
— Listed equity investments
— Unlisted investments
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive income of

investments accounted for using the equity method

Total comprehensive expenses for the year
Transfer of reserve upon disposal of the
investment in an equity instrument measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
Disposals of debt securities
Interim dividend for 2020 paid
Final dividend for 2019 paid

At 31 December 2020
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Attributable to owners of the Company

FOAERARERAFES

Financial assets
measured

at fair value

through other
comprehensive

Share capital income reserve
BREMEERES
NURMATLETE

BE 2EREEZRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR
(note (i)

GiEH0)

190,762 5,829,284

Contribution

reserve

TERE
HK$'000
TET
(note (ii))
GiEA0)

- (5,761,885)
- (1,359)

- (93)

- (5,763,337)

- (486)

206,627

190,762 65,461

206,627




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #HEeRAERES B R
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREANEERARER
Capital Non-
Statutory Special redemption Translation Retained controlling
reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total equity
EERE KRR E EXROERE ER REBR #a FERER RARRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TEL TEL
(note (iii) (note (iv))
(BRFEE i) GEI)
668 2,499,685 138,062 (479,897) 25,390,361 33,568,925 21,436 33,590,361
S S S = 622,233 622,233 31 622,264
= = = = = (5,761,885) = (5,761,885)
- - - - - (1359) - (1,359)
S S S 152,262 = 152,262 = 152,262
S S S 10,225 = 10,132 = 10,132
= = = 162,487 622,233 (4,978617) 31 (4,978,586)
- - - = 486 = = -
= = = = = 206,627 = 206,627
= = = = (19,076) (19,076) = (19,076)
- - = = (19,076) (19,076) = (19,076)
668 2,499,685 138,062 (317,410) 25,974,928 28,758,783 21,467 28,780,250
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

At 1 January 2021

Loss for the year
CGains and losses on investments in
equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income
— Listed equity investment
— Unlisted investments
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive income of

investments accounted for using the equity method

Total comprehensive expenses for the year

Transfer of reserve upon disposal/derecognition of
the investments in equity instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income

Final dividend for 2020 paid

Unclaimed dividends forfeited (note (v))

At 31 December 2021
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RERTERBER

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOARERARMERAFES

Financial assets
measured

at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income reserve
BREMEEWES
NRMATLETE
ZEMEEZRE
HK$'000

TR

(note (i)
iEA0)

Share capital

LEN
HK$'000
TAT

190,762 65,461

Contribution

reserve

TERE
HK$'000
TET
(note (ii))
GiEA0)

206,627

- (10,921,850
s 79,635

- (60)

= (10,842,275)

= 9,194,765

190,762 (1,582,049)

206,627




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY SZRERAEAEZEE X
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREAEERA#ER
Capital Non-
Statutory Special redemption Translation Retained controlling
reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total equity
EERE KRR E BEXRERE ER REBR #a FERER RARRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TET
(note (iii)) (note (iv))
(Bt £ Gii)) GEI)
668 2,499,685 138,062 (317,410) 25,974,928 28,758,783 21,467 28,780,250
= = = = (3,515,305) (3,515,305) 1,757 (3,513,548)
= = = = = (10,921,850) = (10,921,850)
- - - - - 79,635 - 79,635
= = = (20,454) = (20,454) = (20,454)
- - - 2,328 - 2,268 - 2,268
= = = (18,126) (3,515,305)  (14,375,706) 1,757 (14,373,949)
= = = = (9,194,765) = = =
= = = = (19,076) (19,076) = (19,076)
- - - - 11,605 11,605 - 11,605
668 2,499,685 138,062 (335,536) 13,257,387 14,375,606 23,224 14,398,830
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #4HRERAERBE X

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

Notes:

(i)  The cumulative amount of the loss on listed equity investment classified
as financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI") was approximately HK$2,484,787,000 as at
31 December 2021 (2020: HK$781,957,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the loss on fair value
change from shares of China Evergrande Group (listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange")) (stock code:
3333) (“China Evergrande”) (“Evergrande Shares”) of approximately
HK$10,921,850,000 (2020: HK$5,762,000,000), comprising unrealised
loss of approximately HK$3,051,943,000 (2020: HK$5,762,000,000),
realised loss on the disposal of certain Evergrande Shares of
approximately HK$7,867,045,000 (2020: no disposal) and the
transaction costs of the disposal of approximately HK$2,862,000 (2020:
no disposal) was recorded in financial assets measured at FVTOCI
reserve. Upon completion of the disposal of certain Evergrande Shares
during the year ended 31 December 2021, the cumulative fair value
loss and the transaction costs in the financial assets measured at FVTOCI
reserve that related to the disposed Evergrande Shares, which amounted
to approximately HK$9,219,020,000, was transferred to retained profits.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) derecognised two equity
instruments (2020: one equity instrument) measured at FVTOCI, the
cumulative fair value gain of approximately HK$24,255,000 (2020:
HK$486,000) in the financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve that
related to the equity instruments was transferred to retained profits.

(i)  The contribution reserve represented the excess amount paid by
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan, who is a trustee of substantial shareholders of the
Company (“Trustee of Substantial Shareholders”), as the purchaser in
relation to the Group's disposals of debt securities in 2020 (details are
set out in Note 25(i)), at the consideration of 100% of principal amount
over the prevailing market bid price of the debt securities disposed of
was directly recognised in the reserve as it is deemed as the contribution
from the Company's equity participant.

(i) The statutory reserve of the Group refers to the People’s Republic of
China ("PRC") statutory reserve fund. Appropriations to such reserve
fund are made out of profit after tax as recorded in the statutory financial
statements of the PRC subsidiaries. The amount should not be less
than 10% of the profit after tax as recorded in the statutory financial
statements unless the aggregate amount exceeds 50% of the registered
capital of the PRC subsidiaries. The statutory reserve can be used to
make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into
the PRC subsidiaries’ capital by means of capitalisation issue.

(iv)  The special reserve represented the difference arising from the aggregate
of the share capital and premium amount of the former holding
company and the Company upon redomicile of the holding company as
a Bermuda Company in 1989 and is non-distributable.

(v)  Unclaimed dividends forfeited represented dividends declared by
the Company on or before 15 June 2015 remaining unclaimed by
shareholders of the Company on 3 September 2021. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, unclaimed dividends amounted to
approximately HK$1 1,605,000 (2020: nil) were forfeited and transferred
to retained profits.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Operating activities
(Loss) profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Interest expenses
Interest income from other financial assets
Allowance for credit losses recognised
in respect of trade receivables
Reversal of allowance for credit losses
recognised in respect of trade receivables
Unrealised loss (gain) arising from change in
fair value of bonds
Unrealised loss arising from change in
fair value of structured products
Unrealised loss arising from change in
fair value of investments held-for-trading
Unrealised (gain) loss arising from change in
fair value of club and corporate debentures
Realised loss (gain) arising from change in
fair value of financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss
Unrealised (gain) loss arising from change in
fair value of derivative financial instrument
Gain on disposals of equipment, net
Share of results of investments accounted
for using the equity method
Allowance for credit losses recognised
in respect of advances to associates
Reversal of allowance for credit losses
recognised in respect of advance to
an associate
Allowance for credit losses recognised
in respect of interest receivables from bonds
Fair value changes on investment properties
Overprovision of costs in respect of
a development project
Write-down of stock of properties

Exchange (gain) loss, net

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REBRETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZE = =-—F+-A=+—HILFE
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2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
My TExT FHET
(3,480,360) 692,546
56,355 25,624
68,417 62,564
90,808 188,332
(4,195) (6,705)
13 2,852
(3,059) (29)
606,931 (14,912)
1,160 1,897
339,614 12,678
(4,944) 1,646
1,489,980 (7,345)
(1,623) 11
(256) (6,299)
106,682 38,459
47 56
= (29)
11,885 -
1,376,616 1,549,240
(7,059) (1,877)
- 4,831
(11,359) 21,134
TE--FFR EABEEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #IRERE&RER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

—

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P & FExT FAT
Operating cash flows before movements in EEEREHRIZ
working capital KERSRE 635,653 2,564,774
Decrease (increase) in stock of properties MEFER D GE ) 214,466 411)
Decrease (increase) in inventories e R e: ill)) 1,450 (2,636)
(Increase) decrease in debtors, deposits, JEMERIA - 1&e - HEUERIE
other receivables and prepayments R FERFRIE G )R (31,105) 51,195
Decrease in financial assets measured mRBEEARRATERFEZ
at fair value through profit or loss SREERLD 633,808 5,432,083
Decrease (increase) in securities trading FEWEE 52 S RIB RN
receivables and deposits B> (38 hn) 314 (10,094)
Increase in creditors and accruals FEATBRIE K JE R T FRIHE AN 38,780 6,250
(Decrease) increase in securities trading and ENESZXZERERRES
margin payable CRLA) 10 (24,969) 27,635
Increase (decrease) in deposits and receipts B& RIBRFIEE INCR AL
in advance 6,152 (52,677)
Decrease in derivative financial instrument PTESMITARD (111) (6,060)
Cash generated from operating activities RELEEB 2R 1,474,438 8,010,059
Income tax paid, net B FSEUF5E (67,975) (170,770)
Net cash generated from operating RAREXB RS FHE
activities 1,406,463 7,839,289
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Investing activities
Interest received from other financial assets
Payments for investment properties
Payments for purchases of equipment and
leasehold improvement
Proceeds from disposals of equipment
Advances to associates
Advances from associates
Advances/repayments from
investee companies
(Increase) decrease in pledged deposits
Decrease in time deposits with

maturity greater than three months

Net proceeds from disposals of financial assets

measured at fair value through profit or loss

Net proceed from disposal/derecognition of
financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Purchases of financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss

Net cash outflow arising from acquisition of
assets through acquisition of a subsidiary

(Contribution to) net return of capital
contribution from a financial asset
measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Net cash generated from (used in)

investing activities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

?E—AIﬁﬁl)ILE%‘:{

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

REEK
BEM SR EE TS
XN EYERIE
XNBEEREREENERE
FRIA
&R EFTISHRIA
B AR ZFIE
B EHE QR 2R
BRI EEAEREIRERRZ
HIA
HEIRIF Rz (80D R
FRAZR =8 A 2 & BFER
Ve
HEBRBERARMAFES
ZERMEEZSHIEFE
&/ BUEHERBBEMEEK
HURBAFEFEZSRE
EZFSHRIBFRE
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ZEREE
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REFR

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M TExT FHET
4,546 7,333
(163,658) (47,792)
(28,827) (143,130)
260 6,394
(1,366) (594)
42,000 47,964
349,950 218,500
(16,699) 5,972
36,109 118,700
895,248 1,062,626
1,639,162 2,767
(1,166,355) (1,000,856)
38 (161,114) (352,438)
(9,011) 9,312
1,420,245 (65,242)
——FER EABEEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #ZLREéBEE&ERER
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P & FExT FAT
Financing activities ME X
Dividends paid BEfRRE (19,076) (38,152)
Interest on bank borrowings and ERRITEEREMES
other borrowings paid A (91,505) (196,651)
Payments for lease liabilities (including interest) X E& & (BIEFE) (69,258) (56,106)
Bank borrowings and other borrowings raised FIGRITEERHEMEE 3,835,709 5,735,541
Loans from a director raised FICEEER 420,218 589,778
Repayments of bank borrowings and BERRITEEREMER
other borrowings (5,639,582) (12,224,650)
Repayments of loans from a director EREEEX (420,218) (589,549)
Deemed contribution from an equity WRIEARNARERBEE Y
participant of the Company FE - 206,627
Net cash used in financing activities ARRMEXE RS FH (1,983,712) (6,573,162)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RE&RRESEZEER ZEMFHE 842,996 1,200,885
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BZzRERBALZHEER 1,618,908 413,190
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERgH o8 17,970 4,833
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+ =—B=+—HA2ZREK
REEEEH 2,479,874 1,618,908
Analysis of the balances of cash and RERRCEHEBEERDN
cash equivalents
Time deposits, bank balances and cash TFHGEH - BITEB LIRS 2,479,874 1,654,542
Less: Time deposits with original maturity B RIERBHER=EAZ
greater than three months TEBIER 29(c) - (35,634)
2,479,874 1,618,908

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated 438 BB MEM TR A ISR —BH ©

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-—F+=_A=+—HItFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
The addresses of the Company's registered office and principal
office in Hong Kong are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of this annual report. The Company was indirectly
owned as to 74.99% by Sino Omen Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands of which the entire issued
share capital was held by Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan as the trustee of her
minor children, Lau, Chung-hok, Lau, Sau-wah and Lau, Sau-yee.
Further details of the substantial shareholders of the Company
are disclosed in the paragraph headed “Substantial Shareholders'
Interests in the Securities of the Company” in the section headed

“Directors’ Report” of this annual report.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar ("HK$"), which is same as the functional currency of
the Company and all amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand
(HK$'000) except otherwise indicated.

The Company's principal activity is investment holding and the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set

out in Notes 47 and 48 respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRSs

The accounting policies adopted in these consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 are consistent
with those followed in the preparation of the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 except

as described below.

1.

—RE#

RARA—HREREIMEL 2 EREHR
AR HRORBRF LW o RAFLZ M
EERBEBETERSHE MU REFRIA A
B8 T LA E - KA T BHSino Omen
Holdings Limited (— 17 5888 4 B m B & 5 fif
L2 AR BB T74.99%  HE2HB#
TR BB L L ((ERERKEF R EIH
B.RAFERIAFZZETNEE c KAF
FERRZE—SHFBERAFRIETERS
EI—HFEERRRAAR 2B F ] —
AT IARE -

R EPBHERABT(EBITDZ5 BT
RARBZYeeEY - BEBRZEHBI - B
BRHUBERAAZREOZ THEFTET)

RABZEBEBRIREER  MAZZWE
NEIRBERNR 2 EBEB DRI R
475248

FERFFT REE B HREE
A2 85T

BTAESN  BE-B-—F+-A=+—A
I 2 AN B RRAR 2 & R
RARERE-FT-TE-AS+-BLA
E2Ea R RRA RIS 5 -

SR -RFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HKFRSs (Cont'd)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
("“Amendments”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time, including those
which are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on
or after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of these consolidated

financial statements:

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4, and
HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

beyond 30 June 2021!

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 and
early application is permitted

Except as described below, the application of the Amendments
had no material impact on the Group's financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures

set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HKFRSs (Cont'd)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 “Interest Rate Benchmark

Reform - Phase 2"

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments relate to changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial liabilities as a
result of interest rate benchmark reform and the related disclosure

requirements applying HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”.

As at 1 January 2021, the Group had several financial liabilities and
derivatives, the interests of which are indexed to benchmark interest

rates that will or may be subject to interest rate benchmark reform.

As at 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021, the Group
had borrowings with carrying amount of approximately
HK$5,091,707,000 and approximately HK$2,127,820,000
respectively and a derivative with notional amount of
HK$1,238,000,000 on both dates, the interests of which were
indexed to benchmark interest rates that will or may be subject to
interest rate benchmark reform, i.e. Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR") or London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR").

During the year ended 31 December 2021, some of the relevant
contracts have been transitioned to the relevant alternative
benchmark interest rates. Such transitions have had no material
impact on these consolidated financial statements as the Group
has applied the practical expedient in relation to the changes in
contractual cash flows resulting from the interest rate benchmark
reform for borrowings measured at amortised cost. Additional

disclosures as required by HKFRS 7 are set out in Note 5(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

ER#HITIREEBMERELE
B 2 85T )

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HKFRSs (Cont'd)

AREBURREFRA TS EAEIDRERZ
A R EBM B RE LR BT ([FT &

The Group has not early adopted the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs (“new and amended HKFRSs") that have

been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

(Amendments)

HKFRS 17

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2 (Amendments)

HKAS 8 (Amendments)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 16 (Amendments)

HKAS 37 (Amendments)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020'

Reference to the Conceptual Framework'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture?

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities

arising from a Single Transaction?
Property, Plant and Equipment —

Proceeds before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract!

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined
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BEGHERESR(ETA)

F

BAGEAFI20
(CHES

BAGEE165
(CHES

EEQANES
(s372)
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FERE
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BRESEAREN
ERBDABREEE
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The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are in the process of
assessing the potential impact of the new and amended HKFRSs
but are not yet in a position to determine whether the new and
amended HKFRSs will have a material impact on the Group's
performance and financial position and on the disclosures. The new
and amended HKFRSs may result in changes to how the Group's
performance and financial position are prepared and presented in

the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEME

POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the HKICPA and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, these consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
("Listing Rules”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Going concern assessment

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group incurred
net loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$3,515,305,000 and other comprehensive expenses attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$10,860,401,000.
Notwithstanding the above, these consolidated financial statements

have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The management closely monitors the Group's financial performance
and liquidity position. The validity of the going concern basis of
preparation of these consolidated financial statements depends upon
the success of the Group's future operations, its ability to generate
adequate cash flows in order to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due, and its ability to refinance or restructure its
borrowings such that the Group can meet its future working capital

and financing requirements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

3,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Going concern assessment (Cont'd)

Based on the latest communications with the banks, the Directors are
not aware of any intention of the principal banks to withdraw their
bank facilities or require early repayment of the bank borrowings, and
the Directors believe that the existing bank facilities will be renewed
or roll-overed when their current terms expire given the good track
records and relationships the Group has with the banks. Further, the
Group has unutilised loan facility from a Director.

The Directors have reviewed the Group's cash flow projections
prepared by the management. The cash flow projections cover a
period of not less than twelve months from 31 December 2021.
Based on the cash flow projections, the Directors believe the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due in the coming twelve months from
31 December 2021. The management has made key assumptions
in the preparation of the projections with regard to the anticipated
cash flows from the Group's operations, capital expenditures and the
continuous availability of bank facilities. The Group's ability to achieve
the projected cash flows depends on the continuous availability of

bank facilities from the banks.

In view of the above, the Directors are of the opinion that there will
be sufficient financial resources available to the Group to enable
it to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due and to continue
as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared these

consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis, except for certain properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at their fair values as explained in

the accounting policies set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHBREMMEw

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value-in-use in HKAS 36

“Impairment of Assets".

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its

entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;
Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(@)

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company: (i) has power over
the investee; (ii) is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and (iii) has the ability

to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one

or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in profit or loss from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income and expense
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with the Group's accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries

upon liquidation.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated
in a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration
test is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to

be a business and no further assessment is needed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(@

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Cont'd)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
investment properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and financial assets/financial liabilities
at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable assets
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to

goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the

Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of
the Company and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost that is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in

an associate or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(b)

Goodwill

Gooduwill arising from an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see the

accounting policy above).

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase gain.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (“CGUs") (or groups
of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the

combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the gain or loss on

disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(@

Investments accounted for using the equity method

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but

is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities

require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except
when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held
for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or
joint venture. When the Group's share of losses of an associate
or a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or

joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

()

Investments accounted for using the equity method
(Cont'd)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in

profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value-
in-use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(@

Investments accounted for using the equity method
(Cont'd)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of
the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture on
the same basis as would be required if that associate or
joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant

associate or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair

value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

()

(d)

Investments accounted for using the equity method
(Cont'd)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion
of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to

profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to

the Group.

Impairment losses (other than goodwill and intangible

assets with indefinite useful lives)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(e)

Investment properties and investment properties under

construction

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation including properties
under construction for such purpose and land held for a

currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease

income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the

period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of

the investment properties under construction.

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use is regarded
as held for capital appreciation purpose and classified as an
investment property, and carried at fair value. Changes in fair
value of the leasehold land are recognised directly in profit or

loss for the period in which changes take place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(e)

Investment properties and investment properties under

construction (Cont'd)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the property) is
included in profit or loss for the period in which the property is

derecognised.

An investment property is transferred at fair value to property,
plant and equipment when the property begins to be occupied
by the owner or of development with a view to owner-
occupation. Gain or loss arising from change in fair value of
the investment property upon the transfer is included in profit

or loss.

An owner-occupied property is transferred from property, plant
and equipment to investment properties at fair value when it
is evidenced by the end of owner-occupation. The difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accounted for as a revaluation increase or decrease in
accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of assets, the relevant

revaluation reserve is transferred directly to retained profits.

A property is transferred from investment property to stock
of properties when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of development with a view to
sale. Any difference between the fair value of the property at
the date of change in use and its previous carrying amount is

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

()

(8)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant
and equipment (other than freehold land and properties under
development) over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account their estimated residual values, using the straight-

line method, at the following rates per annum:

Type Basis

Leasehold land Over the remaining lives of the

leases
Buildings Over the shorter of the remaining
unexpired period of the lease and
40 years
Leasehold Over the shorter of lease terms and
improvement 6 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years
equipment
Yachts and motor 3to 10 years

vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the

period in which the asset is derecognised.
Stock of properties
Stock of properties including completed properties which are

held-for-trading, is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(8)

(h)

Stock of properties (Cont'd)

The cost of completed properties held for sale is determined
by apportionment of the total development costs, including
borrowing costs capitalised, attributable to unsold units. Net
realisable value is estimated by the management of the Group
based on prevailing market conditions, which represents the
estimated selling price less estimated costs to be incurred in

selling the property.

The amount of any write-down of or provision for completed
properties held for sale is recognised as an expense in the
period when the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down or provision, arising from an
increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of completed properties held for sale recognised

as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Inventories

Inventories comprise finished goods and raw materials for
cosmetics products, which are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost represents the invoiced cost
of inventories. Costs are assigned to individual items on the

weighted-average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.

Intangible assets

Trading rights, exchange rights and trademark

Trading rights, gold and silver exchange rights and trademark
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less any

identified impairment loss. The amortisation period adopted

for intangible assets is five years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. A financial asset or financial
liability (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant
financing component) is initially measured at fair value plus
or minus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction

price.

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending

on the classification of the financial assets.

() Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for
debt investments that are designated as at FVTPL on

initial recognition):

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to

collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

1)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

®

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial asset;

and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets that are other than those
categorised as amortised cost and FVTOCI above, are

categorised as measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset is held-for-trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term;

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern

of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and

effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that is required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting

mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

() Financial instruments (Cont'd) (G) =®MIAGH)
Financial assets (Cont'd) 2EIEEAE
() Classification and subsequent measurement of financial () EHEESHEREEZGERE)

assets (Cont'd)

(1) BERARERENIX

(1) Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount at initial

recognition.

Interest income is recognised using effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is recognised in profit or loss and is included in

revenue or investment income as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd) (G) &mIAGE
Financial assets (Cont'd) 2ERIEEAE
() Classification and subsequent measurement of financial () EHEESEREEZFTEGE)

assets (Cont'd)

(2) Financial assets measured at FVTOCI 2) BREEMEEEEIAREA

According to HKFRS 9, the Group may make
an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to designate investments in
equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at
FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment
is held-for-trading. A financial asset is held-for-
trading if it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near term or it is a
derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the financial assets
measured at FVTOCI reserve. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 5(c)

to the consolidated financial statements.

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss

and is included in revenue.

The Group has designated all investments in
equity instruments (listed or unlisted) that are not
held-for-trading as at FVTOCI since the application
of HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

() Financial instruments (Cont'd) (G) =®MIAGH)
Financial assets (Cont'd) 2EIEEAE
() Classification and subsequent measurement of financial () EHEESHEREEZGERE)

assets (Cont'd)

(3) Financial assets measured at FVTPL (3) BRABRURBAFEEZ
ZEMEE

Financial assets measured at FVTPL comprise
derivatives that are not designated and effective
as hedging instruments and club and corporate

debentures.

Investments in equity instruments are classified
as FVTPL, unless the Group designates such
investment that is not held-for-trading as at
FVTOCI on initial recognition (see (i)(2) above).

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised
cost and FVTOCI criteria (see above) are
measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments
that meet the amortised cost criteria but are
designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.
A debt instrument may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on

different bases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw

POLICIES (Cont'd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

() Cassification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont'd)

(3) Financial assets measured at FVTPL (Cont'd)

Financial assets measured at FVTPL are
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period, with any gains or losses arising from
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
is included in investment income. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 5(c)

to the consolidated financial statements.

Interest income on debt instruments at FVTPL
is recognised in profit or loss and is included in

revenue.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including debtors, deposits and other receivables,
securities trading receivables and deposits, pledged
deposits, time deposits, bank balances and cash, and
advance(s) to associates/an investee company) which
are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Assessment is done based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for significant balances or collectively using a

provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

RE MR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’'s external (if

available) or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market

indicators of credit risk;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in

the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration

in the operating results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.
Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more

lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

1)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over one year past due, whichever
occurs sooner, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate a later period
is more appropriate. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are

recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECLs

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data and forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking information that

is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective

interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses on a
forward-looking basis whether financial assets carried at
amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
“credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows

of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data of the following events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
borrower;

. a breach of contract such as a default or past due
event;

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not

otherwise consider; or

. it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
or the disappearance of an active market for a

security because of financial difficulties.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or,
the financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the financial assets to another entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

1)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Derecognition of financial assets (Cont'd)

On derecognition of a financial asset, except for an
investment in equity instrument that is classified as
FVTOC], the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and

receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
that is classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the financial assets
measured at FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit

or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

®

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or equity instruments according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group's financial
liabilities are generally classified into (i) financial liabilities
at FVTPL and (i) other financial liabilities subsequently
measured at amortised cost. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity

instruments are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

1)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

®

Classification and measurement (Cont'd)

Q)

@

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL, representing those as
held-for-trading, comprise derivatives that are not

designated and effective as hedging instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or

loss in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities subsequently measured

at amortised cost and effective interest method

Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included

in finance costs.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount at initial

recognition.

Interest expense is recognised using effective
interest method for financial liabilities, other than
those financial liabilities at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

() Financial instruments (Cont'd) (G) =®MIAGEH)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd) 2HEBRKREITAE)
() Classification and measurement (Cont'd) () PERFAEGE)
(3) Equity instruments 3) BAILE
Equity instruments issued by the Company are RRBETZRATLERE
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct W RS FIB IR BB BT
issue costs. RN -
Repurchase of the Company’s own equity HREBANBZBRATA
instruments is recognised and deducted directly PR AR EER - ©
in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or BE L& BOREHK
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of NAEZ AT B # U ES
the Company’s own equity instruments. HEERN BT ®ER -
(i) Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities () BUHHR EXe@ERE
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the Group's EASEREEcACEEEEE
obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged, fERR - BUBSEIEN - @RBE
cancelled or expires. The difference between the 153 BUE R o BUHMER 2 & &
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised EEREEEENRENREZ
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in ZRIINIBEERER -

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

(i)

Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities (Cont'd)

Except for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform in which the Group applies the
practical expedient, when the contractual terms of
a financial liability are modified, the Group assesses
whether the revised terms result in a substantial
modification from original terms taking into account all
relevant facts and circumstances including qualitative
factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid
net of any fees received, and discounted using the
original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent
different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted
for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred
are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the
extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such

difference is less than 10 per cent.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at
the present value of the modified contractual cash
flows discounted at the financial liabilities" original
effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred
are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial liabilities and are amortised over the remaining
term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the date

of modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_A=+—HILFE

RE MR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

1)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Change in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows as a result of interest rate benchmark

reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of a financial asset or financial liability to which the
amortised cost measurement applies as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform the Group applies the practical expedient
to account for these changes by updating the effective interest
rate, such change in effective interest rate normally has no
significant effect on the carrying amount of the relevant

financial asset or financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is required by interest rate benchmark reform if and only

if, both these conditions are met:

the change is necessary as a direct consequence of

interest rate benchmark reform; and

. the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the

basis immediately preceding the change).

For other changes made to a financial asset or financial
liability in addition to changes to the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows required by interest rate benchmark
reform, the Group first applies the practical expedient to
the changes required by interest rate benchmark reform by

updating the effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss

immediately.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract
liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL and do not arise from a transfer of an

asset, are measured subsequently at the higher of:

the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 (see financial assets above);

and

the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amortisation recognised over the

guarantee period.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance

obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(k)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the

following criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as

the Group performs;

the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset

that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional

right to consideration.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)

from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract are

accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(k)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
properties under operating leases, is recognised in profit or

loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Building management fee income, property management
services income and management fee income are recognised
in accordance with terms of respective agreements over the
relevant period in which the services are rendered. Revenue
from provision of building and property management services
is recognised over time as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefit provided by the Group’s

performance as the Group performs.

Sales of securities investments are recognised on a trade date

basis.

Brokerage income on dealings in securities and futures
contracts is recognised at the point in time when the relevant

contract notes are executed.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group's right to receive payment has been established.

Revenue from sales of cosmetics products is recognised at the
point in time when goods are delivered and titles have been

passed.

Revenue from sales of properties held for sale in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the legal assignment
is completed, which is the point in time when the purchaser
has the ability to direct the use of the property and obtain

substantially all of the remaining benefits of the property.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying

amount at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

U]

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

V)

(m)

Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised. Current and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is

included in the accounting for the business combination.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
“Income Taxes” requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of

remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority and the entity
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net

basis.

Leasing

Definition of lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract

are subsequently changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd) (m) HEE@E

The Group as lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of

the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to short-term leases of assets (i.e. those leases that have a
lease term of twelve months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). The Group also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption
to lease of office equipment that are considered as low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date which the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, estimated costs to be incurred by the lessee in
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, and lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the

lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B B| R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd) (m) HE&EE)

The Group as lessee (Cont'd)

Right-of-use assets (Cont'd)

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional

lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily

determinable.

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed lease

payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under

residual value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B # #aR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw

POLICIES (Cont'd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd)
The Group as lessee (Cont'd)
Lease liabilities (Cont'd)

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for

the lease payments made.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

. change in the lease term or change in the assessment
of exercise of a purchase option to purchase the
underlying asset, in which case the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the date of

reassessment;

change in lease payments arising from change in an
index or rate or expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments

using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item in

the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEMHMEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd)

(m)

The Group as lessee (Cont'd)

Lease modifications

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective

date of the modification.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

cost in foreign currencies are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

RE MR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(n)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

Exchange differences arising from the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising from a monetary
item that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case, the exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and will be
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the
foreign operation. Exchange differences arising from the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising from the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which case, the exchange differences are also recognised

directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using the exchange rate prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case, the exchange rates at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
translation reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is

disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HFEHEw
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(n)

(0)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of joint control
over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in the translation reserve in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are

reclassified to profit or loss.

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences is
reattributed to non-controlling interests and is not recognised
in profit or loss. For partial disposals of associates or joint
venture that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control, the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or

loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use

or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R M &L
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ T =-—F+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

(p)

(q)

U]

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as expenses when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
r